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Directors’ report
Chairman’s statement 
2008 was a turbulent year for British banks, and a very disappointing year for Bradford & Bingley. 

Against a deteriorating economic background, which first became apparent in the third quarter of 2007, the Board took a series of prudent
financial decisions to dispose of non-core lending portfolios, to raise committed, secured wholesale funding facilities and to seek additional capital
via a rights issue. 

I joined Bradford & Bingley as Chief Executive on 18 August 2008, the day on which the rights issue closed, and set about addressing some of the
operational issues that needed attention. We cut mortgage sales capacity further; reduced our commitments to third party mortgage providers;
increased our sales focus on retail deposits; tackled our costs; addressed balance sheet risk; and intensified our efforts in mortgage arrears
collections.

External events in September 2008 materially affected public confidence in the banking system, with a number of financial institutions in the USA
collapsing or being supported by government intervention. In the UK, the takeover of a distressed HBOS and considerable media attention
contributed to an increase in the rate of withdrawals of our customer deposits.

On 27 September, the Financial Services Authority (‘FSA’) informed us that Bradford & Bingley no longer satisfied their conditions for operating as a
deposit taker, and on 29 September, in order to promote financial stability and to protect consumers, Her Majesty’s Treasury (‘HM Treasury’) took
ownership of Bradford & Bingley and sold the UK and Isle of Man retail deposit business to Abbey National plc (‘Abbey’). This was a hugely
disappointing outcome for the organisation. Although we had a difficult last week of trading, thanks to the efforts of colleagues, there were
queues outside only four branches and every customer was served before we finally shut our doors on Saturday 27 September.

Since these events, the business has undergone enormous change. Colleagues working in our retail deposit business were transferred to Abbey
and we are providing transitional services to enable Abbey to operate the businesses they acquired. 

We have also set about reducing costs significantly to reflect the reduced business we are now running. When I joined in August, we employed
3,061 people and by 31 December 2008 this was down to 995 (942 full time equivalent). This has obviously been a painful period of adjustment
for the organisation and I would like to thank colleagues for the way in which they dealt with these issues and for their continued service to our
customers. Indeed, throughout this period it was pleasing to see from our customer surveys that mortgage customer satisfaction had actually
increased in December from the level in June. 

We have tried to simplify this Annual Report & Accounts as much as possible, whilst complying with best practice, but unfortunately it is more
complex to read than would usually be the case due to the mixed year we have had, with the first nine months including the retail deposit
business, and the last three months being a mortgage business only. The profit before tax for 2008 was £134.3m which includes the benefit of
the sale of the retail deposit business, some other one-off gains and the benefit of the interest-free liability to the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme ( ‘FSCS’) net of the cost of the guarantees provided by HM Treasury. These effects are explained in detail in the Financial Review starting
on page 8.

There have been significant board changes during the year, with three executive directors leaving, including the previous Chief Executive, Steven
Crawshaw, who retired due to ill health. Rod Kent, our previous Chairman, took on a challenging executive role during Steven’s absence and
declined any additional remuneration. Rod and the majority of the non-executive directors, stood down without compensation on 14 November
2008 and I would like to thank them for their contribution. 

I am delighted that Non-executive Directors Michael Buckley and Louise Patten agreed to stay in their non-executive roles and assist me when I
became Chairman following Rod’s resignation. Executive Directors, Chris Willford and Roger Hattam, have also remained and worked hard on
developing the new business plan, and are expected to stand down during 2009 following the appointment of a managing director. The support
of all four colleagues, together with the senior management team, has been invaluable and is much appreciated.

2009 is going to be a further year of change and the Bradford & Bingley team will be working hard to protect the value of our assets and to
minimise the risk to taxpayers. We aim to continue to give excellent service to our customers and, whilst we undertake further restructuring to
reduce costs, we intend to minimise any adverse impact on the Aire Valley community.

Richard Pym
Chairman

02Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

B21448 R&A 2008 FRONT  3/4/09  10:45  Page 2



03Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

Directors’ report
Introduction
Background to public ownership
The dislocation in global credit markets and the subsequent decline in the UK housing market from the third quarter of 2007 onwards
made the trading environment for Bradford & Bingley (the ‘Company’ or the ‘Group’) more difficult in a number of ways: 

• the availability of wholesale funding reduced rapidly and materially; 
• the cost of both retail and wholesale funding increased; 
• the market value of some of the Group’s treasury assets reduced substantially; 
• mortgage arrears increased; and 
• customers found it more difficult to secure mortgages elsewhere reducing the rate of redemptions and thus increasing Bradford &

Bingley’s funding needs.

In response to these more challenging conditions, the Company disposed of £4.0bn of non-core lending portfolios, increased retail
deposit balances by £2.1bn in the first four months of 2008, and raised a further £2.0bn of committed, secured facilities. The Board
announced a rights issue in May 2008 to raise additional capital with a view to achieving a tier 1 capital ratio of between 8% and 10%. It
became apparent during this capital raising process that Bradford & Bingley’s trading outlook for the year had deteriorated. On 2 June
2008, the Board therefore issued a trading statement and restructured the rights issue at a price that better reflected the latest
information on trading. The proposed restructured capital raising included a significant investment from the private equity firm, TPG. This
was followed by a downgrade in Bradford & Bingley’s short-term credit rating from the major rating agencies.

On 4 July, Bradford & Bingley’s long-term credit rating was reduced by Moody’s, which entitled TPG to withdraw its proposed investment.
A replacement, enlarged rights issue of £401m was quickly agreed with the support of major investors and the appointed underwriters. It
was approved by shareholders on 17 July. The downgrades and adverse publicity resulted in a reduction in retail deposit balances in July
which lasted into August when the balances stabilised.

A succession of external events in the first half of September materially affected public confidence in the banking system, particularly in
mortgage banks. The collapse and effective nationalisation of AIG, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac; the downgrading of Washington Mutual
to ‘junk bond’ status; the collapse of Lehman Brothers; and the announced takeover of HBOS by Lloyds TSB coincided with Moody’s
applying a further downgrade to Bradford & Bingley’s ratings on 16 September. Fitch Ratings and Standard and Poor’s followed suit on 23
September.

During the week commencing 22 September, a number of steps were announced to cut costs and reduce risk. However, media
speculation about the health and future independence of Bradford & Bingley increased, there was a significant increase in the rate of
withdrawals of customer deposits, and wholesale markets continued to be severely restricted. Throughout this period, the senior
management team of Bradford & Bingley was in regular and close contact with the Bank of England and the FSA.

On Saturday 27 September, the Board was informed that the FSA considered that Bradford & Bingley no longer satisfied ‘threshold
conditions’ for operating as a deposit taker. Over the weekend of 27-28 September, the HM Treasury took steps to transfer the assets and
liabilities of Bradford & Bingley into public ownership through the transfer of it’s shares to HM Treasury. Bradford & Bingley’s UK and Isle of
Man deposit businesses, together with the branch network and the shares in its Isle of Man subsidiary, were transferred to Abbey for
£612m with effect from Monday 29 September, hereinafter referred to as ‘the Transfer’.

Transfer into public ownership 
On 29 September 2008, Bradford & Bingley was taken into public ownership in accordance with The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of
Securities and Property etc. Order 2008 (the ‘Transfer Order’).

At the point of the Transfer, Bradford & Bingley held total assets of £52.5bn, including loans and advances to customers of £42.2bn, of
which £41.3bn were residential mortgages and £0.9bn were commercial and housing property loans. 

These assets were funded by a range of wholesale funding vehicles (securitisations, covered bonds and unsecured wholesale funding)
representing liabilities of £28.4bn and retail deposits of £20.4bn, including £1.4bn in the Isle of Man business.
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Directors’ report
Introduction continued

In accordance with the terms of the Transfer Order, 1,684 employees of Bradford & Bingley (1,523 full time equivalent) transferred to
Abbey, as well as 197 branches (160 leasehold and 37 freehold) and 140 agency branches (franchises).

The retail deposits transferred to Abbey were replaced simultaneously with a Statutory Debt (the ‘Statutory Debt’) totalling £18.4bn owed
to the FSCS. The consideration received for the sale of the retail deposit business to Abbey amounted to £0.6bn, which was settled by the
transfer of £19.0bn of net liabilities. Simultaneously, HM Treasury provided a guarantee with regard to certain wholesale borrowings and
derivative transactions with the Company existing at the time of the Transfer.

In addition to the £42.2bn loans and advances to customers, Bradford & Bingley also held £7.9bn of wholesale assets, comprising loans
to central banks and other banks and debt securities in issue. The balance sheet value of derivative assets was £2.1bn, primarily
associated with the fair value of cross currency and interest rate swaps used to reduce risk on the balance sheet. The remaining £0.3bn
assets were fixed and other assets. 

Immediately following the Transfer, Bradford & Bingley’s balance sheet was primarily financed by wholesale funding and the Statutory
Debt. In addition, Abbey continued to provide a loan of £1.6bn to Bradford & Bingley in respect of the Isle of Man deposit business it had
acquired. The remaining liabilities consisted of £1.5bn subordinated debt and other capital instruments, £1.5bn equity and reserves, and
£0.9bn of derivative and other liabilities.

Following the Transfer, the Group was required to cease new lending activities immediately. Other than honouring outstanding mortgage
commitments, the business was transformed from a mortgage and deposit taking bank into a mortgage servicing bank, with ongoing
obligations in the wholesale money markets, to HM Treasury, the FSCS and to Abbey in servicing the retail deposit business and branch
network.
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Directors’ report
Business review 
Now that it is in public ownership, Bradford & Bingley will be wound down. Its over-arching objectives are to repay HM Treasury and FSCS
as soon as market conditions allow, and to protect taxpayers, whilst also treating customers and creditors fairly.

In order to achieve this, Bradford & Bingley will pursue the following strategic priorities:

• Run down the balance sheet
• Minimise impairment and losses
• Restructure and realign the business
• Provide transitional services to Abbey

Running down the balance sheet
At the point of the Transfer, Bradford & Bingley held total assets of £52.5bn, including loans and advances to customers of £42.2bn, of
which £41.3bn were residential mortgages and £0.9bn were commercial and housing property loans. 

The intention is to run down the balance sheet in an orderly fashion over a number of years in order to repay providers of funding,
including HM Treasury and the FSCS. Although the current dislocation in global credit markets and the current difficulties in the UK
housing market impose significant constraints, Bradford & Bingley aims to run down its balance sheet through a range of activities:

Cease new lending
- On 29 September 2008, Bradford & Bingley closed its doors to new mortgage applications altogether, and committed to lend only

where a formal mortgage offer had already been made. Customers who had paid fees for valuations were refunded. 
- Bradford & Bingley has also ceased to increase loans to existing customers, except in specific circumstances where doing so supports

the strategic priorities of running down the balance sheet or minimising impairments and losses. 
Run down the mortgage book through stimulating redemptions and sales of loans where appropriate

- A number of actions have been taken to facilitate mortgage redemptions, and there are plans for additional initiatives with the same
aim.

- These actions include the effective cessation of retention lending, and a promotion which waives early redemption charges for
customers who redeem all or part of their mortgage between 1 February and 1 June 2009. 

Run down or sell the commercial loan book
- Where deals with commercial mortgage customers mature, the business is encouraging customers to refinance with other institutions

rather than renewing the loan.
- Bradford & Bingley will seek opportunities to accelerate the run down of the commercial mortgage book through disposals if this can

be done on commercially acceptable terms. 
Run down or sell other wholesale assets

- Bradford & Bingley also holds a number of non-mortgage financial assets, which include mortgage and other asset-backed
securities, government bonds and principal-protected structured investment products.

- Bradford & Bingley intends to dispose of wholesale assets which have not been encumbered or required for operating liquidity,
provided that it can achieve acceptable prices in the market.
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Directors’ report
Business review continued

Minimising impairment and losses
The performance of the Bradford & Bingley mortgage book deteriorated sharply during 2008. At the end of 2008, the proportion of
accounts more than three months in arrears or in possession stood at 4.60% (2007: 1.63%). In the prevailing economic environment,
further deterioration in the arrears rate should be expected in 2009 and 2010.

All mortgages are secured against property, so a shortfall in payments does not necessarily lead to a loss. The level of loss will ultimately
depend on the amount of equity in the property and market conditions at the point of sale. 

Bradford & Bingley intends to minimise impairments and losses through a number of key activities:

• Manage mortgage arrears through an active collections strategy 
• Increase focus on collections from larger portfolio landlords
• Offer a range of treatment strategies to customers facing payment difficulties
• Pursue recoveries

Bradford & Bingley’s approach towards customers in arrears is governed by the FSA’s Mortgage Conduct of Business (‘MCOB’) rules and
the principle of Treating Customers Fairly (‘TCF’), alongside the recently introduced Pre-Action Protocol (‘PAP’). In accordance with PAP
guidance, all reasonable efforts will be made to make arrangements with customers in arrears and repossession will only be considered
as a last resort. Bradford & Bingley will not instigate litigation proceedings on owner occupied properties within the first three months of
the customer going into arrears and will not take possession within the first six months.

Bradford & Bingley fully supports assisting borrowers during the current economic downturn and is willing to supplement existing efforts
with recent Government initiatives, such as the Mortgage Rescue Scheme and the proposed Homeowners Mortgage Support Scheme, in
instances where our existing forbearance options have been exhausted.

Restructuring and realigning the business
Bradford & Bingley is currently being restructured in order to realign the business behind its new, more focused objectives. In so doing, the
intention is to:

• Reduce costs
• Manage the impact on the community

The focus of the new Bradford & Bingley will be on running down its balance sheet, servicing the mortgage book as efficiently as possible
and on the collection of arrears. A range of alternative business models will be evaluated. Businesses in run-down face particular
challenges as economies of scale reduce over time and an out-sourced model represents one of the options which could mitigate this.

Bradford & Bingley has, for some time, been one of the largest employers in the Aire Valley. Bradford & Bingley will work with Yorkshire
Forward, the regional development agency, and Bradford City Council to ensure that any negative community impact is managed.

The community impact will be taken into account when developing the new operating model. It may be that an out-sourced model is the
best way of retaining a level of employment in the Aire Valley, as an out-sourced provider may be able to locate its ongoing business
activities here.

Providing transitional services to Abbey
Bradford & Bingley has agreed to provide Abbey with transitional services until 29 September 2009, with an option to extend by a further
six months to support the transferred branch and retail deposit business during the process of separation and migration. Services during
this transitional period include IT service delivery, application maintenance, finance and accounting administration, banking
administration and payment processing.

Abbey has agreed to provide a range of reverse services to Bradford & Bingley for the same duration, including counter services and
acceptance of payments by Bradford & Bingley mortgage customers in former Bradford & Bingley branches.
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Directors’ report
Key performance indicators 

As a consequence of the Transfer and the change in the objectives of the business the Board
has reviewed the key information used to manage the business in the future. In addition to the
primary financial statements, we believe the following key performance indicators are
significant in managing the challenges we face and demonstrate how the business is
performing against its strategic priorities.

Profit before tax*

134.3

£m

126.0

 08

 07

Cost:assets ratio

0.50

%

0.56

 08

 07

Lending balances

41.8

£bn

40.4

 08

 07

Wholesale asset balances

7.5

£bn

9.6

 08

 07

The profit of the business is the income made for the shareholder after all
expenses and charges. It is a measure of the success of the delivery of
the strategic priorities.

The ongoing expenses of the business expressed as a proportion of
average interest-earning assets. It measures the effectiveness of the
Group in reducing costs relative to the size of the assets under
management.

The total balance of mortgages and commercial property loans
outstanding defines the size of the operational capacity required by the
business. As the business is run down, changes to this balance will
measure the speed at which funding can be repaid and operational
capacity reduced.

Along with outstanding loans to customers, the Group also has a
material balance of wholesale loans and investment assets. 

Residential mortgage redemption rate

10.6

%

18.5

 08

 07

The value of residential mortgages redeeming in the period expressed
as a proportion of the total balance at the start of each period. This
measures the rate at which the residential mortgage book is reducing.

Residential arrears balance: total mortgage balance

0.27

%

0.12

 08

 07

The value of payments that have not been made by customers as a
proportion of the total balance of all mortgages. This measure
represents the degree to which mortgages are not performing and is
an indicator of performance in managing the level of losses.

*The 2008 profit before tax includes the benefit of the sale of the retail deposit business, some other one-off gains and the benefit of the interest-free Statutory Debt net of the
cost of the guarantees provided by HM Treasury. These effects are explained in detail in the financial review starting on page 08.

Directors’ report
Key performance indicators 
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Directors’ report
Financial review 
Summary
Group profit before tax rose 7% to £134.3m (2007: £126.0m). This profit includes the positive financial impact of items that were a direct
consequence of the Transfer, or events following from it. These were:

• the interest-free Statutory Debt of £18.4bn net of the cost of the guarantees provided by HM Treasury following the Transfer
increased net interest income by around £115m; and

• a gain on the sale of the retail deposit business to Abbey, net of the costs associated with the Transfer, of £216.3m.

In addition, the recognition of the impact of lengthening average lives of mortgages on the balance sheet in the Group’s effective interest
rate methodology increased net interest income by £196.0m. Rapidly declining fourth quarter market interest rates caused the fair value
of derivatives used to manage balance sheet interest rate risk to rise contributing to full year fair value gains of £183.0m.

Performance
Net operating income was 55% higher in the year at £886.7m (2007: £572.3m). The major reasons for this were net interest income, 35%
higher at £737.4m (2007: £547.7m) and fair value gains of £183.0m (2007: £49.7m loss). Ongoing administrative expenses fell £27.0m
or 10% to £253.2m (2007: £280.2m) while loan impairment rose £485.2m to £507.7m (2007: £22.5m) and investment impairment
increased to £191.6m (2007: £94.4m). Other major items include the gain on sale of the retail deposit business of £216.3m and costs
associated with restructuring and contract termination of £43.7m.

The tax charge was £116.1m (2007: £32.8m), being an effective rate of 86.4% (2007: 26.0%). Statutory profit after tax was £75.0m lower
at £18.2m (2007: £93.2m).

Net interest income
Net interest income was 35% higher at £737.4m (2007: £547.7m). Interest-bearing assets were broadly similar at £50.4bn (2007:
£49.7bn), however the average level of interest-bearing liabilities fell to £43.6bn (2007: £47.9bn) due to the sale of the retail deposit
business. 

Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008 2007

£m £m

Net interest income 737.4 547.7
Fee and commission income 63.3 81.7
Realised gains less losses on financial instruments (120.3) 6.5
Fair value movements 183.0 (49.7)
Hedge ineffectiveness 18.5 (23.5)
Other operating income 4.8 9.6
Net operating income 886.7 572.3
Administrative expenses:

- Ongoing (253.2) (280.2)
- Other net expenses (23.7) -

Loan impairment loss (507.7) (22.5)
Investment impairment loss (191.6) (94.4)
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets and liabilities 216.3 (58.0)
Non-operating income 7.5 8.8
Profit before taxation 134.3 126.0
Taxation (116.1) (32.8)
Profit for the financial year 18.2 93.2
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Directors’ report
Financial review continued

The yield of interest-earning assets rose to 6.19% (2007: 5.96%) reflecting the rise in interest charged on mortgages written in 2007 (a
large proportion of which were fixed rate) which had a full year impact in 2008. Assumptions regarding the recognition of mortgage
income are reviewed on a regular basis. During the course of 2008 the rate of mortgage redemptions has slowed significantly to 10.6%
from 18.5% in 2007. As a consequence, the amount of income expected to be earned over the life of the mortgage book has increased,
as has the average yield on those loans. In respect of this, a one-off addition to income of £196.0m has been recognised in 2008. This is
reflected in the rise in the full year interest margin to 1.46% (2007:1.10%).

In the nine months to the end of September, average funding costs rose as the Group accessed increasingly expensive retail deposits and
secured funding facilities. This was reflected in the average interest rate of interest-bearing liabilities rising to 5.61% (2007: 5.05%).

From October, average total funding costs fell due to the interest-free Statutory Debt of £18.4bn which replaced the retail deposit balances
sold to Abbey. This was in part offset by the costs associated with guarantees provided by HM Treasury on unsecured wholesale deposits
and covered bonds. In total, the contribution of interest-free liabilities increased Group net interest margin by 0.88% (2007: 0.19%). 

Net interest income
For the year ended 31 December 2008 2007

£m £m

Net interest income 737.4 547.7
Average balances
Interest-earning assets (‘IEA’) 50,433 49,743 
Financed by:
Interest-bearing liabilities 43,603 47,904
Interest-free liabilities 6,830 1,839 

% %

Average rates
Gross yield on average IEA 6.19 5.96
Cost of interest-bearing liabilities (5.61) (5.05)
Interest spread 0.58 0.91
Interest-free liabilities 0.88 0.19
Net interest margin on average IEA 1.46 1.10
Average bank base rate 4.68 5.51
Average 3 month LIBOR 5.51 6.00
Average 3 year swap rate 5.03 5.81

Non-interest operating income
For the year ended 31 December 2008 2007

£m £m

Lending-related 18.7 28.7
Investment 18.9 30.8
General insurance 18.7 19.9
Other 7.0 2.3
Total fee and commission income 63.3 81.7
Realised gains less losses on financial instruments (120.3) 6.5
Fair value movements 183.0 (49.7)
Hedge ineffectiveness 18.5 (23.5)
Other operating income 4.8 9.6
Total non-interest operating income 149.3 24.6

Fee and commission income 
Fee and commission income fell 23% to £63.3m (2007: £81.7m).

Mortgage origination volumes fell significantly in 2008, resulting in lower mortgage related income of £18.7m (2007: £28.7m). This
reflected lower mortgage redemption rates and the reduction in administration fees.

The difficult trading conditions of late 2007 continued and this, together with the cessation of our relationship with Legal & General on
sale of the branch network, caused investment product commission income to fall to £18.9m (2007: £30.8m). Income from general
insurance fell to £18.7m (2007: £19.9m).

Other fee and commission income includes a fee charged for the provision of transitional services by Bradford & Bingley to Abbey.
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Directors’ report
Financial review continued

Realised gains less losses on financial instruments
Throughout the year conditions in the wholesale credit markets deteriorated, particularly in the second half. Market prices for the
investment portfolio declined as the outlook worsened. It was announced in September 2008 that we had sold or written down to zero all
of the CDOs, CLOs and SIVs of which amounted to £520.1m at 31 December 2007. The loss on sale of these assets was £120.3m (2007:
£6.5m gain).

Fair value movements
The transfer of the retail deposit business created balance sheet interest rate risk. Approximately £7bn of interest rate swap contracts
were entered into in the final quarter of 2008 to bring our interest rate risk within acceptable limits. Although these contracts hedge the
overall balance sheet risk, they do not meet the accounting definition of a hedge relationship and so movements in the fair value of these
hedges are reflected directly in the income statement. Similarly, after the transfer of the retail deposit business c. £8bn of interest rate
swaps were retained that previously hedged the interest rate risk of fixed rate savings bonds. These swaps no longer satisfy the criteria
for hedge accounting and so the change in their fair value is also reflected in the income statement. These contracts, together with large
reductions in interest rates, resulted in a full year gain of £183.0m (June 2008: £63.0m loss, 2007: £49.7m loss).

Hedge ineffectiveness reflects the accounting adjustment for fair value differences between derivatives in an accounting hedge
relationship and the items being hedged. This was a gain of £18.5m (2007: £23.5m loss).

Other operating income
Other operating income was 50% lower at £4.8m (2007: £9.6m) as a result of a lower number of sales of the Group’s properties prior to
the Transfer than in 2007.

Administrative expenses
Ongoing administrative expenses were lower at £253.2m (2007: £280.2m). The ratio of costs to assets improved from 0.56% to 0.50%.

Staff-related costs fell from £121.0m in 2007 to £104.0m reflecting the reduction in staff numbers subsequent to the sale of the savings
business. The average number of full time equivalent staff was 2,420 in 2008, down from 2,862 in 2007. At the year end there were 942
full time equivalent staff. Premises costs were similarly lower at £18.2m (2007: £20.5m) reflecting the sale of the branch network on the
Transfer. Marketing campaigns prior to the sale of the retail deposit business resulted in costs of £18.5m (2007: £19.7m). A reduction in
infrastructure investment during the year led to a reduction in the depreciation charge to £19.3m (2007: £23.7m).

In 2006, £89.4m was provided in respect of compensation costs for the mis-selling of endowment policies and investment products. The
level of outstanding claims was reviewed and £20.0m of this provision was not required. The remaining provision is £25.5m. Costs were
incurred in relation to the closure of the Borehamwood mortgage processing centre and in terminating mortgage acquisition contracts.
These totalled £43.7m (2007: £nil).

Administrative expenses
For the year ended 31 December 2008 2007

£m £m

Staff-related 104.4 121.0
Premises 18.2 20.5
Marketing 18.5 19.7
Other administrative expenses 93.2 95.3
Depreciation and amortisation 19.3 23.7
Ongoing administrative expenses 253.2 280.2
Restructuring costs 11.7 - 
Contract termination fees 32.0 -
Compensation provision release (20.0) -
Other net expenses 23.7 -
Total 276.9 280.2
Ratio of ongoing costs to assets 0.50 0.56
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Directors’ report
Financial review continued

Arrears and possessions
2008 2007

Arrears over 3 months
- number of cases 16,712 5,610 
- % of total cases 4.43 1.48 
- value of cases in arrears (£m) 2,404.0 731.2 
- % of book 5.87 1.85 

Possessions
- number of cases 643 560 
- % of total cases 0.17 0.15 
- value (£m) 110.1 97.0 
- % of book 0.27 0.25 

Total
- number of cases 17,355 6,170 
- % of total cases 4.60 1.63
- value (£m) 2,514.1 828.2 
- % of book 6.14 2.10 
- value of arrears and possessions (£m) 112.5 49.0
- % of total book 0.27 0.12

Residential loan impairment allowance
Impairment allowance (£m) 467.7 54.8 

- % of residential assets 1.13 0.14 
- % of arrears and possessions 18.60 6.62 

Investment impairment
Throughout the year, global economic conditions worsened impacting the structured finance investment portfolio. Regular reviews of
impairment resulted in an impairment charge for investment assets of £191.6m (2007: £94.4m). As mentioned above, CDO, CLO and SIV
investments have now been sold or are held at zero value. A structured finance portfolio of principal protected notes and credit funds
valued at £472.2m is retained.

Gain resulting from the sale of assets and liabilities under the Transfer
Under the Transfer, retail deposit balances, branch network and our investment in Bradford & Bingley International Ltd, the Isle of Man
deposit taker, were sold to Abbey. The consideration for these assets was £612.0m which, after deducting the carrying value of assets
sold and associated charges, resulted in a gain of £216.3m. In 2007, a loss of £58.0m was incurred on the sale of £4.0bn of commercial
property and housing association loans.

Non-operating income
As in 2007, a number of branches were transferred under sale and leaseback arrangements prior to the Transfer. These generated a net
gain of £7.5m (2007: £8.8m).

Arrears and loan impairment
Arrears levels increased markedly in 2008. The total number of cases three months or more in arrears or in possession has increased to
17,355 (2007: 6,170) which equates to 4.60% of the book (2007: 1.63%). The total value of the Group’s arrears and possessions is now
0.27% of mortgage balances (2007: 0.12%).

The provision for residential loan impairment of £467.7m (2007: £54.8m) depends mainly on arrears levels. However, it also includes
£173.9m of provision for suspected fraud cases (2007: £14.5m). The other main factors taken into account in calculating the provision are
the likelihood of taking a property into possession and any possible subsequent loss on sale. That possible loss is assessed fully, taking
into account expectations for future house price deflation which contributed £70.2m to the impairment charge. During the year, 1,503
properties were repossessed, of which 1,012 were owner occupied and 491 were buy-to-let. Actual losses on properties sold following
repossession were £65.5m (2007: £23.8m).

As a proportion of balances, the residential impairment provision was 1.13% (2007: 0.14%) and the charge to the income statement was
£477.1m (2007: £24.0m).

The charge for impairment of the commercial loan book was £30.7m (2007: £0.1m) reflecting the deteriorating economic conditions. 
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Directors’ report
Financial review continued

Taxation
The total charge for tax for the year was £116.1m (2007: £32.8m). Given the profit before taxation of £134.3m (2007: £126.0m) this
equates to an effective tax rate of 86.4% (2007: 26.0%), caused primarily by deferred tax assets being written off (see note 6 to the financial
statements). The effective tax rate has also increased because the charge for tax prudently allows for the possibility that HM Revenue &
Customs (‘HMRC’) may view the Transfer as a ‘cessation of trade’ for tax purposes. The consequence of such a view would be that tax
losses accumulated to the date of the Transfer would not be available to relieve tax on future profits. Whether there has been a ‘cessation
of trade’ for tax purposes will continue to be discussed with HM Treasury and HMRC.

Assets
Lending balances grew by 3% during the year to £41.8bn (2007: £40.4bn; June 2008: £42.2bn), with a smaller decline than expected in
the second half due to the sharp fall in residential mortgage redemption rates. The growth in balance sheet size was mainly due to the
increase in value of derivative financial instruments to £6.0bn (2007: £1.2bn). This mainly reflects the impact of the weakening of sterling
on the cross-currency interest rate swaps that hedge the Group’s foreign currency wholesale borrowings .

Wholesale assets fell to £7.5bn (2007: £9.6bn) reflecting sales and write-downs of the investment book and the lower liquidity required
following the establishment of a Working Capital Facility with HM Treasury.

Liabilities
Following the Transfer, retail deposits fell to £nil (2007: £21.0bn). The Statutory Debt amounts to £18.4bn.

Wholesale funding increased to £30.8bn (2007: £27.8bn) reflecting the impact of weaker sterling on foreign currency wholesale
borrowings and additional secured funding which together outweighed maturing wholesale debt.

Balance Sheet summary
At 31 December 2008 2007

£m £m

Loans and advances to customers:
- Residential mortgages 40,967.3 39,422.3
- Commercial and other secured loans 858.7 1,022.2

Wholesale assets 7,474.3 9,565.0
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 561.3 (53.8)
Derivative financial instruments 6,022.9 1,175.4
Fixed and other assets 38.1 853.5
Total assets 55,922.6 51,984.6
Retail deposits - 20,988.0
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 -
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 -
Wholesale funding 30,812.9 27,547.1
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - (5.9)
Derivative financial instruments 1,230.2 498.6
Other liabilities 414.7 330.7
Interest-bearing capital 1,617.1 1,415.3
Equity 1,158.1 1,210.8
Total liabilities and equity 55,922.6 51,984.6
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Directors’ report
Financial review continued

Capital structure
2008 2007

£m £m

Share capital and reserves 1,158.1 1,210.8
Available-for-sale reserve adjustment 348.1 61.9
Cash flow hedge reserve adjustment 148.5 60.4
Intangible assets adjustment - (41.0)
Net pension deficit (10.0) (4.0)
Innovative tier 1 149.0 148.8
Total tier 1 capital 1,793.7 1,436.9
Upper tier 2 capital 584.6 580.1
Lower tier 2 capital 676.0 647.0
Total tier 2 capital 1,260.6 1,227.1
Deductions (55.7) (146.7)
Total capital 2,998.6 2,517.3
Risk-weighted assets 20,156 16,655
Total tier 1 ratio (%) 8.9 8.6
Total capital ratio (%) 14.9 15.1

Neither the available-for-sale reserve nor the cash flow hedge reserve are deducted when calculating capital ratios. The tier 1 ratio of
8.9% and the total capital ratio of 14.9% mean that Bradford & Bingley remains one of the better capitalised UK banks.

The Group continues to operate under the standardised regime of Basel II.

Capital
A rights issue, which was approved on 17 July and completed on 26 August, increased shareholder’s equity by £401m. This increase,
together with the retained profit for the year of £18.2m, was offset by movements in other reserves such that total equity fell by £52.7m.

As a result of the deteriorating market for wholesale credit products through the year, the fair value of mortgage backed and other debt
securities reduced and this was reflected in a £286.2m adverse movement of the available-for-sale reserve to a £348.1m debit balance
after tax (2007: £61.9m debit).

The cash flow hedge reserve (which records fair value changes in interest rate derivatives deemed to be in cash flow hedge relationships)
declined by £88.1m to £148.5m debit after tax (2007: £60.4m debit).
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Directors’ report
Our Board 

Richard Pym (BSc, FCA) 
Executive Chairman 
Richard (age 59) joined the Board as Chief Executive in August 2008 and was appointed Executive Chairman in November 2008. He is
also Chairman of the Nominations Committee. Richard is a Non-executive Director of Old Mutual plc and Non-executive Chairman of
BrightHouse Group Ltd. He was Group Chief Executive of Alliance & Leicester plc until July 2007, and prior to that he held a number of
financial and general management roles at The Burton Group plc, BAT Industries plc, British Gas and Thomson McLintock & Co. Formerly a
Vice President of the British Bankers Association, a Non-executive Director of Selfridges plc, and Chairman of Halfords Group plc, Richard
is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a physics graduate of the University of Warwick. 

Louise Patten (MA (Oxon))
Non-executive Director
Louise (age 55) joined the Board in December 2003. She is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and Nominations Committee. Louise is Non-executive Chairman of Brixton plc and a Non-executive Director of Marks and
Spencer Group plc as well as senior adviser to Bain & Company. She began her career at Citibank and remained in financial services until
1993 when she joined the management consultancy, Bain & Company, as a partner. Her previous experience as a Non-executive
Director includes the Hilton Group, Great Universal Stores and Somerfield. 

Chris Willford (BA, ACMA)
Group Finance Director
Chris (age 46) joined the Board as Group Finance Director in October 2005. He is responsible for the Finance, Compliance, Risk, Audit and
Treasury functions. He previously held senior finance roles at Abbey National plc, Barclays Bank PLC, British Airways and Unilever PLC and
is a chartered management accountant. During 2008, Chris was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the Personal Accounts Delivery
Authority.

Roger Hattam (BA, MBA)
Group Operations Director
Roger (age 40) joined the Board in May 2007 and is currently Group Operations Director with responsibility for mortgage administration,
credit collection and the customer contact centre. Roger has worked for the Company for 18 years in a number of senior roles, including
credit management, strategy, product development and sales.

Michael Buckley (MA, LPh, MSI, FCIB(RoI))
Non-executive Director
Michael (age 64) joined the Board in July 2007. He is Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nominations Committee. Michael is Non-executive Chairman of DCC plc and a Non-executive Director of both M&T Corporation
in the USA and Bramdean Alternatives Limited. He is also a senior adviser to a number of privately held Irish and international companies
and is an Adjunct Professor at the Department of Economics at NUI University College, Cork. He was Group Chief Executive of Allied Irish
Banks plc from 2001 to 2005 having earlier served as Managing Director of AIB Capital Markets and AIB Poland. Previously, he was
Managing Director of the NCB Group and a senior public servant in Ireland and the EU. 

Directors 
Details of Board appointments and retirements during 2008 are shown below:

Nicholas Cosh was the Senior Independent Director until his resignation on 14 November 2008 and also Deputy Chairman from 1 June
2008 until his resignation on 14 November 2008.

Robert Dickie Resigned 21 April 2008

Steven Crawshaw Retired 31 May 2008

Richard Pym Appointed 18 August 2008

Mark Stevens Resigned 4 September 2008

Nicholas Cosh Resigned 14 November 2008

Ian Cheshire Resigned 14 November 2008

Rod Kent Resigned 14 November 2008

Stephen Webster Resigned 14 November 2008

Rod Kent was Non-executive Chairman
until 31 May 2008 and Executive
Chairman between 1 June 2008 and 17
August 2008. Thereafter, he was Non-
executive Chairman until his resignation
on 14 November 2008.

Richard Pym was appointed as Director and
Chief Executive on 18 August 2008 and
Executive Chairman on 14 November 2008. 
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Directors’ report
Our Board continued

Number of meetings held

Rod Kent 
(Resigned 14 November 2008)
Richard Pym 
(Appointed 18 August 2008)
Steven Crawshaw
(Retired 31 May 2008)
Nicholas Cosh
(Resigned 14 November 2008)
Stephen Webster
(Resigned 14 November 2008)
Ian Cheshire
(Resigned 14 November 2008)
Robert Dickie
(Resigned 21 April 2008)
Louise Patten
Chris Willford
Roger Hattam
Mark Stevens
(Resigned 4 September 2008)
Michael Buckley

Board

3

27/34

10/10

12/13

27/34

20/34

19/34

6/8

25/36
33/36
26/36
19/30

27/36

Audit
Committee

6

5/5

5/5

4/5

1/1

6/6

Remuneration
Committee

4

2/2

1/3

1/3

4/4

1/1

Nominations
Committee

2

2/2

1/2

2/2

0/2

2/2

2/2

Balance Sheet
Management

Committee

3

2/3

3/3

2/3
3/3

Board and Committee Meetings
During 2008 there was an unusually high number of meetings. A significant number of those meetings dealt with the sign-off of wording
within documents or technical issues that had been discussed and agreed in principle at previous meetings. In such cases it was agreed prior
to the meeting that only a restricted number of directors need attend. The number of meetings attended by each Director was as follows:

The Audit Committee was chaired by Stephen Webster until his resignation in November 2008 and thereafter by Michael Buckley. The
Nominations Committee was chaired by Rod Kent until June 2008, after which date Nicholas Cosh became Chairman until his resignation
in November 2008, with Richard Pym chairing the Committee thereafter. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee throughout 2008
was Louise Patten.

The Balance Sheet Management Committee met three times during the year before being discontinued in November 2008. The
Committee monitored, reviewed and advised the Board on all balance sheet management matters, including funding programmes. All of
the matters formerly considered by the Committee are now dealt with by the Board.

The members of the Balance Sheet Management Committee during 2008 were Nicholas Cosh (Chairman of the Committee), until his
resignation in November 2008, Rod Kent, until his resignation in November 2008, Chris Willford, Roger Hattam and the Director of
Treasury and Wholesale Banking (a senior executive). 

The current membership of the committees is 
set out on pages

17-18�
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Directors’ report
Corporate governance 
Introduction
Following the Transfer, Bradford & Bingley’s shares were delisted on 29 September 2008 and transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as
nominee for HM Treasury. As a consequence, the full requirements of the UKLA’s Listing Rules and the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance no longer apply to the Company. However, the Company intends to operate a corporate governance structure which, as far
as practicable, takes appropriate account of best practice for a company listed on the Official List, including the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance. 

The details of the corporate governance arrangements set out below are those in force at the date of this report. 

Governance structure
Since the Transfer, the governance structure has been determined by a framework document (the ‘Framework Document’) agreed
between the Company and its sole shareholder, HM Treasury. The Framework Document sets out how the relationship between the
Company and the Shareholder will work in practice and may be revised from time to time by HM Treasury as circumstances change.

The Framework Document is underpinned by the overall aims of the tripartite authorities (comprising HM Treasury, the Bank of England
and the FSA), which are to protect taxpayers, to promote financial stability and to protect consumers. It requires that the Company delivers
a funding and strategy plan to define the objectives of the shareholder and those of the Tripartite authorities (the ‘Business Plan’).

The principles of the Framework Document
The relationship between the Company and the Shareholder operates according to the following principles, under which the Shareholder: 

• has the right to appoint the Chairman of the Board and may appoint one or more non-executive directors; 
• must give its consent for the appointment of other members of the Board proposed to be appointed by the Board’s Nominations

Committee and agrees the terms on which the directors are appointed and incentivised; 
• determines the high level objectives that the Business Plan is designed to achieve and agrees the Business Plan with the Board; 
• must agree any subsequent updates to the Business Plan; 
• reviews with the Board, from time to time, the Company’s strategic options; 
• requires that the Board is accountable to it for delivering the agreed Business Plan; 
• gives the Board the normal commercial freedom to take the action necessary to deliver the Business Plan; 
• monitors the Company’s performance to satisfy itself that the Business Plan is on track; and 
• must give its consent for certain significant actions. 

Implementation of the principles
Board structure and governance 
The Board will continue to operate the following committees: 

• Audit Committee
• Remuneration Committee
• Nominations Committee

Board appointments and composition
The Shareholder considers that the composition of the Board is a critical factor and seeks to secure an environment in which the
Shareholder and the Chairman share a common view about Board composition (including size and balance of experience and
background) and succession. To achieve this:

• the Chairman and either the Chancellor of the Exchequer or a senior official nominated by the Chancellor of the Exchequer (the
‘Nominated Official’) will discuss and confirm Board composition and succession initially, and regularly thereafter, in the light of
performance and the requirements of the Business Plan; 

• one or more non-executive directors nominated by the Shareholder (the ‘Shareholder Directors’) may be appointed to the Board. The
Company acknowledges that the Shareholder Directors, if appointed, intend to liaise with and report to representatives of the
Shareholder from time to time in relation to the business of the Company and decisions made or to be made by the Board in order
to assist with the exercise of their powers and duties as directors of the Company;

• one or more senior representatives of the Shareholder will attend meetings of the Board of the Company in an observer capacity; 
• the Chairman will discuss with the Nominated Official any impending changes to Board membership; 
• the Nominated Official will meet the Chairman of the Nominations Committee, as necessary, to discuss any proposed Board

changes before they become subject to the formal appointment/consent procedure outlined above; and 
• the Board will ensure that suitably rigorous appraisals are made of the effectiveness of the Chairman and Board. 
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Directors’ report
Corporate governance continued

Board responsibilities
The Board is responsible for:

• developing and recommending the Company’s strategic and funding plan (the ‘Business Plan’) to deliver the objectives of the
Shareholder and those of the tripartite authorities; and 

• delivering the Business Plan in accordance with the requirements of the Framework Document. In this respect, decisions on the day-to-day
running of the Company, subject to the Framework Document and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, rest with the
Board in accordance with the Directors’ statutory, common law and fiduciary responsibilities. The Shareholder is committed to giving the Board
the commercial freedom necessary to deliver the agreed Business Plan and will not interfere in day-to-day operational and commercial
matters. 

Monitoring performance 
The Shareholder will regularly monitor the Company’s performance against the Business Plan by means of the following main mechanisms: 

• regular meetings between the Company and the Shareholder to consider progress against the Business Plan; and
• regular financial and business performance monitoring to track the achievement of the Business Plan and the Company’s

performance against agreed objectives, on a timely, regular and appropriate basis.

In addition, the Shareholder has certain monitoring and information access rights, and its approval must be obtained for certain material
transactions.

Board Committees
In accordance with the Framework Document, the Board will continue to operate a number of Committees, each of which has detailed terms
of reference setting out its remit and authority. Details of the membership and roles of each Committee are set out below.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises Michael Buckley (Chairman) and Louise Patten, both of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Committee met six times in 2008.

The Committee monitors, reviews and advises the Board on: 
• all significant matters relating to the Group’s risk strategy and policies;
• the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management processes and its financial and other internal control systems;
• the integrity of the financial statements and external reporting responsibilities;
• the Group’s principal accounting policies; and
• the results of the external audit and any significant matters identified.

The Committee approves the terms of reference for the Internal Audit, Risk and Compliance functions, and reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the activities carried out by those functions. In addition, the Committee reviews the effectiveness of the system of internal
control annually in accordance with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance.

The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditors. It reviews the
scope and results of the annual external audit, its cost-effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. The
Committee also reviews the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditor to ensure that these do not impair the
auditor’s independence or objectivity.

The external auditors may attend all meetings of the Committee and they have direct access to the Committee and its Chairman at all times.
The Committee regularly receives reports of reviews conducted throughout the Company by the Internal Audit function.

In 2008, the Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the external auditors and made a recommendation that they be re-appointed for a
further 12 months. The Board accepted this recommendation and an appropriate resolution was passed at the 2008 Annual General Meeting.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Louise Patten (Chairman) and Michael Buckley, both of whom are independent non-
executive directors. The Committee met four times in 2008.

Subject to compliance with the requirements of the Framework Document, the Committee is responsible for advising the Board on the
remuneration arrangements for the Chairman and the Executive Directors. The Committee also reviews and recommends to the Board the
remuneration arrangements for those executives directly below Board level and the remuneration policies for all other staff.

The Committee takes internal and external professional advice where necessary to discharge its obligations.
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Directors’ report
Corporate governance continued

Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee currently comprises Richard Pym (Chairman), Michael Buckley and Louise Patten. Michael Buckley and Louise Patten are
both independent non-executive directors. The Committee met twice in 2008.

Subject to compliance with the requirements of the Framework Document, the Committee is responsible for reviewing the composition of the Board
and preparing succession plans. The Committee is also responsible for identifying potential executive and non-executive directors, and making
recommendations to the Board concerning the appointment or re-appointment of directors, having regard to the requirement for the Board to have
the appropriate range of skills and experience.

The Committee also reviews succession and management development plans for key executive roles.

Shareholder relations
Following the Transfer, all of the shares in the Company are held by the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for the Shareholder. The relationship with the
sole shareholder is principally determined by the Framework Document agreed between the Company and the Shareholder. The Framework
Document sets out the structure of how the shareholder relationship between the Company and HM Treasury will work in practice.

Internal control 
The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and seeks regular assurance to satisfy itself that the system is functioning
effectively in managing risks in the manner which it has approved. Such a system can only provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as it is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. 

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group has operated a system of internal control, which includes an ongoing risk management
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. During the year, the Board has continued to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of financial and non-financial controls including, operational and compliance controls, risk management, and the
Group’s most significant risks and mitigating actions. 

In addition, as part of the process of preparing this statement, the Board has also performed its annual assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls. In particular, it has considered the events that gave rise to the Transfer. The Board is not aware of any significant failures in internal control
that arose in the business of the Group during 2008 that are not being addressed in accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group.
Management regularly takes action to improve internal controls, either as a result of its own initiative or in response to reports from internal audit and
other oversight review functions. 

Changes in financial regulation continue within the industry. The Group’s risk management processes are kept under regular review to ensure that
the Group responds appropriately both to actual and proposed regulatory changes. 

The Group operates a risk management process, producing a Group-wide risk profile. This identifies the Group’s significant risks, the probability of
those risks occurring and their impact should they occur, and has the prime responsibility for the design and operation of suitable controls and
mitigating actions. The risk management process is complemented by a formalised reporting and escalation process for control issues. Internal audit
has a key role in maintaining the control environment by providing independent assurance on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
systems. The Group Risk Committee oversees the risk management process, regularly considers the Group-wide risk profile, and receives monitoring
reports to update it on progress. 

The Group is committed to developing and maintaining an appropriate risk management framework and culture with the aim of continuing to
ensure that management understands the key risks that the business faces. This is achieved through an organisational structure with clear reporting
lines and governed by appropriate business monitoring mechanisms, codes of conduct and policy statements. 

The system of internal control has been in place throughout 2008 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report & Accounts. In reviewing the
effectiveness of this system, the Board takes into account the work of the Audit Committee which receives reports from the Group Risk Committee on
the Group’s significant risks and how these are being managed. The Board also considers reports from internal audit, external audit, compliance and
management on the system of internal control, adherence to regulatory requirements and material control weaknesses, if any, together with actions
taken to address them. The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports on the outcome of each meeting to the Board, where appropriate, and the
Board also receives minutes of these Committee meetings. 

Going concern
As set out in note1 to the financial statements, HM Treasury have provided various on-demand facilities to the Company and provided comfort to the
directors in relation to the Company’s future financing requirements. These facilities are subject to clearance being obtained from the European
Commission. If such clearance is not obtained then the facilities may be withdrawn. Subject to this material uncertainty pertaining to the Company’s
funding requirements, the directors are satisfied at the time of approval of the financial statements that the Group and the Company have adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.
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Directors’ report
Risk management and control 
Introduction
In accordance with the requirements in the Framework Document referred to on pages 16 to 18, Bradford & Bingley’s approach to risk
management is built on formal governance processes and relies on individual responsibility and collective oversight, informed by
comprehensive reporting. The following sections describe the approach to risk management. The first section covers the Group’s risk
governance structure. The second section explains the way in which the Group identifies, categorises and manages the risks it faces.

Other factors could also affect the Group’s results, including economic factors. Therefore, the risks described below should not be
considered to represent all of the potential risks and uncertainties which could impact the Group. 

Risk governance
The responsibility for the overall framework of risk governance and management lies with the Board. The Board is responsible for
determining risk strategy, setting the Group’s risk appetite and ensuring that risk is monitored and controlled effectively. It is also
responsible for establishing a clearly defined risk management structure with distinct roles and responsibilities. Within that structure, line
managers are responsible for the identification, measurement and management of the risks within their areas of responsibility. 

The Residential Lending Credit Risk function acts as the credit risk control unit with responsibility for the Group’s residential lending credit
risk and rating system. Independent challenge and validation is provided by the Group Risk function. The Treasury Finance teams, which
report into the Group Finance Director, are responsible for identification, measurement and monitoring of wholesale credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk. Independent monitoring of the risk management framework is provided by risk management specialists based in
the Risk, Audit and Compliance functions.

In addition to individual responsibilities for risk management, there is a structure of committees that, under authority delegated by the
Board, have formal responsibility for defined aspects of risk management. The roles and responsibilities of the risk management
committees are set out in the following paragraphs. 

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is a non-executive committee that supports the Board in carrying out its responsibilities for financial reporting,
including accounting policies, internal control and risk assessment. The Audit Committee monitors the ongoing process of the
identification, evaluation and management of all significant risks throughout the Group. 

Executive Committee (‘EXCO’)
EXCO is an advisory committee to support the Executive Chairman in managing the Group’s business. EXCO consists of the Executive
Board Directors, the HR Director and the Commercial Director. 

Group Risk Committee (‘GRC’)
GRC is a sub-committee of EXCO and ensures that the Group’s overall risk management framework is effective and that key risks are
managed cost-effectively and to an acceptable level. 

Asset & Liability Management Committee (‘ALCO’)
ALCO is an advisory committee which supports and advises EXCO on asset and liability management (including interest rate risk
management), related wholesale credit and capital risks and issues. 

Credit Risk Committee (‘CRC’)
CRC is a sub-committee of GRC. It supports and advises GRC in the effective execution of its obligations in respect of residential and
commercial lending credit risks. 

Group Risk
The Group Risk function comprises Operational Risk and Financial Risk and its role is to:

• develop a Group strategy, policy and framework for risk management, aligned with business requirements;
• provide support to the Group in the implementation of the framework;
• bring together analyses of risk concentrations and sensitivities across the Group;
• act as a point of reference for risk and control matters, providing advice to management, sharing best practice and carrying out

special reviews as directed by GRC and ALCO; and
• provide independent assessment of, and challenge to, the business areas’ risk management and profiles to ensure that they are

maintained in a robust manner.

Pages 19 to 22 form
an integral part of the
financial statements
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Directors’ report
Risk management and control continued

Compliance
The role of Compliance is to:

• provide a focal point to co-ordinate communications and consultations with regulatory authorities; 
• oversee the compliance performance of the Group;
• to keep line management, GRC, the Audit Committee and the Board informed of the state of compliance measured against

objective and published performance standards and indicators;
• draw attention to areas of under-performance and improving or worsening trends; and 
• provide rapid alert to particular risks or failings.

Internal audit
Ernst & Young have been contracted to provide internal audit services. However, the management of the Internal Audit function remains
firmly with Bradford & Bingley. The role of Internal Audit is to provide independent and objective assurance that the process for identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Group is appropriate and effectively applied.

Risk categorisation
The Group categorises risk under the following headings:

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the potential financial loss caused by a retail customer or wholesale counterparty failing to meet their obligations to the
Group as they become due. This covers all exposures and includes credit risk on guarantees and irrevocable undrawn facilities.

Risks arising from changes in credit quality remain a central feature of the Group’s business and the recoverability of loans and amounts
due from counterparties are inherent across most of the Group’s activities. Adverse changes in the credit quality of borrowers or a general
deterioration in UK economic conditions could affect the recoverability and value of the Group’s assets and therefore its financial
performance. As credit risk is the main risk to the Group, a credit risk framework has been established as part of the overall governance
framework to measure, mitigate and manage credit risk within the Group’s risk appetite. To a lesser degree, the Group is exposed to
other forms of credit risk, such as those arising from settlement activities where the risk is a consequence of undertaking the activity,
rather than a driver for it. 

The Group’s credit risk framework is based on the allocation of the Group’s lending into risk categories. These provide a sufficient level of
detail to identify, monitor and manage the overall credit risk profile on a monthly basis. These categories are defined in relation to profitability.

In 2008, the categories were defined as follows: 

The assignment of the loans to the different risk categories is based on an assessment of the relative risk of default and the strength of
the underlying security (all retail customer lending being secured) in a severe recession. The resulting risk profile is then projected forward.
For 2008, Board-approved limits were then structured in line with the Group’s risk appetite. As the Group is closed to new business in
2009, the Group’s ability to influence the structure of its balance sheet, and hence alter its risk profile, is restricted to the degree of control
which it has over loan redemptions and credit collections activity. Control is exercised by monitoring that the risk profile remains within
expected bounds.

Within the Group’s Treasury banking book, minimum long-term or short-term credit limits have been set for all counterparties. 

The Group also holds a structured finance portfolio that primarily consists of investments in asset-backed securities (‘ABS’). The credit risk
is driven by the quality of the underlying securitised assets which, in turn, drives the demand for, and therefore marketability of, the issues.
To limit credit risk and concentrations, overall investment in structured investments is capped with separate limits set for the ABS portfolio
and other products.

The limits on the amount of the investments portfolio, and the individual types of assets within it, were reduced for 2008 as part of the
Group’s approach to managing risk. No new investments were made in 2008.

Pages 19 to 22 form
an integral part of the
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medium risk: in the event of a markedly adverse economy, high levels of bad debts would result in profits being negligible 
or losses being incurred; 

medium/low risk: a markedly adverse economy would cause substantial reductions in profitability, but profits would still be positive; 
low risk: only modest reductions in profitability would be recorded even in the event of a markedly adverse economy; and 
negligible risk: these are loans which have low risk of default and, more importantly, such high levels of security that, even in 

a markedly adverse environment, it would not be expected that any bad debt loss would be incurred. 
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Directors’ report
Risk management and control continued

The Group is firmly committed to the management of credit risk in both its lending and wholesale money market activities. In its core lending activities,
the Group employed credit scoring, underwriting and fraud detection techniques that supported credit decision making and worked to minimise
losses. As no new lending is now being undertaken, the focus is on:

• a proactive approach to the identification and control of loan impairment in the Residential Lending Credit Risk and Credit Control areas; 
• fraud investigation; and 
• the use of credit scoring and other techniques to monitor the risk profile of the existing book. The Group Financial Risk Management function

provides challenge and oversight. 

Lending policies and limits are reviewed and approved annually by the Board. The CRC ensures that any exposure to credit risk or significant changes
in policy remain within overall risk exposure levels as agreed by the Board. Authorised credit risk limits for wholesale money market counterparties
reflect the size, depth and quality of a counterparty’s capital base and, where published, credit ratings assigned by the major credit rating agencies. In
addition to the credit risk governance framework outlined above, the Group takes security for mortgage funds advanced and, whilst these are
concentrated in the UK, manages the diversification of its portfolios through limits around individual counterparties and, for commercial lending, types
of counterparty, industry and geographic regions. 

Market risk
Market risk is the potential adverse change in Group income or Group net worth arising from movements in interest rates, exchange rates or other
market prices. Effective identification and management of market risk is essential for maintaining stable net interest income.

The most significant form of market risk to which the Group is exposed is interest rate risk. This typically arises from mismatches between the
repricing dates of the interest-bearing assets and liabilities on the Group’s balance sheet, and from the investment profile of the Group’s capital and
reserves. Group Treasury is responsible for managing this exposure within the risk exposure limits set out in the Balance Sheet Management policy,
as approved by ALCO and the Board. This policy sets out the nature of the market risks that may be taken along with aggregate risk limits and
stipulates the procedures, instruments and controls to be used in managing market risk.

It is ALCO’s responsibility to approve strategies for managing market risk exposures and ensure that Group Treasury implements the strategies so
that the exposures are managed within the Group’s approved policy limits.

The Group assesses its exposure to interest rate movements using a number of techniques. There are however, two principal methods:

i a static framework that considers the impact on the current balance sheet of an immediate movement of interest rates; and
ii a dynamic modelling framework that considers the projected change to both the balance sheet and mortgage product rates over the

following year under various interest rate scenarios.

The results of these analyses are presented to ALCO in order to identify, measure and manage the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk. 

Under the provision of the Transfer, the interest rate characteristics of the balance sheet changed materially with savings balances replaced by loans
from the FSCS and, as a result, revised risk limits were established. 

Limits are placed on the sensitivity of the Group balance sheet to movements in interest rates. Exposures are reviewed as appropriate by senior
management and the Board with a frequency between daily and monthly, related to the granularity of the position. For example, the overall Group
balance sheet interest rate risk exposure position is monitored monthly, whilst several specific portfolios within the balance sheet are reviewed more
frequently on a daily or weekly basis. This reflects the dynamics and materiality of the various portfolios.

Interest rate risk exposure is predominantly managed through the use of interest rate derivatives, principally interest rate swaps and interest rate
futures contracts. Interest rate swaps are over-the-counter arrangements with highly-rated banking counterparties, while futures contracts are
transacted through regulated Futures Exchanges. The Group also uses asset and liability positions to offset exposures naturally, wherever possible to
minimise the costs and risks of arranging transactions external to the Group. 

The Group established a limited trading book in January 2007 which was closed in October 2008. This was subject to a rigid risk limit framework that
was reported daily. The framework included stop loss limits for daily (£0.5m), monthly (£1.0m) and annual (£2.0m) trading losses. Any breaches of
these limits were reported to the Group Finance Director immediately and to ALCO and the GRC. 

Foreign exchange risk
As the Group does not actively seek foreign exchange exposures, with the net exposure to foreign currencies relating primarily to net interest income
streams denominated in the foreign currencies, the limit placed on this risk is small in relation to the Group’s other risk exposures. This exposure limit,
and the small range of foreign currencies it is related to, is set out in the Balance Sheet Management policy that is approved by ALCO and the Board.
The Group raises and invests funds in currencies other than sterling. Accordingly, foreign exchange risk arises from activities related to the Group
managing borrowing costs and investment returns. As with interest rate risk, Group Treasury is responsible for managing this exposure within the
limits set out in the Group’s policies. 

Pages 19 to 22 form
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Directors’ report
Risk management and control continued

Foreign currency exposure is measured daily by Group Treasury taking into consideration all non-sterling assets and liabilities. This
exposure position, broken down by individual foreign currency, is then circulated daily to senior managers with an overall summary
position provided to ALCO on a monthly basis. 

Funds raised in foreign currency are generally converted to sterling using currency swaps. Residual foreign exchange risk is managed
through the use of foreign exchange contracts. It is also managed by matching foreign currency denominated assets with liabilities
denominated in the same foreign currency and vice versa. 

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk management within the Group considers both the overall balance sheet structure and projected daily liquidity requirements,
measuring the combined effect of asset and liability maturity mismatches across the Group and undrawn commitments and other
contingent obligations. The liquidity policy is approved by the Board and the day-to-day management of liquidity is the responsibility of the
Group Treasury function. 

Following the Transfer, the Group’s liquidity risk is reduced. Consequently, the appropriate level of liquidity available at short-notice has
been reviewed and liquidity management now concentrates on forecasting the amount to be drawn under the Working Capital Facility
provided by HM Treasury.

Operational risk
Operational risk is the potential risk of financial loss or impairment to reputation resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes
and systems, whether through the actions of people or from external events. 

Major sources of operational risk include:

• outsourcing of operations;
• dependence on key suppliers;
• IT security;
• internal and external fraud;
• implementation of strategic change;
• regulatory non-compliance (for example, mis-selling); and
• process errors and external threats such as the loss of a critical site.

The Group’s business areas manage this risk through appropriate controls and loss mitigation actions, including insurance. These actions
include a balance of policies, appropriate procedures and internal controls to ensure compliance with laws and regulations. At a detailed
level, risk and control assurance is facilitated by Group Risk, in conjunction with line managers, on the risks and control effectiveness
within their areas of responsibility. 

In addition, specialist support functions provide expertise in risk areas such as information security, health and safety, compliance, fraud
management, security and business continuity management. 

A process is in place for the recognition, capture, assessment, analysis and reporting of risk events. This process is used to help identify
where process and control requirements are needed to reduce the recurrence of risk events. 

The Group has met the eligibility criteria for the adoption of the standardised approach to operational risk and assesses relevant income
from prescribed business lines such as Retail Banking, Retail Brokerage and Commercial Banking. For each business line, the Group’s
average annual published relevant income based on the last three years is calculated. Capital is held to support operational risk for each
business line at prescribed rates from 12% to 18% of its average annual relevant income. 
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Directors’ report
Directors’ remuneration report 
On 25 November 2008, following the Transfer and subsequent changes to the composition of the Board, changes to the constitution and
terms of reference of Board Committees, including the Remuneration Committee, were agreed by the Board. These changes are reflected
in this report.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 (the ‘Regulations’, now contained
in Schedule 7A to the Companies Act 1985) and the provisions of the Combined Code relating to directors’ remuneration. Although the
Board is no longer required to follow these provisions, it has sought to achieve standards equivalent to those attained by listed companies
in this regard.

The Remuneration Committee: 1 January 2008 - 25 November 2008
The role of the Remuneration Committee in this period was to assist the Board in the development and application of remuneration policy
for the executive directors. The Remuneration Committee was composed entirely of independent non-executive directors, as detailed in
the table below. In addition, the Chief Executive and subsequently the Executive Chairman* were invited to attend Remuneration
Committee meetings for those items other than their own arrangements. The Group HR Director also provided advice to the Committee. 

*The Non-executive Chairman, Rod Kent, became Executive Chairman on 1 June 2008 following the retirement of the Chief Executive, Steven
Crawshaw, due to ill health.

The Remuneration Committee met three times between 1 January and 25 November 2008 and, amongst other items, considered:

• the remuneration package for the new Chief Executive;
• the remuneration levels for executive directors;
• the efficacy and competitiveness of the Group’s total reward package;
• the structure of the executive pension arrangements and life assurance provision; and
• the performance of the Remuneration Committee advisers, PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC’) .

The Remuneration Committee: 25 November 2008 onwards
Following the Transfer, the purpose of the Remuneration Committee is four-fold:

i to recommend to the Board the remuneration arrangements for the Executive Chairman and the executive directors.
ii to review the Executive Chairman’s proposals and recommend to the Board the remuneration of the next tier of management.
iii to review the Executive Chairman’s proposals and recommend to the Board the remuneration policies (including any annual

increase) for the Group’s staff in general.
iv to draft a remuneration report for the Board’s approval and inclusion in the Annual Report & Accounts.

‘Remuneration’ is taken as including basic salaries, all incentive schemes, pensions, all other employment benefits and contract terms.

Since 25 November 2008, the Remuneration Committee comprised two independent non-executive directors as follows:

• Louise Patten (Chairman)
• Michael Buckley

The Remuneration Committee met once between 25 November and 31 December 2008. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on www.bbg.co.uk

Advisers
PwC were appointed by the Remuneration Committee as independent advisers to provide external advice on market data, structure and
design of incentives and also services to the Group on employee reward. In addition, PwC provided miscellaneous tax services to the
Group. Mercer were reappointed as actuaries to the Company’s pension scheme. Watson Wyatt Consultants provided advice to the
Remuneration Committee on pension issues.

Louise Patten (Chairman) All Year

Ian Cheshire To 14 November 2008

Rod Kent To 14 November 2008

Stephen Webster To 14 November 2008

Michael Buckley From 25 November 2008
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Remuneration policy 
Up until the Transfer, the objectives of the Remuneration policy, as stated in the 2007 report, were:

• to provide competitive total remuneration for on-target performance, with respect to comparable companies in the UK retail
financial services sector; and

• to provide share-based incentive plans that facilitate the building of a significant stake in the Company by executive directors and
keep a balance between short and long-term focus.

Executive remuneration 
As stated in the 2007 report, total remuneration, up to the date of the Transfer, was heavily geared to performance. Prior to the Transfer,
base salary represented 20% of the total package at maximum performance. Bradford & Bingley’s remuneration policy for 2009 and
subsequent years has yet to be formalised and cannot therefore be stated in this remuneration report. However, it will be structured to
place more importance on fixed pay.

The remuneration elements for 2008 are discussed below:

Basic salary
Basic salary is the only element of pay that is pensionable. Executive directors’ salaries were frozen for 2009 with effect from 1 January
2009. It is proposed that salaries will be next reviewed on 1 January 2010.

Incentive arrangements - The Executive Incentive Plan (‘EIP’)
During 2008, executive directors were eligible to participate in the EIP which encompasses both annual and three year performance. No
awards were made to executive directors under either the short term or the long term components of the EIP in 2008. This plan has now
lapsed and there will not be such a plan going forward for executive directors. 

Employee share scheme 
Executive directors were eligible to participate in the Company’s all-employee share schemes on the same terms as other employees
during 2008. All share schemes were extinguished at the time of the Transfer. However the Company’s share savings schemes remain as
a cash investment vehicle.

Pensions and other benefits
Richard Pym and Chris Willford both receive an annual supplement of 30% of basic salary in lieu of any company pension benefit. 

Roger Hattam receives a 30% salary supplement in respect of his basic salary above the earnings cap. He is an active member of the
final salary based Staff Pension Scheme for basic salary up to the earnings cap, applied by the scheme (currently £117,600 pa). 

Until his resignation as Executive Director on 21 April 2008, Robert Dickie received a 30% salary supplement on his full basic salary and
has deferred pension benefits in the final salary based Staff Pension Scheme. 

Mark Stevens, until his resignation on 4 September 2008, received a 30% salary supplement in respect of his basic salary above the
earnings cap. He was an active member of the final salary based pension scheme for basic salary up to the earnings cap applied to the
scheme (currently £117,600 pa).

Steven Crawshaw received a 30% salary supplement on his full basic salary until his employment terminated on 31 August 2008 by
reason of ill health. With effect from 1 September 2008 he receives an ill health early retirement pension.

In line with typical market practice, other executive benefits are provided to executive directors in the form of a company car (or cash
allowance), housing allowance, private medical insurance, life assurance, permanent disability insurance and accident insurance. The
directors’ emoluments table is set out on page 27. 
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Directors’ report
Directors’ remuneration report continued

Service agreements
Group policy is to employ executive directors on one-year rolling contracts. It is not the Group’s policy to make extra-contractual payments
to executive directors on termination of their service agreement and no such payments were made in 2008.

Directors’ service contracts

* On 20 February 2009, Richard Pym announced that he had decided to make a number of voluntary changes to his contract. These are
set out below. 

Termination arrangements for former executive directors
Steven Crawshaw, who was employed by the Company under a service contract dated 6 April 1999, retired as a director on 31 May 2008
on the grounds of ill health, and his employment with the Company was terminated on 31 August 2008 on the same grounds. He
received payment of his basic salary in lieu of notice for the period up to 28 February 2009.

Robert Dickie, who was employed by the Company under a service contract dated 31 December 2002, resigned as a director on 21 April
2008. In accordance with his terms of employment, he received payment of his basic salary and benefits in lieu of notice for the period,
mitigated by him securing alternative employment. In addition, Robert Dickie received a bonus payment of £57,500 in respect of 2008 as
determined under his compromise arrangements.

Mark Stevens, who was employed by the Company under a service contract dated 1 May 2007, resigned as a director on 4 September
2008. In accordance with his terms of employment, he continued to receive his basic salary and benefits during the period of his notice
up until 28 February 2009.

Appointment of new Chief Executive Officer - remuneration package
Richard Pym was appointed as the new Chief Executive Officer on 18 August 2008 and became Executive Chairman on 14 November
2008. A specific remuneration package was determined by the Board and the Remuneration Committee on his initial appointment, which
for 2008 consisted of base salary, short and long term incentive arrangements. 

He was provided with a contractual cash bonus, equivalent to 50% of basic salary for the period 18 August 2008 to 31 December 2008
and an award of deferred Bradford & Bingley shares, equal to the value of the cash bonus. Following the Transfer, he waived any
entitlement to compensation for the deferred share element of the scheme. He was also granted a conditional award of share options to
the value of 200% of basic salary but as a result of the Transfer the award lapsed. 

On 20 February 2009, Richard Pym announced that he had decided to make three voluntary changes to his contract with effect from 1
April 2009:

i reduce his salary by £400,000 to £350,000.
ii waive his entitlement to his contractual cash bonus of £187,500 due for the period from 1 January 2009 to 30 June 2009 together

with any further bonus entitlement in 2009.
iii amend his contract from a minimum two year period to a notice period of one day. 

Richard Pym*
Steven Crawshaw
Robert Dickie
Roger Hattam
Mark Stevens
Chris Willford

Age at 31 December
2008 

59
47
49
40
39
46

Date of 
service contract

18 August 2008
6 April 1999

31 December 2002
1 May 2007
1 May 2007

30 September 2005

Company’s 
notice period

12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months

Director’s 
notice period

12 months
12 months
12 months

6 months
6 months

12 months

Executive Director
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Non-executive Chairman and Non-executive Directors’ fees
Up until 28 September 2008, fee levels for the Chairman were determined by the Remuneration Committee. Consistent with current best
practice, the Chairman was not eligible to participate in any form of performance-related incentive plan.

Non-executive Chairman, Rod Kent, became Executive Chairman following the departure of Steven Crawshaw due to ill health and
remained in that role until 14 November 2008. No additional remuneration was accepted by Rod Kent on taking these additional
responsibilities.

Fee levels for the non-executive Directors were determined by a committee, which had a membership of the Executive Chairman and the
Group Finance Director. Fee levels were reviewed in 2008, following independent advice, and it was agreed they would remain at the
existing level. Non-executive directors do not participate in any incentive arrangements, do not have service contracts and do not receive
any other benefits. 

Non-executive directorships 
Executive directors who hold non-executive directorships in other companies are permitted to retain their earnings from these posts. 

Since his appointment, Richard Pym received £33,000 for his role as Non-executive Director of Old Mutual plc and £22,000 for his role as
Chairman of BrightHouse Group Limited.

Chris Willford received £12,500 for his role as a non-executive director of the Personal Accounts Delivery Authority, during 2008.

Compliance 
This report sets out the framework of remuneration policies and the tables show how this framework is applied to each individual director
in the year under review.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2008
Payment Total Total

Basic in lieu of emoluments Bonus emoluments
salary/fees Benefits pension Bonus 2008 2007 2007

Executive £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Richard Pym (appointed 18 August 2008) 278,842 4,831 83,653 139,344 506,670 - -
Steven Crawshaw (retired 31 May 2008) 851,667 7,905 146,000 - 1,005,572 272,000 1,112,548
Robert Dickie (resigned 21 April 2008) 402,500 28,124 120,750 57,500 608,874 66,000 480,500
Roger Hattam 365,000 11,226 74,580 - 450,806 132,000 392,047
Mark Stevens (resigned 4 September 2008) 425,834 13,097 86,950 - 525,881 132,000 392,047
Chris Willford 500,000 25,626 150,000 - 675,626 157,500 700,572
Total 2,823,843 90,809 661,933 196,844 3,773,429 759,500 3,077,714
Non-executive
Michael Buckley 51,667 - - - 51,667 - 20,738 
Ian Cheshire (resigned 14 November 2008) 40,000 - - - 40,000 - 48,000 
Nicholas Cosh (resigned 14 November 2008) 62,500 - - - 62,500 - 71,250 
Rod Kent (resigned 14 November 2008) 220,833 - - - 220,833 - 265,000 
Louise Patten 58,000 - - - 58,000 - 54,667 
Stephen Webster (resigned 14 November 2008) 58,333 - - - 58,333 - 70,000 
Total 491,333 - - - 491,333 - 529,655 
Total Directors’ emoluments 3,315,176 90,809 661,933 196,844 4,264,762 759,500 3,607,369 

Notes
Bonus remuneration shown above reflects amounts payable in respect of 2008 for Richard Pym determined under contractual arrangements and for Robert Dickie determined
under his compromise arrangements, pro-rata for time and performance.

Steven Crawshaw retired as a Director on 31 May 2008 on the grounds of ill health and his employment with the Company was terminated on 31 August 2008 on the same
grounds. In accordance with his terms of employment he received payment of £365,000 representing his basic salary in lieu of notice for the period up to 28 February 2009. The
whole of this amount is included in the table above.

Robert Dickie resigned as a Director on 21 April 2008 and in accordance with his terms of employment, received payment of £398,168 representing his basic salary and
benefits, in lieu of notice for the period, mitigated by him securing alternative employment on 31 August 2008. This whole of this amount is included in the table above.

Mark Stevens resigned on 1 September 2008 and in accordance with his terms of employment, continued to receive basic salary and benefits of £220,222 during the period of
notice until 28 February 2009. The whole of this amount is included in the table above.

Benefits received by Directors consist principally of the provision of a company car, health benefits and housing allowance. An amount in lieu of pension entitlement is shown.

Directors’ accrued pension entitlements
Transfer value

Accrued of increase
pension Change Transfer Transfer in accrued

Age as at entitlement in accrued value at value at Change in pension
31 Dec 31 Dec benefit 31 Dec 31 Dec transfer value 31 Dec

2008 2008 during 2008 2008 2007 during 2008 2008

Executive £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Steven Crawshaw (retired 31 May 2008) 47 125 - 3,589 1,876 1,713 672
Robert Dickie (resigned 21 April 2008) 49 31 2 488 450 38 20
Roger Hattam 40 34 4 393 350 43 17
Mark Stevens (resigned 4 September 2008) 39 9 2 85 65 20 16

Notes
Pension disclosures are reported above in accordance with Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002. 

The transfer values reported above reflect the capital value of the relevant pension assessed under market conditions at the end of 2008 and 2007 respectively. The change in
transfer value during 2008 is reduced by the Directors’ contributions to the scheme during 2008. The change in the transfer value of Steven Crawshaw’s pension is due primarily
to his early retirement at the age of 47 on grounds of ill health.

The increase in accrued pension entitlement represents the change in the annual pension to which each Director is entitled as a result of changes in pensionable earnings,
excluding inflation, and increases in pensionable service. Benefits have been valued at a retirement age of 60, with an adjustment made to the post 1 April 2005 benefits to
reflect the fact these are reduced if paid before age 65.

Pension disclosures for Steven Crawshaw and Mark Stevens reflect entitlements, not only for their time as Directors, but whilst in employment for the whole of 2008.

In 2008, pension payments due to former Directors amounted to £157, 248 (2007: £243,954).

Steven Crawshaw elected to receive a Pension Commencement Lump Sum of £412,500 at retirement, and a reduced pension of £105,318pa.
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Directors’ executive incentive plan
Deferred Performance

shares Rights At Award Performance conditions Market
At 31 Dec awarded in issue 31 Dec value (p) period Vesting for matching price on Date of 

Executive 2007 year Vested adjustment Lapsed 2008 per share ends date shares vesting (p) vesting 

Steven Crawshaw
(retired 31 May 2008)
EIP 2004 54,752 - 154,948 - - - 323.00 Dec-07 Feb-08 EPS growth 200.3 13/03/2008
EIP 2005 61,338 - - 3,202 64,540 - 470.75 Dec-08 Feb-09 EPS growth - -
EIP 2006 78,260 - - 4,086 82,346 - 460.00 Dec-09 Feb-10 EPS growth - -
EIS 2007 - 375,524 - 19,607 395,131 - 181.08 Dec-07 Feb-10 Key business - -

objectives 
EIP 2007 - 150,692 - 7,868 158,560 - 180.50 Dec-10 Feb-11 EPS growth - -
Robert Dickie
(resigned 21 April 2008)
EIP 2004 31,026 - 87,803 - - - 323.00 Dec-07 Feb-08 EPS growth 200.3 13/03/2008
EIP 2005 23,791 - 23,791 - - - 470.75 Dec-08 Feb-09 EPS growth 77.25 24/06/2008
EIP 2006 31,423 - 31,423 - - - 460.00 Dec-09 Feb-10 EPS growth 77.25 24/06/2008
EIP 2007 - 36,565 36,565 - - - 180.50 Dec-08 Feb-09 EPS growth 77.25 24/06/2008
Roger Hattam
EIP 2004 20,684 - 58,535 - - - 323.00 Dec-07 Feb-08 EPS growth 200.3 13/03/2008
EIP 2005 18,056 - - 942 18,998 - 470.75 Dec-08 Feb-09 EPS growth - -
EIP 2006 26,806 - - 1,362 27,448 - 460.00 Dec-09 Feb-10 EPS growth - -
EIS 2007 - 182,239 - 9,515 191,754 - 181.08 Dec-07 Feb-09 Key business - -

objectives
EIP 2007 - 73,130 - 3,818 76,948 - 180.50 Dec-10 Feb-11 EPS growth - -
Mark Stevens
(resigned 4 September 2008)
EIP 2004 20,684 - 58,535 - - - 323.00 Dec-07 Feb-08 EPS growth 200.3 13/03/2008
EIP 2005 18,056 - - 942 - - 470.75 Dec-08 Feb-09 EPS growth - -
EIP 2006 26,086 - - 1,362 - - 460.00 Dec-09 Feb-10 EPS growth - -
EIS 2007 - 182,239 - 9,515 191,754 - 181.08 Dec-07 Feb-09 Key business - -

objectives
EIP 2007 - 73,130 - 3,818 76,948 - 180.50 Dec-10 Feb-11 EPS growth - -
Chris Willford
EIP 2005 32,926 - - 1,719 34,645 - 470.75 Dec-08 Feb-09 EPS growth - -
EIP 2006 40,760 - - 2,128 42,888 - 460.00 Dec-09 Feb-10 EPS growth - -
EIS 2007 - 248,508 - 12,975 261,483 - 181.08 Dec-07 Feb-09 Key business - -

objectives
EIP 2007 - 87,257 - 4,556 91,813 - 180.50 Dec-10 Feb-11 EPS growth - -

Notes
Pursuant to the Transfer, all shares were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury on 29 September 2008. The table represents the shareholding of each
Director as at the date of the Transfer or on resignation (which ever was first). 

The EIP 2004 award vested at the end of the three year period. The vested amount includes matching shares awarded subject to the achievement of EPS growth equivalent to
RPI plus 3 - 8%.

The Remuneration Committee exercised discretion and allowed all subsisting awards for Robert Dickie to vest on 24/6/2008.

As a consequence of the rights issue, the number of shares under Bradford & Bingley’s schemes were adjusted by a factor of 1.0522.

On 26/9/2008 the closing mid-market price of ordinary shares in Bradford & Bingley plc was 20.0p and the range during the year 01/01/2008 to 29/09/2008 was 20.0p to
278.75p (Source: Datastream).
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Directors’ share option grants
Earliest Latest

At 31 Dec Granted At 31 Dec Exercise exercise exercise
Executive 2007 in year Exercised Lapsed 2008 price (p) date date 

Richard Pym
(appointed 18 August 2008)

Executive share option scheme - 2,739,726 - 2,739,726 - 54.75 Aug-11 Aug-13

Steven Crawshaw
(retired 31 May 2008)

Executive share option scheme

Prior to appt as Executive Director 48,863 - - 48,863 - 291.83 Mar-04 Mar-11
Post appt as Executive Director 60,205 - - 60,205 - 315.58 Mar-05 Mar-12
Post appt as Executive Director 81,655 - - 81,655 - 281.67 Feb-06 Feb-13
Savings-related share option scheme

Post appt as Executive Director 4,331 - - 4,331 - 371.66 May-11 Oct-11
Post appt as Executive Director - 11,596 - 11,596 - 144.87 May-13 Oct-13

Robert Dickie
(resigned 21 April 2008)

Executive share option scheme

Prior to appt as Executive Director 81,655 - - 81,655 - 281.67 Feb-06 Feb-13

Roger Hattam
Executive share option scheme

Prior to appt as Executive Director 3,149 - - 3,149 - 311.67 Sep-04 Sep-11
Prior to appt as Executive Director 16,160 - - 16,160 - 315.58 Mar-05 Mar-12
Prior to appt as Executive Director 21,301 - - 21,301 - 281.67 Feb-06 Feb-13
Savings-related share option scheme

Post appt as Executive Director 2,535 - - 2,535 - 372.73 May-10 Oct-10
Post appt as Executive Director - 6,626 - 6,626 - 144.87 May-11 Oct-11

Mark Stevens
(resigned 4 September 2008)

Savings-related share option scheme

Prior to appt as Executive Director 1,836 - - 1,836 - 257.93 May-08 Oct-08
Prior to appt as Executive Director 1,267 - - 1,267 - 372.73 May-10 Oct-10
Post appt as Executive Director - 6,626 - 6,626 - 144.87 May-11 Oct-11

Chris Willford
Savings-related share option scheme

Post appt as Executive Director 1,317 - - 1,317 - 372.73 May-12 Oct-12
Post appt as Executive Director - 8,117 - 8,117 - 144.87 May-13 Oct-13

Notes
All share options lapsed during the year due to the Transfer. The table represents the shareholding of each Director as at the date of the Transfer or on resignation (whichever
was first).

The share options exercise price was not adjusted as a consequence of the rights issue, under Bradford & Bingley schemes.

An award was granted to Richard Pym under the Executive Share Options Scheme as part of his appointment, however it lapsed during the year.
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Directors’ report
Corporate social responsibility
Bradford & Bingley’s aim is to conduct its business in a socially responsible manner in respect of employees, customers, local communities
and the environment. 

Workplace and employees
Bradford & Bingley’s employment practices reflect international and national standards covering areas such as minimum working age,
working hours, health and safety, and discrimination. 

The Group promotes diversity and equality across all aspects of working life and believes it is important to share best practice and success.
Opportunities are provided for all staff to develop their skills and knowledge. 

Bradford & Bingley is a member of Opportunity Now, the Employers’ Forum on Disability and the Employers’ Forum on Age. These
organisations look at ways to promote awareness of disability, age, race and gender within the workplace. 

The Group recognises that the health and wellbeing of employees is vital to the business. Comprehensive policies have been agreed with
UBAC, the recognised staff union, on Flexible Working and Fair Treatment at Work. 

Customers
Bradford & Bingley has c. 300,000 mortgage customers to serve and manage, and endeavours to treat each customer as an individual,
with openness, honesty and integrity. The Group complies with the FSA’s formal framework for Treating Customers Fairly. 

Bradford & Bingley works closely with those customers experiencing payment difficulties to exhaust all reasonable efforts before
commencing repossession proceedings, which is viewed as a last resort.

Community 
During 2008, Bradford & Bingley continued its investment into the community especially in Bradford and the Aire Valley, where the
majority of our employees live and work.

In 2008, we focused on two areas of local community support, preventing and alleviating the causes of homelessness and promoting
personal finance education:

• Business Action on Homelessness (‘BAOH’) is the flagship programme of Business in the Community. BAOH is a unique partnership
between leading businesses, homelessness agencies and the government, which aims to help homeless people to find
employment and achieve independent living.

• the UK Career Academy Foundation, which leads and supports a national movement of employers, schools and colleges, working
to raise the aspirations of 16 to 19 year-olds who are considering a career in finance. 

Employees at our offices in Bingley and Crossflatts voted for Sue Ryder Care at Manorlands to be Bradford & Bingley’s charity of the year
in 2008 and fundraising activities helped to raise over £25,000 for the charity. The Community Action Team, which consists of volunteers
from across all functions of the business, assisted 37 other local charities and community groups with funding and support. 

Bradford & Bingley supports other fundraising activities by matching the first £250 of funds raised per employee and by matching
employee donations through a payroll-giving programme. During the year, Bradford & Bingley matched employee fundraising to the total
of £26,443 and matched £97,477 of employee donations.

The environment 
During 2008, Bradford & Bingley sought to improve its environmental performance through a number of initiatives. In order to reduce the
number of single occupancy vehicles travelling to and from its West Yorkshire offices, the Group provided a shuttle service between its
two Aire Valley sites and promoted car sharing by offering staff guaranteed parking spaces.

Bradford & Bingley is a member of the West Yorkshire Metro Travel Network and promotes its commitment to environmentally friendly
travel by offering employees discounted annual travel tickets for the West Yorkshire area.

The main waste streams produced by Bradford & Bingley consist of general office waste, confidential paper waste and IT equipment.
There are procedures in place to recycle paper, plastic, aluminium, toners, metals, IT components and mobile phones.

Corporate social responsibility in 2009 
Since the Transfer, Bradford & Bingley is primarily based in Bingley, West Yorkshire. The 2009 programme will be focused entirely on
supporting the Aire Valley community in which the majority of employees live as well as work. The Community Action Team will continue
to consider requests for funds from local community groups and charities and will continue to support local schools and charities with
volunteering initiatives.
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Directors’ report
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities 
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report & Accounts and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations. 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare both the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU and applicable law. 

The Group and Parent Company financial statements are required by law and IFRS as adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial
position of the Group and Parent Company and the performance for that period; the Companies Act 1985 provides in relation to such
financial statements that references in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are references to
their achieving a fair presentation.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU; and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and Parent

Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Directors’ report
Other matters 
Directors’ interests
Following the Transfer on 29 September 2008, no Director has any interests in shares in the Company. 

Details of the Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company at 31 December 2007 and 28 September 2008 were as follows:

The beneficial holdings shown above include the Director’s personal holdings and those of their spouses and minor children. 

Contingent interests in shares shown above represent shares over which the Directors had conditional rights under the Executive
Incentive Plan and Executive Incentive Scheme 2007.

Pursuant to the terms of the Transfer, all shares were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury on 29 September
2008 and all contingent interests lapsed.

No Director had any material interest during the year in any contract of significance to the Group’s business.

The Company’s Articles of Association provide for an indemnity to the Directors against certain liabilities incurred as a result of performing
their duties as Directors. The indemnities extend to liability for any loss or liability in respect of proven and alleged negligence, default,
breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the affairs of the Company. In addition the Company arranges Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance on behalf of its directors in accordance with the provisions of its Articles and the Companies Act 2006.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group are explained in the Business Review on pages 5 to 6.

Review of business, future developments, principal risks and uncertainties
A review of the business including future developments, principal risks and uncertainties is set out in the Business Review on pages 5 to 6.

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings, which are included in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses amounted to
£12.2m at 31 December 2008. In the Directors’ opinion, based on valuations carried out by the Group’s external qualified Chartered
Surveyors, the total market value of those assets at that date was not significantly different. 

Dividends
In the Interim Financial Report published on 29 August 2008, the Board announced an interim dividend for 2008 of 3.0 pence per share.
This was to be paid to shareholders as a scrip dividend on 6 October 2008. Approval for the payment of the dividend in shares had been
given by the Shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 July 2008. Pursuant to the terms of The Bradford & Bingley plc
Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008, all shares were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury on 29
September 2008 and the dividend was not paid.

The Directors do not propose any further dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Michael Buckley
Roger Hattam
Louise Patten
Chris Willford

At 28 September
2008 

79,560
184,573
111,150
152,685

At 31 December
2007 (or date of

appointment, if later)

-
20,343

7,500
250

At 28 September
2008

-
315,148

-
430,829

At 31 December
2007 (or date of

appointment, if later)

-
64,826

-
73,686

Contingent Interests
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Directors’ report
Other matters continued

Shares
During 2008, the Company raised approximately £401m via a 67 for 50 ordinary shares rights issue at 55 pence per share. Shareholders
approved the rights issue at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 July 2008, where it was agreed that the authorised share
capital of the Company, comprising ordinary shares of 25 pence each, be increased from 882,000,000 shares to 1,845,269,249 shares by
the creation of an additional 963,269,249 shares. Shareholders also authorised the directors to allot shares for the purposes of the rights
issue and on 18 August 2008, 827,670,240 ordinary shares were allotted, increasing the issued ordinary share capital from 617,674,534
shares to 1,445,344,774 shares. The number of ordinary shares of 25 pence each in issue at 31 December 2007 was 617,674,534 and
at 28 September 2008 was 1,445,344,774.

At the AGM in 2008, a resolution was passed authorising the Company to purchase up to 61,700,000 ordinary shares. This was a
renewal of the authority granted in previous years. This authority was not used and expires at the Annual General Meeting in 2009.

On 29 September 2008 pursuant to the terms of the Transfer, all shares were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury. 

Major shareholders
At 28 September 2008, the following interests of 3% or more in the total voting rights of the issued share capital of the Company had
been notified in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the FSA: 

Compensation order
On 29 September 2008 pursuant to the terms of The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008, all shares
were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury. 

HM Treasury has announced its intention to appoint an independent valuer to determine the amount of compensation payable, if any, by
HM Treasury to those whose shares were transferred or whose rights were otherwise affected by the Transfer Order.

Employee involvement
During the year we have continued to maintain and develop policies and approaches which enable:

• sharing information with employees;
• consultation with employees and decisions affecting employees’ interests;
• encouraging employee involvement in the Company’s performance; and
• achieving a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of

the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Bradford & Bingley is committed to carrying out its activities in a socially responsible manner in respect of the environment, employees
(including equal opportunities, employee participation and staff incentives), customers, local communities and other stakeholders.

Standard Life Investments Ltd 9.607%

Barclays Bank PLC 7.020%

HBOS plc 6.774%

Axa S.A. and Group Companies 6.024%

Invesco Ltd 4.838%

Citigroup Global Market Equity Ltd 4.671%

Legal & General Group plc 4.000% 

Lloyds TSB Group plc 3.963%

The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc 3.732%

Prudential plc 3.461%

Further details of the Company’s authorised and issued 
share capital are provided in note 32 to the Accounts

75�

Further details can be found on page 30�
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Directors’ report
Other matters continued

Charitable and political donations
During 2008, the Group allocated £1.4m to its programme of community investment, including payments to charitable organisations of £0.5m.

No contributions were made for political purposes in 2008. We do not make any payments that might be deemed to be political in nature.

Creditor payment policy
It is the policy of the Company to pay creditor invoices within 30 days of the invoice date. The Company is willing to consider requests by small
suppliers for a shorter settlement period. The average number of creditor days in 2008 was 14 days (2007: 13 days).

Annual General Meeting
It is proposed that the AGM will be held on 28 April 2009 and the special business will include resolutions to amend the Company’s Articles of
Association to reflect public ownership and to incorporate certain provisions of the Companies Act 2006. 

Auditor
A resolution to re-appoint KPMG Audit Plc will be put to the Shareholder at the forthcoming AGM. 

Disclosure of information to the Auditor
As at the date of this report each person who is a Director confirms that: 

• so far as each Director is aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and 
• each Director has taken such steps as he or she should have taken as a Director in order to make him or herself aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information. 

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985. 

Paul Hopkinson
Company Secretary, on behalf of the Board
5 March 2009 
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members
of Bradford & Bingley plc
We have audited the Group and Parent Company Financial Statements (the ‘Financial Statements’) of Bradford & Bingley plc for the year ended 31
December 2008 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group and Parent
Company Statements of Recognised Income and Expense, the Group and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements and the related notes. These
Financial Statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 31.

Our responsibility is to audit the Financial Statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Financial Statements give a true and fair view and whether the Financial Statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Directors’ Report is consistent with the Financial Statements.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not
disclosed. 

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report & Accounts and consider whether it is consistent with the audited Financial Statements.
We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the Financial
Statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Financial Statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the Financial Statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s and Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
Financial Statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
• the Group Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at

31 December 2008 and of its profit for the year then ended; 
• the Parent Company Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU as applied in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2008;
• the Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and
• the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the Financial Statements.

Emphasis of matter
In forming our opinion on the Financial Statements, which is not qualified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made within the
basis of preparation section of the Accounting Policies. The continued availability of the financing facilities and guarantee arrangements provided
by HM Treasury, upon which the Group and Company are reliant, is conditional upon approval by the European Commission under the state aid
rules. This condition indicates the existence of a material uncertainty, which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Financial Statements do not include adjustments that would result if the Company was unable to continue to
trade as a going concern.

KPMG Audit Plc 
Chartered Accountants 
Registered Auditor
Leeds
5 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December

2008 2007
Note £m £m

Interest receivable and similar income 3,121.8 2,967.5
Interest expense and similar charges (2,384.4) (2,419.8)
Net interest income 3 737.4 547.7
Fee and commission income 63.3 81.7
Realised gains less losses on financial instruments 40g (120.3) 6.5
Fair value movements 40g 183.0 (49.7)
Hedge ineffectiveness 40g 18.5 (23.5)
Other operating income 4.8 9.6
Net operating income 886.7 572.3
Administrative expenses:

- Ongoing 4 (253.2) (280.2)
- Other net expenses 4 (23.7) -

Loan impairment loss 10 (507.7) (22.5)
Investment impairment loss 14 (191.6) (94.4)
Gain/(loss) on sale of assets and liabilities 2 216.3 (58.0)
Non-operating income 19 7.5 8.8
Profit before taxation 134.3 126.0
Taxation 6 (116.1) (32.8)
Profit for the financial year 18.2 93.2
The notes on pages 41 to 98 form part of these Financial Statements.
The Company’s profit after tax for the financial year was £232.9m (2007: £38.2m). As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company’s Income Statement
has not been presented in these Financial Statements.
The Group’s business and operations comprise one single activity, principally within the United Kingdom. The results above arise from continuing activities and are attributable to
the equity shareholder.
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Balance Sheets
At 31 December 

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

Note £m £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 100.4 209.2 100.4 209.2
Treasury bills - 185.0 - 185.0
Loans and advances to banks 8 3,349.2 2,392.1 1,380.8 1,901.9
Loans and advances to customers 9 41,826.0 40,444.5 58,622.1 51,435.4
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 40 561.3 (53.8) 561.3 (53.8)
Debt securities 13 4,024.7 6,778.7 12,273.4 7,398.2
Derivative financial instruments 40g 6,022.9 1,175.4 1,734.9 468.6
Prepayments and accrued income 15 18.3 28.5 8.8 22.1
Investments in Group undertakings 16 - - 1,244.7 543.7
Other assets 17 2.7 653.7 1.4 652.3
Current tax assets - - - 39.3
Deferred tax assets 18 - 23.8 183.1 21.8
Property, plant and equipment 19 17.1 106.5 13.3 95.8
Intangible assets 20 - 41.0 - 12.6
Total assets 55,922.6 51,984.6 76,124.2 62,932.1
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 21 9,318.5 2,074.4 8,143.9 1,658.5
Other deposits 22 828.1 24,152.6 30,285.4 43,601.8
Statutory Debt 24 18,413.9 - 18,413.9 -
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 23 2,275.7 - 2,275.7 -
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 40 - (5.9) - (5.9)
Derivative financial instruments 40g 1,230.2 498.6 1,309.4 483.2
Debt securities in issue 25 20,666.3 22,308.1 13,364.0 14,409.1
Other liabilities 26 80.7 141.2 66.2 128.1
Accruals and deferred income 27 83.6 84.1 84.8 85.4
Current tax liabilities 66.7 23.7 49.3 -
Deferred tax liabilities 18 90.9 - - -
Post-retirement benefit obligations 28 9.2 22.0 9.2 22.0
Provisions 29 83.6 59.7 83.6 59.7
Subordinated liabilities 30 1,348.7 1,253.7 1,691.6 1,565.3
Other capital instruments 31 268.4 161.6 - -
Total liabilities 54,764.5 50,773.8 75,777.0 62,007.2
Equity
Issued capital and reserves attributable to equity holder of the parent:

- Share capital 32, 33 361.3 154.4 361.3 154.4
- Share premium reserve 33 198.9 4.9 198.9 4.9
- Capital redemption reserve 33 29.2 29.2 29.2 29.2
- Available-for-sale reserve 33 (348.1) (61.9) (1,087.9) (61.9)
- Cash flow hedge reserve 33 (148.5) (60.4) (148.5) (60.4)
- Retained earnings 33 1,065.3 1,144.6 994.2 858.7

Share capital and reserves 1,158.1 1,210.8 347.2 924.9
Total equity and liabilities 55,922.6 51,984.6 76,124.2 62,932.1
The notes on pages 41 to 98 form part of these Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 5 March 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Richard Pym
Executive Chairman

Chris Willford
Group Finance Director
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Statements of Recognised Income and Expense
For the year ended 31 December

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Available-for-sale instruments
- Net losses recognised in equity during the year (312.7) (82.9) (1,340.3) (83.0)
- Amounts transferred from equity and recognised in profit during the year 90.9 (3.4) 90.9 (3.4)

Cash flow hedges
- Net losses recognised in equity during the year (116.5) (110.5) (116.5) (110.5)
- Amounts transferred to profit and loss for the year (5.9) (2.8) (5.9) (2.8)

Actuarial (losses)/gains on post-retirement benefit obligations (17.8) 53.3 (17.8) 53.3
Taxation on the above items taken directly to equity (25.1) 42.8 262.7 42.8
Net expense recognised directly in equity (387.1) (103.5) (1,126.9) (103.6)
Profit for the financial year 18.2 93.2 232.9 38.2
Total recognised expense for the financial year (368.9) (10.3) (894.0) (65.4)
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Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the financial year 18.2 93.2 232.9 38.2
Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flow from/(used in) operating activities

- Income tax charge 116.1 32.8 136.3 2.6
- Depreciation and amortisation 19.3 22.6 13.3 12.2
- Loan impairment loss 509.0 29.3 268.5 4.6
- Investment impairment loss 191.6 94.4 191.6 94.4
- Recoveries of loans and advances previously written off (1.3) (6.8) (1.2) (4.5)
- (Gain)/loss on sale of assets and liabilities (216.3) 58.0 (433.9) 58.0
- Interest on subordinated liabilities and other capital instruments 91.9 91.7 102.9 102.4
- Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (7.5) (4.3) (7.5) (4.5)
- Gains less losses on sale of debt securities 90.9 (3.4) 90.9 (3.4)

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities 811.9 407.5 593.8 300.0
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets

- Loans and advances to banks and customers 425.8 (3,395.3) (7,348.9) (12,774.0)
- Net proceeds from sale of assets 645.9 3,294.8 645.9 3,294.8
- Acquisitions of mortgage portfolios (1,986.6) (4,337.9) - -
- Debt securities 1,339.0 (119.3) (6,260.1) (1,063.3)
- Derivative financial instruments (4,847.5) (884.4) (1,266.3) (190.4)
- Prepayments and accrued income 10.1 (3.5) 13.3 (1.7)
- Other assets 5.1 (632.4) 5.0 (632.4)

Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
- Deposits by banks and other deposits (16,047.5) 2,396.0 (6,838.2) 7,299.7
- Derivative financial instruments 731.6 5.2 826.2 74.4
- Debt securities in issue 546.6 (701.5) 784.3 329.0
- Other liabilities (62.0) (35.6) (65.9) (41.0)
- Accruals and deferred income (136.4) 210.1 4.9 171.9
- Provisions (20.5) (35.1) (33.8) (35.1)
- Income taxes received/(paid) 19.5 (80.4) 53.7 (61.8)
- Other non-cash items (852.7) (165.9) (1,880.6) (165.6)

Net cash used in operating activities (19,417.7) (4,077.7) (20,766.7) (3,495.5)
Cash flows from investing activities

- Proceeds from sale of savings related assets and liabilities 612.0 - 612.0 -
- Cash balances transferred on sale of savings business (76.8) - (12.6) -
- Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (23.9) (34.3) (19.2) (26.9)
- Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 13.0 14.5 10.1 12.2
- Realisation of investment in subsidiary undertaking - - 100.0 -
- Capital injection into subsidiary undertakings - - (811.0) -

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 524.3 (19.8) (120.7) (14.7)
Cash flows from financing activities

- Purchase of own shares held to satisfy employee share plans - (18.7) - (18.7)
- Purchase of own shares for cancellation - (58.6) - (58.6)
- Proceeds from disposal of own shares 3.3 5.2 3.3 5.2
- HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - 2,275.7 -
- Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - 18,413.9 -
- Proceeds from rights issue 400.9 - 400.9 -
- Net proceeds from secured funding 689.3 6,437.7 689.3 6,437.7
- Repayments and purchases of secured funding (2,850.4) (1,374.2) (2,516.8) (1,254.6)
- Interest paid on subordinated liabilities and other capital instruments (92.2) (79.7) (103.2) (90.5)
- Dividends paid (87.9) (126.5) (87.9) (126.5)

Net cash from financing activities 18,752.6 4,785.2 19,075.2 4,894.0
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (140.8) 687.7 (1,812.2) 1,383.8
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4,335.3 3,647.6 4,068.4 2,684.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4,194.5 4,335.3 2,256.2 4,068.4
Represented by cash and assets with original maturity of three months or less within

- Cash and balances at central banks 17.3 21.0 17.3 21.0
- Treasury bills - 185.0 - 185.0
- Loans and advances to banks 3,317.9 2,137.5 1,380.8 1,901.9
- Debt securities 859.3 1,991.8 858.1 1,960.5

4,194.5 4,335.3 2,256.2 4,068.4
Balances maintained with the Bank of England 83.1 188.2 83.1 188.2
The Group maintains balances with the Bank of England as shown above. These balances are not included in cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement.

Cash Flow Statements 
For the year ended 31 December
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

1. Principal accounting policies
Bradford & Bingley plc (‘the Company’) is a
public limited company incorporated in the
United Kingdom under the Companies Act
1985 and registered in England and Wales.

These Financial Statements were authorised
for issue by the Directors on 5 March 2009
and will be put to the shareholder for approval
at the Company’s Annual General Meeting to
be held on 28 April 2009. 

(a) Statement of compliance
The Group Financial Statements incorporate
on a fully consolidated basis the Financial
Statements of the Company and those
entities (including special purpose structures)
which are controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries), together referred to as ‘the
Group’. The Company Financial Statements
present information about the Company as a
separate entity and not about its group.

Both the Company Financial Statements and
the Group Financial Statements have been
prepared and approved by the Directors in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union (‘adopted IFRS’). In publishing
the Company Financial Statements here
together with the Group Financial Statements,
the Company has taken advantage of the
exemption in s230 of the Companies Act 1985
not to present its individual Income Statement
and related notes.

For these 2008 Financial Statements, including
the 2007 comparative financial information
where applicable, the Group and Company
have adopted for the first time the following
statements:

• The revisions to IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’ issued by the IASB
in October 2008 and effective from July
2008. These revisions permit
reclassification of certain financial
instruments out of the ‘fair value through
profit or loss’ and ‘available-for-sale’
categories, under certain circumstances,
and require disclosure of such
reclassifications. Further details of the policy
change are provided in paragraph 1(j)
below. In practice, no financial assets have
been reclassified out of the ‘fair value
through profit or loss’ or ‘available-for-sale’
categories.

• IFRIC 11 ‘IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions’ issued by IFRIC in November
2006. This provides guidance on
accounting for share-based payments
which are satisfied by purchasing existing
shares in the Company, and also guidance
on accounting for share-based payment of
employees of the Company’s subsidiary
undertakings. Adoption of this statement
has had no material impact on the Group’s
or Company’s Income Statements, Balance
Sheets or Cash Flow Statements.

• IFRIC 14 ‘IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding

Requirements and their Interaction’ issued
by IFRIC in July 2007. This statement limits
the extent to which a surplus in respect of a
defined benefit pension scheme may be
recognised in the Balance Sheet. Further
details of the policy change are provided in
paragraph 1(f) below, and details of the
impact on the Group’s and Company’s
Financial Statements are provided in note
28.

For these 2008 Financial Statements the
Group and Company have not adopted the
following statements:
• The February 2008 amendment to IAS 1

‘Presentation of Financial Statements’,
which is mandatory for 2009 financial
statements. This relates to disclosures only,
and adoption would have no impact on the
Group’s or the Company’s Income
Statements, Balance Sheets or Cash Flow
Statements.

• IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ issued by the
IASB in November 2006 and mandatory for
2009 financial statements. This relates to
disclosures only, and adoption would have
no impact on the Group’s or the Company’s
Income Statements, Balance Sheets or
Cash Flow Statements.

(b) Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements are prepared on the
historical cost basis except:

(i) the following assets and liabilities are
carried at their fair value:
• derivative financial instruments;
• financial instruments categorised under IAS

39 as ‘at fair value through profit or loss’;
and

• financial instruments categorised under IAS
39 as ‘available-for-sale’; and

(ii) where fair value hedge accounting has
been applied, the carrying value of hedged
items has been adjusted to take account of
the fair value of the risk which has been
hedged.

In the application of these accounting policies
the Directors have made judgements that
have a significant effect on the Financial
Statements and have also made estimates
that have a significant risk of giving rise to
material adjustment in the next year; these
judgements and estimates are discussed in
note 38 to the Financial Statements.

The Directors consider that the accounting
policies set out in this note are the most
appropriate to the Group’s and the
Company’s circumstances, have been
consistently applied both to the Group and the
Company in dealing with items which are
considered material, and are supported by
reasonable and prudent estimates and
judgements. The accounting policies have
been applied to all periods presented in these
Financial Statements and are consistent with
the accounting policies used by the Group in
preparing its Interim Financial Information for
the six months ended 30 June 2008 except
for the adoption of the revisions to IAS 39

‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’ issued by the IASB in
October 2008 and of IFRIC 11 ‘IFRS 2 - Group
and Treasury Share Transactions’ issued by
IFRIC in November 2006. The Interim Financial
Information was prepared having regard to
the principles of IFRIC 14 ‘IAS 19 - The Limit on
a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction’ issued by
IFRIC in July 2007, though as at 30 June 2008
IFRIC 14 had not been endorsed for use by the
European Union.

The Financial Statements are presented in
pounds sterling, which is the currency of the
Group’s and Company’s primary operating
environment and their functional currency.

The Group’s business and operations
comprise one single continuing activity, and
hence no segmental analysis has been
provided.

The Financial Statements are presented on a
going concern basis.

Principles underlying going concern basis
The Financial Statements of the Group and
Company have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The validity of this basis is
dependent on the funding position of the
Company. At the date of approval of these
Financial Statements the Group and Company
are reliant on the financing facilities and also
upon the guarantee arrangements provided
to the Company by HM Treasury. However, the
continued availability of these facilities is
conditional upon approval by the European
Commission under the state aid rules and
until such approval is granted, there is
considered to be a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and
Company’s ability to continue on a going
concern basis and to realise their assets and
discharge their liabilities in the normal course
of business. If the financing facilities and
guarantee arrangements were withdrawn the
Company and other companies in the Group
may not be able to meet their financial or
funding obligations, which would have a
significant impact on the Group’s operations,
and adjustments may have to be made to
reduce the monetary value of assets and to
provide for further liabilities that may arise.

(c) Basis of consolidation
The Group’s Financial Statements incorporate
on a fully consolidated line-by-line basis the
Financial Statements of the Company and
those entities (including special purpose
structures) which are controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved
where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an
investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. Where subsidiaries have been
acquired during a period, their results are
consolidated into the Group’s Financial
Statements from the date control is
transferred to the Group. Where subsidiaries
have been disposed of, their results are
consolidated to the date of disposal. On the
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acquisition of a business, fair values are
attributed to the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired. Any difference
between the consideration given and the fair
value of the net assets acquired is capitalised
as goodwill.

The Group has securitised various residential
mortgage loans, generally by sale or transfer
to special purpose structures which in turn
issue securities to investors. The special
purpose structures are consolidated line by
line into the Group Financial Statements if they
are, in substance, controlled by the Company.
The Group presently receives substantially all
of the post-tax profits of all the Special
Purpose Vehicle (‘SPV’) entities and hence
retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the securitised loans, and
consequently all of the SPVs are fully
consolidated.

(d) Interest income and expense
For all interest-bearing financial instruments
except derivatives, interest income and
expense are recognised in the Income
Statement on an Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’)
basis.

The EIR basis spreads the interest income or
interest expense over the expected life of the
instrument. The EIR is the rate that at the
inception of the instrument exactly discounts
expected future cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the instrument
back to the initial carrying amount. When
calculating the EIR, future cash flows are
estimated, considering all contractual terms of
the instrument (for example prepayment
options), but potential future credit losses are
not considered. The calculation includes all
directly attributable incremental fees and
costs, premia on acquisition of mortgage
portfolios and all other premia and discounts
as well as interest.

(e) Fee and commission income
Where Value Added Tax (VAT) is charged,
income is stated net of VAT.

Commission receivable from the sale of third
party Regulated Financial Services products is
recognised as income within ‘fee and
commission income’ when the policy goes ‘on
risk’, net of any provision for repayment in the
event of early termination by the customer. If
the commission is receivable on deferred
terms, a deemed interest element of the
commission is separated and recognised on
an EIR basis over the deferred payment period.

Fee and commission income arises on various
other activities and is accounted for within ‘fee
and commission income’ in the Income
Statement on an accruals basis as the services
are performed. Fee and commission income
includes items relating to lending which do not
qualify for inclusion in the EIR on loans.

(f) Post-retirement benefits
The Group operates a number of post-
retirement benefit plans for its employees,
including defined contribution plans, defined

benefit plans and other post-retirement
benefits (principally medical). The costs of
these plans are charged to the Income
Statement and retained earnings in
accordance with IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
arrangement where the employer pays fixed
contributions into a separate fund. The
contributions are charged to the Income
Statement when employees have rendered
the related services, which is generally in the
year of contribution.

A defined benefit plan is a pension
arrangement that defines an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive
during retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, years of service
and salary. The net deficit or surplus on the
plan is carried in the Balance Sheet,
comprising the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent qualified actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. Details of the
actuarial assumptions made are provided in
note 28. Actuarial gains and losses are
charged to retained earnings in full in the
period in which they occur, and pass through
the Statement of Recognised Income and
Expense rather than the Income Statement.
The Company, being the sponsoring company
of the plans, carries on its Balance Sheet the
net deficit or surplus on each plan.

In accordance with IFRIC 14 ‘IAS 19 - The Limit
on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction’, if the
Group’s defined benefit plan has a net
surplus the surplus is capped at nil in the
Group and Company Balance Sheets because
the Group and Company do not have a clear
unconditional right to a refund or to a
reduction in contributions to the plan. The
position is also adjusted to reflect any
minimum funding requirement that the
Company is obligated to pay.

Post-retirement medical benefits are
accounted for in the same way as pension
benefits, with the present value of the defined
benefit obligation being carried as a liability
on the Balance Sheet. 

(g) Share-based payment
The Group and Company operated various
share-based incentive schemes for
employees and officers, including a
Sharesave Scheme. Grants of shares, share
options and other equity instruments were
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
‘Share-based Payment’, under which the fair
value of awards is measured at the date of
grant and charged to the Income Statement
over the period to vesting, with a
corresponding credit to retained earnings.
Further details of the Group’s fair value
methodology are given in note 34. The charge
was made only in respect of the number of
awards that were expected to vest; this
expected number was revised at each

Balance Sheet date and any difference due to
estimate revisions was charged or credited to
the Income Statement over the period to
vesting with a corresponding adjustment to
retained earnings. The proceeds received on
exercise of options net of any directly
attributable transaction costs were credited to
retained earnings.

In previous years the Group purchased some
shares in the Company and held the shares
until they were needed to satisfy share-based
payment commitments. The purchase cost,
including transaction costs, of the shares
which the Group still holds is deducted from
retained earnings.

(h) Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the result
for the year and takes into account taxation
deferred or accelerated arising from
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain items for taxation and for
accounting purposes. Deferred taxation is
provided for in full at the tax rate which is
expected to apply to the period when the
deferred taxation is expected to be realised,
including on tax losses carried forward, and is
not discounted to take account of the
expected timing of realisation. Deferred
taxation assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the
taxable differences can be utilised. Tax
relating to items which are taken directly to
reserves is also taken directly to reserves.

(i) Dividends
In accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events After the
Balance Sheet Date’ dividends payable on
ordinary shares are recognised in retained
earnings once they are appropriately
authorised and are no longer at the discretion
of the Company.

Dividends receivable (including those
receivable from other Group entities) are
recognised once the right to receive payment
is established, in accordance with IAS 18
‘Revenue’.

(j) Financial instruments
In accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’
each financial asset is classified at initial
recognition into one of four categories:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss;

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments;
(iii) Loans and receivables; or
(iv) Available-for-sale;

and each financial liability into one of two
categories:
(v) Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss; or
(vi) Other liabilities.

‘The Fair Value Option’ amendment to IAS 39
permits designation of a financial asset or
financial liability as being at fair value through
profit or loss under wider circumstances than
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had previously been allowed. The Company
uses this amendment to prevent technical
accounting mismatches between the
Company and other Group entities in respect
of accounting for certain intra-Group swap
arrangements; use of this amendment has
had no impact on the results or Balance Sheet
of the Group.

Where the Directors believe it appropriate to
do so, financial assets may be reclassified out
of the ‘fair value through profit or loss’ and
‘available-for-sale’ categories in accordance
with the revisions to IAS 39 issued by the IASB
in October 2008 and effective from July 2008.
In practice, no financial assets have been
reclassified out of the ‘fair value through profit
or loss’ or ‘available-for-sale’ categories.

Measurement of financial instruments is
either at amortised cost (categories (ii), (iii)
and (vi) above) or at fair value (categories (i),
(iv) and (v) above), depending on the category
of financial instrument.

Amortised cost is the amount measured at
initial recognition, adjusted for subsequent
principal and other payments, less cumulative
amortisation calculated using the EIR method;
the amortisation is taken to interest income or
expense depending on whether the instrument
is an asset or a liability. For assets, the
amortised cost balance is reduced where
appropriate by an allowance for amounts which
are considered to be impaired or uncollectible.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction. Where an active
market exists, fair values are based on
quoted market prices. For instruments which
do not have active markets, fair value is
calculated using present value models, which
take individual cash flows together with
assumptions based on market conditions and
credit spreads, and are consistent with
accepted economic methodologies for pricing
financial instruments. Interest income and
interest expense on instruments carried at fair
value are included in the Income Statement in
‘interest receivable and similar income’ or
‘interest expense and similar charges’.
Movements in fair value are recognised in the
‘fair value movements’ line in the Income
Statement, except in the case of instruments
categorised as ‘available-for-sale’, in which
case the fair value movements are taken to
the ‘available-for-sale’ reserve. On sale or
derecognition of an ‘available-for-sale’
instrument the accumulated fair value
movements are transferred from the
‘available-for-sale’ reserve to the ‘realised
gains less losses on financial instruments’ line
of the Income Statement.

Certain certificates of deposit, fixed and
floating rate notes and mortgage-backed
securities are classified as available-for-sale.

In 2007 and 2008 the Group and Company
operated a trading book; this ceased prior to
the end of 2008. The assets and liabilities in

the trading book were categorised as ‘at fair
value through profit or loss’, and the net
trading gains and losses are included in the
Income Statement in ‘realised gains less
losses on financial instruments’.

(k) Recognition and derecognition of
financial assets
Purchases and sales of mortgage portfolios
are accounted for on the completion date. All
other purchases and sales of financial assets
are accounted for on the date of commitment
to buy or sell (the ‘trade date’). The initial
carrying amount of an acquired mortgage
portfolio is the purchase price; this is
considered to be equivalent to the portfolio’s
fair value at the point of purchase. Any
difference between this portfolio purchase
price and the total amount outstanding on the
acquired loans is amortised on an EIR basis in
accordance with paragraph 1(d). A financial
asset is derecognised (i.e. removed from the
Balance Sheet) only when substantially all of
the risks and rewards associated with that
asset have been transferred to another party
and control is lost. In respect of the Company’s
secured funding structures, the Company sells
to another entity the right to receive the cash
flows arising on the loans which have been
securitised. However, the Company receives
substantially all of the post-tax profit of that
entity, and hence retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the securitised loans.
Hence the securitised loans are retained on
the Company’s Balance Sheet.

(l) Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for indications
of possible impairment throughout the year
and at each published Balance Sheet date.

Loans and receivables
For each individual loan which exhibits
indications of impairment (which includes all
loans 12 or more months in arrears, those in
possession and others which management
consider to be individually impaired) the
carrying value of the loan at the Balance
Sheet date is reduced to the net present value
of the expected future cash flows associated
with the loan, calculated at the loan’s original
EIR. These cash flows include, where
appropriate, estimated amounts recoverable
by repossession and sale of the secured
property, taking into account expectations of
movements in house prices between the
Balance Sheet date and the date of sale, and
also taking into account a discount on
property value to reflect a forced sale. All
loans that have been assessed as having no
individual impairment are then assessed
collectively, grouped by loans with similar risk
characteristics. Assessment is made of
impairment arising due to events which are
believed to have occurred by the Balance
Sheet date but had not yet been reported,
taking into account the economic climate in
the market. This collective impairment is
reflected by reducing the carrying value of
total loans. The impairment of the loans is
charged in the Income Statement in the ‘loan
impairment loss’ line.

Interest income is recognised on impaired
loans by applying the original EIR of the loan
to the impaired balance.

A loan is written off and any associated
impairment allowance released when and
only when the property has been taken into
possession and sold. Any subsequent
proceeds are recognised on a cash basis and
offset against ‘loan impairment loss’ in the
Income Statement.

Debt securities held
In general, debt securities are carried at fair
value net of impairment, as detailed in
paragraph 1(m). Impairment is recognised
when the debt security exhibits objective
evidence of impairment or is uncollectible.
Evidence includes:
• Significant financial difficulty;
• Payment defaults;
• Renegotiation of terms due to borrower

difficulty;
• Sustained fall in credit rating;
• Significant restructuring;
• Disappearance of an active market;
• Significant and sustained fall in market

price; and
• Observable data indicating measurable

decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a group of financial assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be
identified within individual assets in the
group. 

Movements in the fair value which are a
reflection of impairment of the long term
value of the debt security are charged to
‘investment impairment loss’ in the Income
Statement. Investment impairment losses
recognised against debt securities would be
reversed in a subsequent period if the
improvement related to an event occurring
after the initial impairment was recognised.

(m) Debt securities held
In general, debt securities intended for use on
a continuing basis in the Group’s activities are
categorised as ‘available-for-sale’, and
carried at fair value, with movements in fair
value being taken to the ‘available-for-sale’
reserve. If a debt security which has been
categorised as ‘available-for-sale’ becomes
impaired, the impairment is charged to the
Income Statement in the ‘investment
impairment loss’ line. Where the Directors
believe it appropriate to do so, debt securities
may be initially categorised as ‘loans and
receivables’, or may subsequently be
reclassified out of the ‘available-for-sale’
category to ‘loans and receivables’ in
accordance with the revisions to IAS 39 issued
by the IASB in October 2008 and effective
from July 2008. In practice, no debt securities
have been reclassified out of the ‘available-
for-sale’ category.
At 31 December 2007, debt securities
included investments in Structured Investment
Vehicles (‘SIVs’) Principal Protected Notes
(‘PPNs’) and Collateralised Debt Obligations
(‘CDOs’). The Group had no entitlement to
board or management representation in
respect of its investment in any SIV, PPN or
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CDO, and could not exert influence, and
therefore the instruments were considered to
fall outside the scope of IAS 27 ‘Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements’, IAS 28 
‘Investments in Associates’ and IAS 31
‘Interests in Joint Ventures’.

(n) Derivative financial instruments and
hedge accounting
The Group enters into derivative contracts in
order to manage exposures to interest rate
risks, foreign currency risks and risks arising
from forecast transactions, in accordance with
IAS 39. As explained in note 1(j), the Company
has used the provisions of the Fair Value
Option amendment to IAS 39 to prevent
technical accounting mismatches in respect of
intra-Group swap arrangements.

All derivatives are carried at fair value in the
Balance Sheet, as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative. The fair value of a derivative includes
any interest accrued on that derivative. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives are charged to the
Income Statement; however by applying the
hedge accounting rules set out in IAS 39 the
changes in fair value of derivatives which are
used to hedge particular risks can either be
mitigated in the Income Statement (fair value
hedging) or deferred to reserves (cash flow
hedging). The Group uses fair value hedge
accounting and cash flow hedge accounting.

One-to-one fair value hedges
Where one or more specific derivative
financial instruments hedge the changes in
fair value of a specific asset or liability,
provided that the hedge arrangement meets
the requirements of IAS 39 to be classed as
‘highly effective’ the associated hedged item
is carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value in
respect of the hedged risk, with any gain or
loss in that fair value recognised in the Income
Statement, mitigating the fair value
movements on the associated derivative
financial instruments. Hence profit volatility is
mitigated. The Income Statement immediately
recognises any hedge accounting
‘ineffectiveness’, that is any difference
between the fair value movement on the
hedging instrument and that on the hedged
item. Where a fair value hedge relationship is
terminated or deemed not to be highly
effective (other than as a result of the hedged
item being derecognised from the Balance
Sheet due to sale or other reason) the fair
value adjustment relating to the terminated
hedge relationship is amortised to the Income
Statement over the period to the date of
maturity of the hedged item. The derivative
continues to be carried at fair value.

Portfolio fair value hedges
Where a group of derivative financial
instruments hedges the interest rate exposure
of a group of assets or liabilities, and the
hedge meets the requirements of IAS 39 to be
classed as ‘highly effective’, the hedge
relationship is accounted for in the same way
as a one-to-one fair value hedge except that
the Balance Sheet carrying value of the
hedged items is not adjusted; instead the

difference between the carrying value and
the fair value in respect of the hedged risk is
carried on the Balance Sheet in ‘fair value
adjustments on portfolio hedging’.

Cash flow hedges 
Where a derivative financial instrument
hedges the variability in cash flows of an asset
or liability, or of a highly probable forecast
transaction, the effective portion of the change
in fair value of the derivative is taken to the
‘cash flow hedge reserve’ and the remaining
portion is charged immediately to the Income
Statement. Where a cash flow hedge is
terminated or deemed not to be effective, the
balance remaining in the cash flow hedge
reserve is amortised to the Income Statement
over the remaining life of the hedged item.
Where a forecast transaction is cash flow
hedged and the transaction is no longer highly
probable, the gain or loss still held in the
reserve is immediately recognised in the
Income Statement.

Hedge effectiveness
At the inception of each hedging
arrangement, the relationship between the
hedging instruments and the hedged items is
documented, as well as the risk management
objective and strategy. Also documented is an
assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in the hedging arrangement are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Under IAS 39 a hedge is deemed to be highly
effective if effectiveness is forecast to fall, and
is actually found to fall, within the 80% to
125% range. Any hedge relationship falling
outside these limits is deemed to be
ineffective and hedge accounting is
discontinued.

Embedded derivatives
Certain financial instruments have derivative
features embedded within them. Where the
economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to
those of the host instrument, and where
changes in value in the host instrument are not
reflected in the Income Statement, 
the embedded derivative is separated from the
host and carried in the Balance Sheet at fair
value within ‘derivative financial instruments’,
with gains and losses on the embedded
derivative being recognised in the Income
Statement. At 31 December 2007 the Group
held some synthetic CDOs which contained
embedded derivatives, and consequently the
fair value of the credit derivative contract was
separated from the host synthetic CDO and
carried on the Balance Sheet at fair value
within ‘derivative financial instruments’, with
changes in its fair value recognised in the
Income Statement. In accordance with IFRIC 9
‘Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’ the
decision as to whether to separate and value
an embedded derivative is reassessed when
and only when the terms of the host contract
are significantly modified.

(o) Shares in Group undertakings
In the Financial Statements of the Company,
shares in Group undertakings are carried at
cost less any impairment. Shares are
reviewed at each published Balance Sheet
date for any indications of impairment. If there
is indication of impairment of any share, the
carrying value of the share is reviewed, and
any impairment identified is charged
immediately in the Income Statement.

(p) Property, plant and equipment 
The cost of additions and major alterations to
land and buildings, equipment, fixtures and
motor vehicles is capitalised. All property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less depreciation.

Depreciation is provided so as to write off the
cost less the estimated residual value of each
significant component of each item of
property, plant and equipment over that
component’s estimated useful life, as follows:

• Land is not depreciated;
• Freehold buildings at 2% per annum on a

straight line basis;
• Leasehold properties over the shorter of the

lease period and 50 years on a straight line
basis;

• Fixtures and fittings at 20% per annum on a
straight line basis;

• Motor vehicles at 25% per annum on a
reducing balance basis;

• Computer equipment at rates ranging from
20% to 33% per annum on a straight line
basis; and

• Other equipment and major alterations to
buildings at 10% per annum on a straight
line basis.

All items of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed annually for impairment. If any item
is considered to be impaired, it is written
down to the higher of value in use and
estimated net proceeds of sale. In addition,
the estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values are also reassessed annually,
and if they are judged to have changed then
the rate of depreciation charged in periods
after the date of the change reflects the
revised estimates.

(q) Leases
Rentals under operating leases are charged
to ‘administrative expenses’ on a straight line
basis to the date of change in the rental
amount. Typically operating leases have rent
review dates in their terms, several years
apart, and between those dates the annual
rent remains constant. Any initial rent-free
period and any lease premia paid are
amortised over the full lease period on a
straight line basis.

When the Group enters into a sale and
leaseback arrangement, the leaseback is
accounted for as a finance lease or an
operating lease, according to its terms. If it is a
finance lease, and the sale and leaseback
gives rise to a profit, the profit is not
recognised immediately but is deferred and
amortised over the lease term. If it is an
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operating lease, any profit or loss is
accounted for in the period of disposal.

(r) Intangible assets
Computer software licences are capitalised as
intangible assets where it is probable that
expected future benefits will flow to the
Group. Thereafter they are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
provided on a straight line basis over their
useful economic lives, which may be up to five
years. Those which have a life expectancy at
the outset of less than two years are not
capitalised but instead their costs are charged
to the Income Statement as they arise. Costs
that are directly associated with developing
identifiable computer software systems are
capitalised if the criteria in IAS 38 ‘Intangible
Assets’ are satisfied; the main criteria are that
the successful completion of the development
project is reasonably certain and that the
software is expected to generate future
economic benefits. Each item of capitalised
developed computer software is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation;
amortisation is provided on a straight line
basis over its estimated useful life. Costs that
do not qualify for capitalisation are charged to
the Income Statement as they arise.
All items of intangible assets are reviewed
annually for impairment. If any item is
considered to be impaired, it is written down
to the impaired value. In addition, the
estimated useful lives are also reassessed
annually, and if they are judged to have
changed then the rate of amortisation
charged in periods after the date of the
change reflects the revised estimates.

(s) Debt and equity securities in issue
Issued securities are classed as liabilities if
they represent a contractual obligation to
deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity. Otherwise they are classed as
equity. Any coupon paid on liabilities is
accounted for as interest expense on an EIR
basis and any coupon on equity as dividends.

On initial recognition, debt issued is measured
at its fair value net of directly attributable issue
and transaction costs. Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the
EIR method to amortise attributable issue and
transaction costs, premia and discounts over
the life of the instrument. These costs are
charged along with interest on the debt to
‘interest expense and similar charges’.
Unamortised amounts are added to or
deducted from the carrying value of the
instrument.

It is the Group’s policy to hedge fixed interest
rate risk on debt issued and to apply fair value
hedge accounting. 

(t) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when, and only
when, the following criteria are all met:

• there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event;

• it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and

• a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted to net present value
using rates which reflect the risks specific to
the provision, if the effect of discounting is
material.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and are released if they no longer
meet the above criteria.

(u) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise of
balances which are highly liquid and have an
original maturity of three months or less.

(v) Foreign currencies
The presentational and functional currency of
the Group and Company is pounds sterling.
Transactions which are not denominated in
pounds sterling are translated into sterling at
the spot rate of exchange on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
which are not denominated in pounds sterling
are translated into sterling at the closing rate
of exchange at the Balance Sheet date. 

Any foreign exchange gains or losses arising
from settlement of transactions at rates
different from those at the date of the
transaction, and any unrealised foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on
unsettled foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities, are included in the Income
Statement.

(w) Financial guarantees
The Company applies insurance accounting to
financial guarantee contracts, and provides
against any claims arising under such contracts.

(x) Loan commitments
Loan commitments are disclosed, but are
accounted for only if there is an onerous
commitment; there were no onerous loan
commitments in the year or previous year. The
commitment ceases to be disclosed once it is
advanced or expires. Loan commitments
comprise commitments to advance cash
sums and also, in respect of lifetime
mortgages, the commitment to continue to
accrue further interest on the loan. The
interest on lifetime mortgages rolls up and is
not payable until redemption of the loan. For
disclosure purposes, an estimate is made of
the future interest which is expected to accrue
on the lifetime mortgages which were
outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date, up
to redemption of these loans. This estimate is
made using actuarial assumptions obtained
from independent actuaries.
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2. Gain/(loss) on sale of assets and liabilities
2008

£m

Consideration on sale of savings related assets and liabilities 612.0
Book value of assets transferred (264.1)
Impairment of assets retained (see notes 19 and 20) (72.7)
Gain on curtailment of post-retirement benefit obligations (see note 28) 23.1
Net transaction and restructuring costs (82.0)
Gain on sale of savings related assets and liabilities 216.3
On 29 September 2008 the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced that by The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008 (‘the Transfer Order’)
under the Banking (Special Provisions) Act 2008, the shares of the Company were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury and the Group’s UK and Isle of
Man savings related assets and liabilities along with its branch network had been transferred to Abbey. These transactions are referred to in this document as the Transfer. The
net transaction and restructuring costs noted in the table include redundancy and other expenses incurred as a result of the Transfer.

2007 2007
Commercial Housing 2007

properties associations Total
£m £m £m

Net proceeds from sale 1,890.0 2,064.0 3,954.0
Book value of assets sold (1,972.1) (2,026.6) (3,998.7)

(82.1) 37.4 (44.7)

less costs (13.3)
Loss on sale of assets (58.0)
In April 2007, the Board took the strategic decision to sell the Group’s commercial property and housing association mortgage portfolios. The sale realised £4.0bn.

3. Net interest income
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Net interest income 737.4 547.7
Average interest-earning assets (‘IEA’) 50,433 49,743
Financed by

- Interest-bearing liabilities 43,603 47,904
- Interest-free liabilities 6,830 1,839

Average rates % %
- Gross yield on IEA 6.19 5.96
- Cost of interest-bearing liabilities (5.61) (5.05)

Interest spread 0.58 0.91
Contribution of interest-free liabilities 0.88 0.19
Net interest margin 1.46 1.10
Average bank base rate 4.68 5.51
Average 3-month LIBOR 5.51 6.00
Average 3-year swap rate 5.03 5.81

Included within interest receivable and similar income are the following amounts:
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Interest accrued on impaired financial assets 17.6 3.7

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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4. Administrative expenses
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Staff costs (see note 5) 85.7 105.7
Property operating lease rentals 6.9 7.7
Depreciation and amortisation (see notes 19 and 20) 19.3 23.7
Other legal and professional services 29.3 26.6
IT costs 42.1 42.6
Other administrative expenses 69.9 73.9
Ongoing administrative expenses 253.2 280.2
Restructuring costs 11.7 -
Contract termination fees 32.0 -
Compensation provision release (20.0) -
Other net expenses 23.7 -

276.9 280.2
Staff costs include Directors’ emoluments of £4.3m (2007: £3.6m). Details of the remuneration of the highest paid director are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 23 to 29.
Restructuring costs include redundancy and other costs associated with the closure of the Group’s mortgage servicing operations in North London and other mortgage sales
activities announced on 25 September 2008.
Contact termination fees are costs payable as a result of terminating agreements for the future purchase of mortgages, thus limiting the Group’s funding and cash flow
requirements, as described in note 11.
During the period the rate of compensation claims fell and the level of provision remaining was reassessed. Consequently £20.0m of the provision was released.

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Remuneration of auditor and associates
- Statutory audit of the Company and consolidated accounts 0.5 0.5

Fees payable to the Group’s auditor and its associates for other services:
- Auditing of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings 0.1 0.1
- Other services pursuant to legislation 1.1 0.1
- Other services relating to taxation 0.2 -
- Regulatory and other services 0.6 0.7

Total 2.5 1.4

5. Staff costs and numbers
The average number of persons employed during the year was as follows:

Full time Part time Full time equivalent
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Group average 2,070 2,451 566 691 2,420 2,862
Company average 1,469 1,811 424 534 1,726 2,246

The full time equivalent is based on the average hours worked by employees in the year. The total full time equivalent headcount at each year end was:
Full time Part time Full time equivalent

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Number Number Number Number Number Number

Group 838 2,760 157 468 942 2,910
Company 451 2,188 65 371 495 2,225

The aggregate costs of these persons were as follows:
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Wages and salaries 75.7 87.4
Social security costs 8.3 8.7
Defined benefit pension costs (see note 28) 1.7 3.0
Defined contribution pension costs (see note 28) 1.7 1.4
Other post-retirement benefits costs (see note 28) 0.7 0.6
Equity-settled share-based payment (see note 34) (2.4) 4.6

85.7 105.7
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6. Taxation
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Current taxation expense
- UK corporation tax on profit for the financial year 103.6 6.1
- Adjustments in respect of previous years (14.4) 7.3

89.2 13.4
Foreign taxation 29.9 22.1
Total current taxation 119.1 35.5
Deferred taxation expense

- Origination and reversal of temporary differences (see note 18) (3.0) (3.4)
- Change in rate effective 1 April 2008 on deferred tax items - 0.7

Total taxation expense per the Income Statement 116.1 32.8
The following current tax was recognised directly in equity during the year

- Relating to available-for-sale debt securities 92.6 25.9
The following tax was recognised in equity during the year in deferred tax

- Relating to cash flow hedge reserve 34.3 32.3
- Relating to available-for-sale debt securities (157.0) -
- Relating to actuarial losses/(gains) on post-retirement benefit obligations 5.0 (15.4)
- Relating to share-based payments - (1.5)

Net (charge)/credit to equity (25.1) 41.3
The 2008 foreign taxation charge includes a charge of £nil (2007: £nil) in respect of previous years.
The prior year credit of £14.4m primarily relates to the agreement of a number of returns in the year which have resulted in the Group being able to release approximately
£15.0m from the current tax creditor.

The total taxation expense differs from the theoretical amount that would be derived by applying the weighted standard UK corporation tax rate
to the Group’s results as follows:

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Profit before taxation 134.3 126.0
UK corporation tax at 28.5%/30% 38.3 37.8
Effects of

- Expenses not deductible for taxation 17.0 4.3
- Deferred tax not recognised 77.3 -
- Effect of overseas tax rates 0.2 (7.2)
- Change in rate effective 1 April 2008 on deferred tax items (1.8) (0.7)
- Adjustments in respect of previous years (14.9) (1.4)

Total taxation charge for the year 116.1 32.8
Effective tax rate (%) 86.4 26.0
Deferred tax appropriately reflects the change to the standard rate of UK corporation tax from 30% to 28% which became effective on 1 April 2008.
The weighted standard rate of UK corporation tax for 2008 was 28.5%.

7. Dividends
Group and Company dividends recognised in the year were as follows:

2008 2007 2008 2007
Pence per share Pence per share £m £m

2006 final dividend - 13.4 - 84.7
2007 interim dividend - 6.7 - 41.8
2007 final dividend 14.3 - 87.9 -

14.3 20.1 87.9 126.5
Proposed final dividend (unaccrued) - 14.3 - 87.9
A 2007 final dividend of 14.3 pence per share was paid on 2 May 2008 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 25 March 2008.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2007: £87.9m). In accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events after the Balance Sheet Date’ the 2007 proposed final
dividend was not accrued at 31 December 2007 as it was not a liability at that date.

48Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

B21448 R&A 2008 BACK  20/3/09  17:37  Page 54



49Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

8. Loans and advances to banks
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Items in the course of collection from other banks 16.1 82.9 16.1 79.1
Amounts due from banks 3,333.1 2,309.2 1,364.7 1,822.8
Total 3,349.2 2,392.1 1,380.8 1,901.9

9. Loans and advances to customers
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Net of impairment (see note 10)
- Advances secured on residential properties 40,988.8 39,565.0 31,583.7 24,566.3
- Other secured advances 837.2 879.5 837.2 879.5
- Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings - - 26,201.2 25,989.6

41,826.0 40,444.5 58,622.1 51,435.4
Loans and advances to customers include advances secured on residential properties that are securitised amounting to £16,221.2m (2007: £20,810.5m) for Group and
£16,221.2m (2007: £20,454.1m) for Company which have been sold to bankruptcy remote special purpose vehicles whereby some of the risks and rewards of the portfolio are
retained by the Group/Company. Accordingly all these loans and advances are retained on the Group’s/Company’s Balance Sheets. Further details are provided in note 12.

Loans and advances to customers comprise the following product types:
Group Balances Balances

At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
£m % £m %

Residential
Loans advanced to customers by the Group

- Buy-to-let 22,198.8 68 20,960.8 67
- Self-cert 5,381.6 17 5,491.9 17
- Standard and other specialist 4,769.3 15 4,959.6 16

Total 32,349.7 100 31,412.3 100
Loans acquired from other lenders

- Buy-to-let 2,690.3 31 2,172.1 27
- Self-cert 3,335.1 39 3,048.2 38
- Standard and other specialist 2,592.2 30 2,789.7 35

Total 8,617.6 100 8,010.0 100
- Buy-to-let 24,889.1 61 23,132.9 59
- Self-cert 8,716.7 21 8,540.1 22
- Standard and other specialist 7,361.5 18 7,749.3 19

Total residential 40,967.3 100 39,422.3 100
Residential 40,967.3 98 39,422.3 97
Commercial property 837.2 2 879.5 3
Housing associations 21.5 - 142.7 -
Total 41,826.0 100 40,444.5 100

Company Balances Balances
At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007

£m % £m %

Residential
- Buy-to-let 19,906.0 63 16,765.1 69
- Self-cert 6,773.2 22 4,185.3 17
- Standard and other specialist 4,883.0 15 3,473.2 14

Total 31,562.2 100 24,423.6 100
- Residential 31,562.2 54 24,423.6 47
- Commercial property 837.2 1 879.5 2
- Housing associations 21.5 - 142.7 -
- Group undertakings 26,201.2 45 25,989.6 51

Total 58,622.1 100 51,435.4 100
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10. Loan impairment loss
Group

On commercial property
On residential mortgages and housing associations Total

2008 £m £m £m

Allowances for credit losses against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
Opening provision at 1 January 2008 54.8 0.1 54.9
Write-offs (65.5) - (65.5)
Loan impairment charge 480.9 30.6 511.5
Discount unwind (2.5) - (2.5)
Net movements during the year 412.9 30.6 443.5
Closing provision at 31 December 2008 467.7 30.7 498.4
The Income Statement charge comprised

- Loan impairment charge 480.9 30.6 511.5
- Recoveries (1.3) - (1.3)
- Discount unwind (2.5) - (2.5)

Total Income Statement charge 477.1 30.6 507.7

2007

Allowances for credit losses against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
Opening provision at 1 January 2007 47.8 1.6 49.4
Write-offs (23.8) - (23.8)
Loan impairment charge/(credit) 30.4 (1.5) 28.9
Discount unwind 0.4 - 0.4 
Net movements during the year 7.0 (1.5) 5.5
Closing provision at 31 December 2007 54.8 0.1 54.9
The Income Statement charge/(credit) comprised

- Loan impairment charge/(credit) 30.4 (1.5) 28.9
- Recoveries (6.8) - (6.8)
- Discount unwind 0.4 - 0.4

Total Income Statement charge/(credit) 24.0 (1.5) 22.5

Company
On commercial property

On residential mortgages and housing associations Total
2008 £m £m £m

Allowances for credit losses against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
Opening provision at 1 January 2008 15.6 0.1 15.7
Write-offs (12.2) - (12.2)
Loan impairment charge 237.9 30.6 268.5
Net movements during the year 225.7 30.6 256.3
Closing provision at 31 December 2008 241.3 30.7 272.0
The Income Statement charge comprised

- Loan impairment charge 237.9 30.6 268.5
- Recoveries (1.2) - (1.2)

Total Income Statement charge 236.7 30.6 267.3

2007

Allowances for credit losses against loans and advances to customers have been made as follows:
Opening provision at 1 January 2007 11.4 1.6 13.0
Write-offs (1.8) - (1.8)
Loan Impairment charge/(credit) 6.0 (1.5) 4.5
Net movements during the year 4.2 (1.5) 2.7
Closing provision at 31 December 2007 15.6 0.1 15.7
The Income Statement charge/(credit) comprised

- Loan impairment charge/(credit) 6.0 (1.5) 4.5
- Recoveries (4.5) - (4.5)

Total Income Statement charge/(credit) 1.5 (1.5) -
In the Balance Sheet these impairment allowances are deducted from the carrying values of the impaired assets.
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10. Loan impairment loss continued
In respect of loans and advances to customers, the Group and Company hold collateral in the form of mortgages over residential properties. The
fair value of this collateral was as follows:

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 53,156.6 70,423.3 45,303.1 48,940.8
Past due but not impaired 3,964.8 3,278.5 2,519.6 1,650.5
Individually impaired 911.2 195.1 316.8 60.3

58,032.6 73,896.9 48,139.5 50,651.6

If the collateral amount on each individual loan were capped at the amount of the balance outstanding, and any surplus of collateral values over
balances outstanding ignored, the fair value of collateral held would be as follows:

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 36,001.8 37,212.7 28,679.1 23,444.9
Past due but not impaired 3,415.7 2,107.8 2,036.3 901.5
Individually impaired 804.0 146.5 292.8 40.9

40,221.5 39,467.0 31,008.2 24,387.3
The individually impaired balances above include the following carrying 
amount of assets in possession, capped at the balance outstanding 61.7 88.1 16.6 21.5
The fair value of the collateral is estimated by taking the most recent valuation of the property and adjusting for positive or negative house price inflation.

Indexed average loan to value (LTV)

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

% % % %

Neither past due nor impaired 69.7 52.8 64.9 47.9
Past due but not impaired 88.9 64.3 82.7 54.6
Individually impaired 93.1 79.6 95.7 71.6
Total book 71.4 55.3 66.1 50.3
After a property has been taken into possession, the process for sale is designed to mitigate any loss or maximise any potential surplus for the borrower.
Typically the property is sold by private treaty, via a locally appointed agent, as quickly as possible and for the best price attainable, taking into consideration market, property and
general economic conditions. If it becomes apparent that the property will not sell by private treaty, consideration is given to submitting the property to an auction, following an
auction appraisal and a recommendation by the Company’s appointed Asset Manager.
During 2008, the number of cases three months or more in arrears has increased significantly to 17,355 cases at 31 December 2008 from 6,170 cases at 31 December 2007. In
percentage terms, these numbers equate to 4.60% of the mortgage book compared to 1.63%. The corresponding value of arrears has increased from £828.2m to £2,514.1m. 
The combination of a economic recession, increasing arrears, house price deflation of c.16% in 2008 and negative forecasts for 2009, and additional fraud provisioning, has
dramatically increased the impairment charge and Balance Sheet provisions during 2008.
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10. Loan impairment loss continued
Further information regarding the credit quality of loans and advances to customers:
Group At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007

On On
commercial commercial

On property On property
residential and housing residential and housing
mortgages associations Total mortgages associations Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 37,089.5 609.5 37,699.0 37,212.7 1,022.3 38,235.0
Past due but not impaired

- up to 3 months 1,831.5 - 1,831.5 1,436.2 - 1,436.2
- 3 to 6 months 917.3 - 917.3 464.6 - 464.6
- 6 to 12 months 777.7 - 777.7 208.2 - 208.2

Individually impaired 819.0 279.9 1,098.9 155.4 - 155.4
41,435.0 889.4 42,324.4 39,477.1 1,022.3 40,499.4

Impairment allowances (467.7) (30.7) (498.4) (54.8) (0.1) (54.9)
Loans and advances to customers net of impairment allowances 40.967.3 858.7 41,826.0 39,422.3 1,022.2 40,444.5
Impairment allowances

- individual 196.6 30.6 227.2 20.0 - 20.0
- collective 271.1 0.1 271.2 34.8 0.1 34.9

Total 467.7 30.7 498.4 54.8 0.1 54.9

Company At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007
On On

commercial commercial
On property On property

residential and housing residential and housing
mortgages associations Total mortgages associations Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Neither past due nor impaired 29,417.2 609.5 30,026.7 23,494.2 1,022.3 24,516.5
Past due but not impaired

- up to 3 months 1,239.6 - 1,239.6 677.1 - 677.1
- 3 to 6 months 518.5 - 518.5 158.4 - 158.4
- 6 to 12 months 325.0 - 325.0 66.3 - 66.3

Individually impaired 303.2 279.9 583.1 43.2 - 43.2
31,803.5 889.4 32,692.9 24,439.2 1,022.3 25,461.5

Impairment allowances (241.3) (30.7) (272.0) (15.6) (0.1) (15.7)
Loans and advances to customers net of impairment allowances 31,562.2 858.7 32,420.9 24,423.6 1,022.2 25,445.8
Impairment allowances

- individual 81.2 30.6 111.8 5.0 - 5.0
- collective 160.1 0.1 160.2 10.6 0.1 10.7

Total 241.3 30.7 272.0 15.6 0.1 15.7
No loans which would otherwise be presented as past due or impaired are excluded from those amounts presented above as a result of renegotiation.
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10. Loan impairment loss continued
Arrears and possessions are monitored for the Group as a whole, and also split by type of product, and split between the loans which the Group
originally advanced to customers and the loans which the Group acquired from other lenders.
Arrears and possessions - total Group At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007

Arrears
Over 3 months

Number of cases Number 16,712 5,610
Proportion of total % 4.43 1.48
Asset value £m 2,404.0 731.2
Proportion of book % 5.87 1.85

Possessions
Number of cases Number 643 560
Proportion of total % 0.17 0.15
Asset value £m 110.1 97.0
Proportion of book % 0.27 0.25

Total arrears and possessions
Number of cases Number 17,355 6,170
Proportion of total % 4.60 1.63
Asset value £m 2,514.1 828.2
Proportion of book % 6.14 2.10
Value of arrears and possessions £m 112.5 49.0
Proportion of total book % 0.27 0.12

Residential loan impairment balance
As % of residential balances % 1.13 0.14
As % of residential arrears and possessions % 18.60 6.62

Analysis of accounts 3+ months in arrears by product At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007

Arrears
Buy-to-let

Number of cases Number 9,511 1,995
Proportion of total % 4.68 1.04
Asset value £m 1,421.7 299.9
Proportion of book % 5.71 1.30

Self-cert
Number of cases Number 3,370 1,433
Proportion of total % 6.09 2.59
Asset value £m 584.7 233.9
Proportion of book % 6.71 2.74

Other
Number of cases Number 3,831 2,182
Proportion of total % 3.23 1.65
Asset value £m 397.6 197.4
Proportion of book % 5.40 2.55

Analysis of accounts 3+ months in arrears: loans advanced to customers by the Group At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007

Arrears
Total

Number of cases Number 11,715 3,838
Proportion of total % 3.70 1.19
Asset value £m 1,605.9 452.0
Proportion of book % 4.96 1.44

Buy-to-let
Number of cases Number 7,931 1,621
Proportion of total % 4.36 0.93
Asset value £m 1,190.4 242.3
Proportion of book % 5.36 1.16

Self-cert
Number of cases Number 1,715 834
Proportion of total % 5.05 2.37
Asset value £m 299.2 135.4
Proportion of book % 5.56 2.47

Other
Number of cases Number 2,069 1,383
Proportion of total % 2.06 1.23
Asset value £m 116.3 74.3
Proportion of book % 2.43 1.50
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10. Loan impairment loss continued
Arrears and possessions continued
Analysis of accounts 3+ months in arrears: loans acquired from other lenders At 31 December 2008 At 31 December 2007

Arrears
Total

Number of cases Number 4,997 1,772
Proportion of total % 8.23 3.03
Asset value £m 798.1 279.2
Proportion of book % 9.26 3.49

Buy-to-let
Number of cases Number 1,580 374
Proportion of total % 7.44 2.06
Asset value £m 231.3 57.6
Proportion of book % 8.60 2.65

Self-cert
Number of cases Number 1,655 599
Proportion of total % 7.75 2.98
Asset value £m 285.5 98.5
Proportion of book % 8.56 3.23

Other
Number of cases Number 1,762 799
Proportion of total % 9.75 3.96
Asset value £m 281.3 123.1
Proportion of book % 10.85 4.41

11. Acquisitions of mortgage portfolios
During the year the Group acquired £1,302.1m (2007: £3,495.1m) of mortgage portfolios from GMAC-RFC Limited (‘GMAC’) and £550.4m (2007:
£648.4m) from Kensington Mortgage Company Limited (‘Kensington’) under contractual agreements for the purchase of mortgage portfolios.
During the year, the Group renegotiated contractual agreements to reduce significantly the value of further mortgage loans the Group is
committed to purchasing. As a result of these negotiations, contract termination fees totalling £32.0m were payable.
At 31 December 2008, the Group's remaining purchase commitments were no more than £250.0m from GMAC and £60.0m from Kensington.
On 30 January 2009 the Group purchased £39.5m of mortgages from Kensington. On 27 February 2009 the Group purchased £248.7m of
mortgages from GMAC, extinguishing any commitment to buy any further mortgages from GMAC.

12. Securitised assets and secured funding
Group
At 31 December 2008 Securitised Loan notes

Date of assets in issue
transaction £m £m

Securitisations
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc* October 2004 807.7 638.3
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc* April 2005 631.4 499.0
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc* August 2006 3,074.9 2,430.1
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc* May 2007 3,157.1 2,495.1
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-2 plc* November 2007 1,240.6 980.5
Bradford & Bingley Warehousing No. 1 LLP* June 2008 1,667.9 914.8
Aire Valley Mortgages 2008-1 plc* July 2008 3,669.4 2,900.0
Bowler Finance plc* July 2008 4,235.6 4,232.8

18,484.6 15,090.6
Less loan notes held by Bradford & Bingley plc (9,503.1) (8,324.7)
Total 8,981.5 6,765.9
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12. Securitised assets and secured funding continued
Group
At 31 December 2008 Securitised Loan notes

Date of assets in issue
transaction £m £m

Covered Bonds
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* May 2004 1,720.8 1,342.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* May 2006 2,620.1 2,043.4
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* June 2006 294.0 229.3
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* October 2006 433.1 337.8
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* June 2007 1,893.9 1,477.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* July 2007 188.4 146.9
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* September 2007 641.1 500.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* October 2007 89.4 69.7
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* January 2008 641.1 500.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* September 2008 2,491.4 1,943.0

11,013.3 8,589.1
Less covered bonds held by Bradford & Bingley plc (3,773.6) (2,943.0)
Total 7,239.7 5,646.1
Total 16,221.2 12,412.0

Group
At 31 December 2007 Securitised Loan notes

Date of assets in issue
transaction £m £m

Securitisations
Aire Valley Finance (No.2) plc October 2000 356.4 333.6
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc* October 2004 1,018.9 775.0
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc* April 2005 1,028.5 782.3
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc* August 2006 3,194.8 2,430.1
Aire Valley Warehousing 3 Ltd* December 2006 1,314.7 1,000.0
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc* May 2007 3,280.3 2,495.1
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-2 plc* November 2007 1,520.2 1,156.3

11,713.8 8,972.4
Less loan notes held by Bradford & Bingley plc (959.6) (737.5)
Total 10,754.2 8,234.9

Covered Bonds
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* May 2004 2,129.2 1,342.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* May 2006 3,303.5 2,082.1
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* June 2006 374.5 236.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* October 2006 621.6 391.8
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* June 2007 2,676.5 1,686.9
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* July 2007 285.1 179.7
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* September 2007 793.4 500.0
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP* October 2007 665.9 419.7

10,849.7 6,838.2
Less covered bonds held by Group entities (793.4) (500.0)
Total 10,056.3 6,338.2
Total 20,810.5 14,573.1
*The Company held £16,221.2m of mortgage assets as at 31 December 2008 (2007: £20,454.1m) within loans and advances to customers to secure funding of £12,412.0m
(2007: £14,239.5m). The secured funding amounts above are the principal amounts calculated using the exchange rates at the date of issue. The carrying amount of this
secured funding, including the hedge adjustments for hedged risk, is included in debt securities in issue (see note 25).
During the year the Group securitised £12,705.4m of mortgage assets under certain securitisation programmes and purchased loan notes in issue relating to these issuances of
£9,575.8m.
2007 figures for securitised assets have been represented so as not to cap the amount at the level of secured funding obtained from the loan notes in issue.
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12. Securitised assets and secured funding continued
A ‘special purpose vehicle’ (‘SPV’) is a structure comprising one or more legal entities, set up to act as a trust for debt investors, with the aim of
obtaining financing. A Group company sells to another entity the right to receive the cash flows arising on certain loans. However, the mortgage
originator receives substantially all of the post-tax profit of that entity, and hence retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of the securitised
loans. Hence the securitised loans are retained on the mortgage originator’s Balance Sheet. For the same reason all SPVs to which the Group has
transferred rights to mortgages are consolidated into the Group Financial Statements.

(a) Aire Valley Finance (No.2) plc
This SPV issued £1,000.0m of loan notes in October 2000 to purchase a £1,000.0m interest in mortgages. A start-up loan of £22.9m in the form
of subordinated debt was provided by Bradford & Bingley plc. The last of the notes were redeemed in full on 15 September 2008. Securitised
assets at 31 December 2008 were £nil (2007: £356.4m), loan notes £nil (2007: £333.6m) and subordinated debt £nil (2007: £22.9m).

(b) Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc
This SPV issued £2,000.0m of loan notes denominated in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling in October 2004 to purchase a £2,000.0m share in the
Master Trust. £225.0m of loan notes were redeemed in September 2005, £500.0m in June 2007, £500.0m in December 2007, £96.0m in March
2008 and £40.7m in June 2008. At 31 December 2008 the value of the share in the Master Trust was £638.3m (2007: £775.0m).

(c) Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc
This SPV issued £998.5m of loan notes denominated in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling in April 2005 to purchase a £998.5m share in the Master
Trust. £216.2m of loan noted were redeemed in December 2007, £267.1m in March 2008 and £16.2m in June 2008. At 31 December 2008 the
value of the share in the Master Trust was £499.0m (2007: £782.3m).

(d) Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc
This SPV issued £2,430.1m of loan notes denominated in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling in August 2006 to purchase a £2,430.1m share in the
Master Trust. At 31 December 2008 the value of the share in the Master Trust was £2,430.1m (2007: £2,430.1m).

(e) Aire Valley Warehousing 3 Ltd
This was a warehouse deal issued in December 2006 for £1,000.0m to purchase a £1,000.0m share in the Master Trust. The notes matured in
July 2008. At 31 December 2008 the value of the share in the Master Trust was £nil (2007: £1,000.0m).

(f) Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc
This SPV issued £2,495.1m of loan notes denominated in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling in May 2007 to purchase a £2,495.1m share in the
Master Trust. At 31 December 2008 the value of the share in the Master Trust was £2,495.1m (2007: £2,495.1m).

(g) Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-2 plc
This SPV issued £1,156.3m of loan notes denominated in Euros and Sterling in November 2007 to purchase a £1,156.3m share in the Master
Trust. In October 2008 £175.8m of loan notes were redeemed. At 31 December 2008 the value of the share in the Master Trust was £980.5m
(2007: £1,156.3m).

(h) Bradford & Bingley Warehousing No. 1 LLP
In June 2008, Bradford & Bingley Warehousing No. 1 LLP agreed a loan facility with Barclays Bank PLC of £1,000.0m with maturity in April 2012,
and securitised assets of £1,826.0m. In October 2008 £85.2m of the loan was redeemed. A start-up loan of £12.0m in the form of subordinated
debt was provided by Bradford & Bingley plc. Securitised assets at 31 December 2008 were £1,667.9m, loan balance £914.8m and subordinated
debt £12.0m.

(i) Aire Valley Mortgages 2008-1 plc
This SPV issued £2,900.0m of loan notes denominated in Euros and Sterling in July 2008 to purchase a £2,900.0m share in the Master Trust. At 31
December 2008 the value of the share in the Master Trust was £2,900.0m.

(j) Bowler Finance plc
This SPV issued £4,450.0m of loan notes denominated in Sterling in July 2008 to purchase a £4,450.0m interest in mortgages. In September 2008
£80.2m and in December 2008 £137.0m of loan notes were redeemed. At 31 December 2008 securitised assets were £4,325.6m and loan
notes were £4,232.8m. 
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12. Securitised assets and secured funding continued
(k) Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP
The Euro 15,000.0m Covered Bond programme was launched in May 2004 with the issue of a Euro 2,000.0m note, with bullet maturity in May
2009. A covered bond is a full recourse debt instrument secured against a pool of eligible mortgages. Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP was
formed, and a trustee was appointed to ensure compliance with the covered bond rules. The pool of mortgages remains on the balance sheet of
the mortgage issuer. This covered bond structure represents a revolving credit agreement. The value of qualifying mortgages may not fall below
the value of the loan notes, and qualifying loans are taken into the partnership to ensure this.
The Covered Bond programme issued further series of loan notes:
In May 2006: Euro 1,000.0m with bullet maturity in May 2011 and Euro 2,000.0m with bullet maturity in May 2016. In May 2008 Euro 55.5m were
bought back and cancelled.
In June 2006: CHF 300.0m with bullet maturity in June 2012 and CHF 250.0m with bullet maturity in June 2016. In December 2007 CHF 15.0m
were bought back and cancelled, and in May 2008 CHF14.9m were bought back and cancelled.
In October 2006: CHF 250.0m with bullet maturity in October 2010, CHF 300.0m with bullet maturity in October 2013, CHF 250.0m with bullet
maturity in October 2018 and CHF 200.0m with bullet maturity in October 2031. In October 2007 CHF 75.0m were bought back and cancelled,
and in May 2008 CHF 128.2m were bought back and cancelled.
In June 2007: Euro 1,250.0m with bullet maturity in June 2010 and Euro 1,250.0m with bullet maturity in June 2017. In May 2008 Euro 311.4m
were bought back and cancelled.
In July 2007: CHF 200.0m with bullet maturity in July 2011. In October 2007 CHF 35.0m, in December 2007 CHF 15.0m and in May 2008 CHF
25.4m were bought back and cancelled.
In July 2007: CHF 200.0m with bullet maturity in July 2015. In October 2007 CHF 40.0m and in May 2008 CHF 36.2m were bought back and
cancelled.
In July 2007: CHF 150.0m with bullet maturity in July 2027. In December 2007 CHF 20.0m and in May 2008 CHF 18.3m were bought back and
cancelled.
In September 2007: GBP 500.0m with bullet maturity in September 2009.
In October 2007: Euro 500.0m with bullet maturity in October 2008 (redeemed in October 2008) and Euro 100.0m with bullet maturity in October
2010.
In January 2008: GBP 500.0m with bullet maturity in October 2012.
In September 2008: GBP 1,800.0m with bullet maturity in April 2012 and GBP 143.0m with bullet maturity in September 2009.
At 31 December 2008 the funding of £8,589.1m (2007: £6,838.2m) was secured against £11,013.3m (2007: £10,849.7m) of mortgages.
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13. Debt securities
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Investment securities issued by public bodies
- Government securities 980.0 1,518.8 980.0 1,518.8

Investment securities issued by other issuers
- Bank and building society certificates of deposit - 1,223.6 - 1,171.5
- Other debt securities 3,044.7 4,036.3 11,293.4 4,707.9

4,024.7 6,778.7 12,273.4 7,398.2
Analysis of debt securities by listing status

- Listed 4,024.7 6,145.2 12,273.4 6,092.0
- Unlisted - 633.5 - 1,306.2

4,024.7 6,778.7 12,273.4 7,398.2
Debt securities are carried at fair value, which is calculated through reference to a market price. Where no reliable market price exists an assessment is made as to the value of
the debt security based on the net present value of the future expected cash flows. At 31 December 2008 all debt securities are valued by reference to a market price and no
modelled valuations are used.
Debt securities are treated as ‘available-for-sale’ with changes in fair value recorded as a movement in reserves or, in the case of embedded derivatives attached to collateralised
debt obligations, through the Income Statement. Where fair value estimates show significant reductions in market price or where other indicators of potential impairment have
occurred (for example, ratings downgrades, significant or prolonged decline in market price, or a failure of the vehicle to meet contractual liquidity requirements) impairment is
assessed. Any reduction that is considered to be permanent is then taken as a charge through the ‘investment impairment loss’ line on the Income Statement. 

The risks in the Group’s portfolio are managed on a Group basis. An analysis of the Group’s and Company’s liquidity and investment portfolio is
provided below: 
Group Baa1 Caa1 and
Wholesale assets 2008 Aaa Aa A1 to B3 below
At 31 December £m % % % % %

Cash and balances at central banks 100.4 100 - - - -

Loans and advances to banks:
- Reverse repos - - - - - -
- Bank and time deposits 552.6 3 36 61 - -
- Cash and other collateral 2,796.6 - 66 34 - -

Total loans and advances to banks 3,349.2 - 57 43 - -

Debt securities:
Liquidity portfolio:

- UK Government securities 980.0 100 - - - -
- Bank and supranational bonds 1,379.2 81 19 - - -
- Bank certificates of deposit - - - - - -
- UK and European Aaa mortgage backed securities 1,009.9 100 - - - -
- Other asset backed securities 183.4 48 35 13 4 -

Total liquidity portfolio 3,552.5 90 9 1 - -

Structured finance portfolio:
- Principal protected notes 428.2 64 17 19 - -
- Collateralised debt obligations - - - - - -
- Collateralised loan obligations - - - - - -
- Structured investment vehicles - - - - - -
- Credit funds 44.0 - - 60 40 -

Total structured finance portfolio 472.2 58 15 23 4 -

Total debt securities 4,024.7 48 31 21 - -
Total wholesale assets excluding embedded derivatives 7,474.3 49 32 19 - -

Embedded derivatives -
Total market value of wholesale assets 7,474.3
Structured finance portfolio net of embedded derivatives 472.2

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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13. Debt securities continued
Group Baa1 Caa1 and
Wholesale assets 2007 Aaa Aa A to B3 below
At 31 December £m % % % % %

Cash and balances at central banks 209.2 100 - - - -

Treasury bills 185.0 100 - - - -

Loans and advances to banks:
- Reverse repos 253.4 100 - - - -
- Bank and time deposits 1,344.6 15 82 3 - -
- Cash and other collateral 794.1 24 76 - - -

Total loans and advances to banks 2,392.1 27 71 2 - -

Debt securities:
Liquidity portfolio:

- UK Government securities 1,518.8 100 - - - -
- Bank and supranational bonds 1,398.8 77 21 2 - -
- Bank certificates of deposit 1,223.6 16 74 10 - -
- UK and European Aaa mortgage backed securities 1,204.3 100 - - - -
- Other asset backed securities 257.4 41 37 16 6 -

Total liquidity portfolio 5,602.9 73 23 4 - -

Structured finance portfolio:
- Principal protected notes 582.0 41 51 8 - -
- Collateralised debt obligations 218.4 76 15 7 2 -
- Collateralised loan obligations 238.2 58 32 5 5 -
- Structured investment vehicles 63.5 - - - - 100
- Credit funds 73.7 - 8 60 32 -

Total structured finance portfolio 1,175.8 46 35 10 4 5

Total debt securities 6,778.7 69 25 4 1 1
Total wholesale assets excluding embedded derivatives 9,565.0 59 36 3 1 1

(49.7)
Total market value of wholesale assets 9,515.3

1,126.1

Embedded derivatives are carried within derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

Embedded derivatives

Structured finance portfolio net of embedded derivatives
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13. Debt securities continued
Company Baa1 Caa1 and
Wholesale assets 2008 Aaa Aa A to B3 below
At 31 December £m % % % % %

Cash and balances at central banks 100.4 100 - - - -

Loans and advances to banks:
- Reverse repos - - - - - -
- Bank and time deposits 552.6 3 36 61 - -
- Cash and other collateral 828.2 - 51 49 - -

Total loans and advances to banks 1,380.8 6 55 39 - -

Debt securities:
Liquidity portfolio:

- UK Government securities 980.0 100 - - - -
- Bank and supranational bonds 1,379.6 81 19 - - -
- Bank certificates of deposit - - - - - -
- UK and European Aaa mortgage backed securities 9,147.4 80 1 - 19 -
- Other asset backed securities 183.1 48 35 13 4 -

Total liquidity portfolio 11,690.1 81 4 - 15 -

Structured finance portfolio:
- Principal protected notes 428.2 64 17 19 - -
- Collateralised debt obligations - - - - - -
- Collateralised loan obligations - - - - - -
- Structured investment vehicles - - - - - -
- Credit funds 155.1 - - 18 12 70

Total structured finance portfolio 583.3 58 15 23 4 -

Total debt securities 12,273.4 79 4 1 12 4
Total wholesale assets excluding embedded derivatives 13,754.6 72 9 5 10 4

Embedded derivatives -
Total market value of wholesale assets 13,754.6
Structured finance portfolio net of embedded derivatives 583.3
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13. Debt securities continued
Company Baa1 Caa1 and
Wholesale assets 2007 Aaa Aa A to B3 below
At 31 December £m % % % % %

Cash and balances at central banks 209.2 100 - - - -

Treasury bills 185.0 100 - - - -

Loans and advances to banks:
- Reverse repos 253.4 100 - - - -
- Bank and time deposits 1,344.6 15 82 3 - -
- Cash and other collateral 303.9 35 65 - - -

Total loans and advances to banks 1,901.9 30 68 2 - -

Debt securities:
Liquidity portfolio:

- UK Government securities 1,518.8 100 - - - -
- Bank and supranational bonds 1,101.7 95 3 2 - -
- Bank certificates of deposit 1,171.5 17 72 11 - -
- UK and European Aaa mortgage backed securities 1,660.0 100 - - - -
- Other asset backed securities 555.2 20 43 7 30 -
- Other 215.2 - - 100 - -

Total liquidity portfolio 6,222.4 73 17 7 3 -

Structured finance portfolio:
- Principal protected notes 582.0 41 51 8 - -
- Collateralised debt obligations 218.4 76 15 7 2 -
- Collateralised loan obligations 238.2 58 32 5 5 -
- Structured investment vehicles 63.5 - - - - 100
- Credit funds 73.7 - 8 60 32 -

Total structured finance portfolio 1,175.8 46 35 10 4 5

Total debt securities 7,398.2 68 21 7 3 1
Total wholesale assets excluding embedded derivatives 9,694.3 62 29 4 2 3

(49.7)
9,644.6
1,126.1

Embedded derivatives are carried within derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities on the Balance Sheet.

Additional analysis of the underlying collateral within the structured finance portfolio by geographic region and by type of exposure is provided in
the table below:
Group Analysis of investment by geographic region Analysis of investment by type of asset
Structured finance portfolio Mortgage Asset

backed backed Corporate
UK Europe US Other Total securities securities loans Other Total

2008 £m % % % % % % % % % %

Principal protected notes 428.2 52 41 6 1 100 - 2 84 14 100
Collateralised debt obligations - - - - - - - - - - -
Collateralised loan obligations - - - - - - - - - - -
Structured investment vehicles - - - - - - - - - - -
Credit funds 44.0 - 100 - - 100 - - 83 17 100

472.2 100 100

Analysis of investment by geographic region Analysis of investment by type of asset
Mortgage Asset

backed backed Corporate
UK Europe US Other Total securities securities loans Other Total

2007 £m % % % % % % % % % %

Principal protected notes 582.0 48 48 3 1 100 - 3 62 35 100
Collateralised debt obligations 218.4 - 28 71 1 100 49 - 51 - 100
Collateralised loan obligations 238.2 - 57 43 - 100 - - 100 - 100
Structured investment vehicles 63.5 21 19 52 8 100 - 100 - - 100
Credit funds 73.7 9 91 - - 100 - - 74 26 100

1,175.8 100 100

Embedded derivatives
Total market value of wholesale assets
Structured finance portfolio net of embedded derivatives

B21448 R&A 2008 BACK  20/3/09  17:37  Page 67



Notes to the Financial Statements 

13. Debt securities continued
Company Analysis of investment by geographic region Analysis of investment by type of asset
Structured finance portfolio Mortgage Asset

backed backed Corporate
UK Europe US Other Total securities securities loans Other Total

2008 £m % % % % % % % % % %

Principal protected notes 428.2 52 41 6 1 100 - 2 84 14 100
Collateralised debt obligations - - - - - - - - - - -
Collateralised loan obligations - - - - - - - - - - -
Structured investment vehicles - - - - - - - - - - -
Credit funds 155.1 72 28 - - 100 - - 24 76 100

583.3 100 100

Analysis of investment by geographic region Analysis of investment by type of asset
Mortgage Asset

backed backed Corporate
UK Europe US Other Total securities securities loans Other Total

2007 £m % % % % % % % % % %

Principal protected notes 582.0 48 48 3 1 100 - 3 62 35 100
Collateralised debt obligations 218.4 - 28 71 1 100 49 - 51 - 100
Collateralised loan obligations 238.2 - 57 43 - 100 - - 100 - 100
Structured investment vehicles 63.5 21 19 52 8 100 - 100 - - 100
Credit funds 73.7 17 83 - - 100 - - 74 26 100

1,175.8 100 100

14. Investment impairment loss
2008 2007

£m £m

Total liquidity portfolio (10.9) -
Structured finance portfolio:

- Principal protected notes (84.2) -
- Collateralised debt obligations (26.6) (30.2)
- Collateralised loan obligations (1.8) -
- Structured investment vehicles (47.9) (64.2)
- Credit funds (20.2) -

Total structured finance portfolio (180.7) (94.4)

Total debt securities (191.6) (94.4)

15. Prepayments and accrued income
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Commission receivable 3.4 7.3 3.6 7.3
Other 14.9 21.2 5.2 14.8

18.3 28.5 8.8 22.1
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16. Investments in Group undertakings
Company 2008 2007

£m £m

At 1 January 543.7 543.7
Investments 811.0 -
Disposals (110.0) -
At 31 December 1,244.7 543.7

Investments comprise:
Shares 433.7 543.7
Loans 811.0 -

1,244.7 543.7
During the year, two subsidiary undertakings of the Company repaid external borrowings totalling £800.0m. To enable the repayments, the subsidiaries borrowed £811.0m
from the Company. The Company then converted these loans into capital contributions.

During 2008 the Company transferred its holding in its Isle of Man subsidiary Bradford & Bingley International Limited to Abbey as described in note 2 ‘Gain/(loss) on sale of
assets and liabilities’. 

The principal trading subsidiary undertakings of Bradford & Bingley plc at 31 December 2008 held directly or indirectly, all of which are fully
consolidated into the Group Financial Statements, are listed below:

Country of Class of
incorporation Major activity shares held Interest

Direct
Bradford & Bingley Investments England Holding company Ordinary 100%
Bradford & Bingley Treasury Services (Ireland) England Treasury activities Ordinary 100%
Indirect
Mortgage Express England Residential mortgage lending Ordinary 100%

SPVs
The following entities are SPVs established in connection with the Group’s securitisation and covered bond programmes (see note 12). The Company
has no ownership interest in these companies but they are regarded as subsidiaries as they are, in substance, controlled by the Company.

Country of
incorporation Major activity

Aire Valley Finance (No.2) plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Mortgages 2004-1 plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Mortgages 2005-1 plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Mortgages 2006-1 plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-1 plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Mortgages 2007-2 plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Mortgages 2008-1 plc England Debt issuance
Aire Valley Warehousing 3 Ltd England Debt issuance
Bowler Finance plc England Debt issuance
Bradford & Bingley Warehousing No. 1 LLP England Mortgage funding
Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP England Mortgage funding
Bradford & Bingley Investments, Bradford & Bingley Treasury Services (Ireland) and Mortgage Express are all unlimited companies. No fair value is provided in respect of shares in
Group undertakings as these shares do not have a quoted market price.
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17. Other assets
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Consideration due in respect of sale of assets - 645.9 - 645.9
Available-for-sale equity investments - 2.1 - 2.1
Other 2.7 5.7 1.4 4.3

2.7 653.7 1.4 652.3

18. Deferred taxation
The net deferred taxation asset/(liability) is attributable to the following:
Group Assets Liabilities Net

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Change in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS 12.3 14.1 (16.8) (19.2) (4.5) (5.1)
Cash flow hedges 57.7 23.4 - - 57.7 23.4
Accelerated tax depreciation 5.7 3.7 - - 5.7 3.7
Fair value movements 1.5 1.2 (299.2) (2.5) (297.7) (1.3)
Employee benefits 19.2 27.6 (19.5) (24.5) (0.3) 3.1
Taxation value of losses carried forward 148.2 - - - 148.2 -

244.6 70.0 (335.5) (46.2) (90.9) 23.8
Offset (244.6) (46.2) 244.6 46.2 - -

- 23.8 (90.9) - (90.9) 23.8
£202.5m (2007: £nil) of deferred tax assets have not been recognised, relating to unused tax losses of £723.1m. Due to uncertainty as to whether the Group will be permitted to
carry forward losses which arose before the Transfer and the sale to Abbey of savings related assets and liabilities, these deferred tax assets have not been recognised.
£148.2m of deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of losses which arose after the Transfer and the sale to Abbey; management expectations, based on detailed
business plans, are that there will be sufficient taxable profits in future years to utilise these losses.

Company Assets Liabilities Net
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Change in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS 7.4 8.5 (12.9) (14.7) (5.5) (6.2)
Cash flow hedges 57.7 23.4 - - 57.7 23.4
Accelerated tax depreciation 2.2 1.5 - - 2.2 1.5
Fair value movements - - (1.7) - (1.7) -
Employee benefits 19.2 27.6 (19.5) (24.5) (0.3) 3.1
Taxation value of losses carried forward 130.7 - - - 130.7 -

217.2 61.0 (34.1) (39.2) 183.1 21.8
Offset (34.1) (39.2) 34.1 39.2 - -

183.1 21.8 - - 183.1 21.8
£158.3m (2007: £nil) of deferred tax assets have not been recognised, relating to unused tax losses of £565.4m. Due to uncertainty as to whether the Company will be
permitted to carry forward losses which arose before the Transfer and the sale to Abbey of savings related assets and liabilities, these deferred tax assets have not been
recognised. £130.7m of deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of losses which arose after the Transfer and the sale to Abbey; management expectations, based
on detailed business plans, are that there will be sufficient taxable profits in future years to utilise these losses.

The movements in the Group’s temporary differences during the year and previous year were as follows:
At Recognised Recognised At 

1 January 2008 in income in equity 31 December 2008
£m £m £m £m

Change in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (5.1) 0.6 - (4.5)
Cash flow hedges 23.4 - 34.3 57.7
Accelerated tax depreciation 3.7 2.0 - 5.7
Fair value movements (1.3) (8.7) (287.7) (297.7)
Employee benefits 3.1 (8.4) 5.0 (0.3)
Taxation value of losses carried forward - 17.5 130.7 148.2

23.8 3.0 (117.7) (90.9)
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18. Deferred taxation continued
At Recognised Recognised At 

1 January 2007 in income in equity 31 December 2007
£m £m £m £m

Change in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (6.1) 1.0 - (5.1)
Cash flow hedges (8.9) - 32.3 23.4
Accelerated tax depreciation 1.0 2.7 - 3.7
Fair value movements 5.2 (6.5) - (1.3)
Employee benefits 17.4 2.6 (16.9) 3.1
Taxation value of losses carried forward (2.9) 2.9 - -

5.7 2.7 15.4 23.8

The movements in the Company’s temporary differences during the year and previous year were as follows:
At Recognised Recognised At 

1 January 2008 in income in equity 31 December 2008
£m £m £m £m

Change in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (6.2) 0.7 - (5.5)
Cash flow hedges 23.4 - 34.3 57.7
Accelerated tax depreciation 1.5 0.7 - 2.2
Fair value movements - (1.7) - (1.7)
Employee benefits 3.1 (8.4) 5.0 (0.3)
Taxation value of losses carried forward - - 130.7 130.7

21.8 (8.7) 170.0 183.1

At Recognised Recognised At 
1 January 2007 in income in equity 31 December 2007

£m £m £m £m

Change in accounting basis on adoption of IFRS (7.5) 1.3 - (6.2)
Cash flow hedges (8.9) - 32.3 23.4
Accelerated tax depreciation 3.4 (1.9) - 1.5
Fair value movements 3.6 (3.6) - -
Employee benefits 17.4 2.6 (16.9) 3.1

8.0 (1.6) 15.4 21.8
Deferred taxation appropriately reflects the change to the standard rate of UK corporation tax from 30% to 28% which became effective on 1 April 2008.
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19. Property, plant and equipment 
Group Equipment,

Land and fixtures and
buildings vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 94.6 107.7 202.3
Additions 0.1 16.9 17.0
Disposals to Abbey (55.8) (38.9) (94.7)
Disposals - other (5.3) (17.7) (23.0)
Written off (3.8) (4.9) (8.7)
At 31 December 2008 29.8 63.1 92.9
Depreciation
At 1 January 2008 28.1 67.7 95.8
Depreciation charge for the year 1.0 8.8 9.8
Impairment charge 15.0 25.5 40.5
Disposals to Abbey (20.1) (24.0) (44.1)
Disposals - other (2.6) (14.9) (17.5)
Written off (3.8) (4.9) (8.7)
At 31 December 2008 17.6 58.2 75.8
Net book value
At 1 January 2008 66.5 40.0 106.5
At 31 December 2008 12.2 4.9 17.1

Group Equipment,
Land and fixtures and
buildings vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2007 99.8 94.6 194.4
Additions 1.1 28.2 29.3
Disposals (6.3) (15.1) (21.4)
At 31 December 2007 94.6 107.7 202.3
Depreciation
At 1 January 2007 30.1 73.5 103.6
Depreciation charge for the year 1.1 6.6 7.7
Disposals (3.1) (12.4) (15.5)
At 31 December 2007 28.1 67.7 95.8
Net book value
At 1 January 2007 69.7 21.1 90.8
At 31 December 2007 66.5 40.0 106.5
Property, plant and equipment was transferred to Abbey at its net book value of £50.6m (see note 2 - ‘Gain/(loss) on sale of assets and liabilities’).
In addition, sale proceeds from the sale and leaseback of land and buildings were £10.1m (2007: £10.1m) resulting in a profit of £7.5m (2007: £8.8m) which has been included
in the Income Statement in non-operating income.
Sale proceeds from other asset disposals were £2.9m (2007: £4.4m) resulting in a loss on sale of £nil (2007: £0.2m). 
Following the Transfer, all land and buildings were valued by qualified independent chartered surveyors. As a result of these valuations and the ongoing economic value in use after the
Transfer of the buildings there has been an impairment charge of £15.0m to reduce the carrying value of the land and buildings to £12.2m.
Equipment, fixtures and vehicles, specifically head office computer equipment and infrastructure, has been written down to zero, resulting in an impairment charge of £25.5m to reflect
the ongoing economic value in use and future obsolescence of these assets in light of the developments in business operations and future strategy of the business after the Transfer.
£2.6m of the impairment charge occurred as a result of the closure of the Group’s mortgage servicing operations in North London and other mortgage sales activities announced on 25
September 2008.
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19. Property, plant and equipment continued
Company Equipment,

Land and fixtures and
buildings vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 88.0 99.5 187.5
Additions 0.1 14.8 14.9
Disposals to Abbey (54.8) (37.7) (92.5)
Disposals - other (5.3) (14.3) (19.6)
Written off (0.1) (4.2) (4.3)
At 31 December 2008 27.9 58.1 86.0
Depreciation
At 1 January 2008 27.0 64.7 91.7
Depreciation charge for the year 0.7 8.7 9.4
Impairment charge 10.6 25.1 35.7
Disposals to Abbey (19.9) (23.0) (42.9)
Disposals - other (2.6) (14.3) (16.9)
Written off (0.1) (4.2) (4.3)
At 31 December 2008 15.7 57.0 72.7
Net book value
At 1 January 2008 61.0 34.8 95.8
At 31 December 2008 12.2 1.1 13.3

Company Equipment,
Land and fixtures and
buildings vehicles Total

£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2007 93.1 82.7 175.8
Additions 1.1 25.7 26.8
Disposals (6.2) (8.9) (15.1)
At 31 December 2007 88.0 99.5 187.5
Depreciation
At 1 January 2007 29.0 67.3 96.3
Depreciation charge for the year 1.0 6.1 7.1
Disposals (3.0) (8.7) (11.7)
At 31 December 2007 27.0 64.7 91.7
Net book value
At 1 January 2007 64.1 15.4 79.5
At 31 December 2007 61.0 34.8 95.8
Property, plant and equipment was transferred to Abbey at its net book value of £49.6m. 
Sale proceeds from the sale and leaseback of land and buildings were £10.1m (2007: £10.1m) resulting in a profit of £7.5m (2007: £8.8m) which has been included in the
Income Statement in non-operating income.
Sale proceeds from other asset disposals were £0.1m (2007: £2.1m) resulting in a loss on sale of £nil (2007: £nil). 
Following the Transfer, all land and buildings were valued by qualified independent chartered surveyors. As a result of these valuations and the ongoing economic value in use
after the Transfer of the buildings there has been an impairment charge of £10.6m to reduce the carrying value of the land and buildings to £12.2m.
Equipment, fixtures and vehicles, specifically head office computer equipment and infrastructure has been written down to zero, resulting in an impairment charge of £25.1m to
reflect the ongoing economic value in use and future obsolescence of these assets in light of the developments in business operations and future strategy of the business after
the Transfer.
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20. Intangible assets
Group Company

£m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2008 110.0 57.7
Additions 6.9 4.3
Disposals to Abbey (7.4) (7.1)
Disposals - other (13.2) (12.7)
Written off (49.7) (6.9)
At 31 December 2008 46.6 35.3
Amortisation
At 1 January 2008 69.0 45.1
Amortisation charge for the year 9.5 3.9
Impairment charge 34.8 9.4
Disposals to Abbey (3.8) (3.5)
Disposals - other (13.2) (12.7)
Written off (49.7) (6.9)
At 31 December 2008 46.6 35.3
Net book value
At 1 January 2008 41.0 12.6
At 31 December 2008 - -

Group Company
£m £m

Cost
At 1 January 2007 114.3 66.9
Additions 5.0 0.1
Disposals (9.3) (9.3)
At 31 December 2007 110.0 57.7
Amortisation
At 1 January 2007 59.1 45.0
Amortisation charge for the year 14.9 5.1
Disposals (5.0) (5.0)
At 31 December 2007 69.0 45.1
Net book value
At 1 January 2007 55.2 21.9
At 31 December 2007 41.0 12.6
Intangible assets were transferred to Abbey at their net book value of £3.6m (Group and Company). 
Following the Transfer, it was deemed that intangible software with a book value of £34.8m (Group) and £9.4m (Company) was fully impaired and written down to zero to reflect
the ongoing economic value in use and future obsolesence of those assets in light of the developments in business operations and future strategy of the business.

21. Deposits by banks
At 31 December Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Items in the course of transmission 77.3 30.5 76.0 29.1
Other amounts due to banks 9,241.2 2,043.9 8,067.9 1,629.4

9,318.5 2,074.4 8,143.9 1,658.5

22. Other deposits
At 31 December Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings - - 29,509.6 22,420.9
Collateral received 641.6 - - -
Amounts due to other depositors 186.5 24,152.6 775.8 21,180.9

828.1 24,152.6 30,285.4 43,601.8
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23. HM Treasury Working Capital Facility
Following the Transfer, the Bank of England provided the Company with a Working Capital Facility. This was subsequently replaced by a Working
Capital Facility (WCF) provided by HM Treasury. At 31 December 2008 the Company had drawn £2,275.7m of this facility. The amounts drawn
under this facility bear a commercial rate of interest. HM Treasury has indicated that its current intention, subject to appropriate clearance being
obtained from the European Commission for restructuring aid for the Company, and any other constraints imposed by European law, is to
continue to fund the Company as a going concern, and to enable the Company to meet its debts as and when they fall due, for a period of not
less than 12 months from 31 March 2009. 

It is expected that the WCF is to be repaid out of the cash flows generated by the Company and the Group during their wind-down. These cash
flows will principally comprise interest and redemptions arising on loans to customers. The redemption profile of loans to customers is uncertain;
many of these loans have contractual maturities of 25 years or more from the date of advance, but experience has been that most loans to
customers redeem earlier than their contractual maturity dates. Consequently the timing of the repayment of the WCF is uncertain.

24. Statutory Debt
Following the Transfer and the sale of the savings related assets and liabilities on 29 September 2008 the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme made available a cash amount to Abbey representing the balance of the liabilities transferred. As a consequence a debt has been
created repayable by the Company of £18,413.9m referred to as the Statutory Debt. This liability bears no interest charges and there is no
provision to increase its amount.

It is expected that the Statutory Debt is to be repaid out of the cash flows generated by the Company and the Group during their wind-down.
These cash flows will principally comprise interest and redemptions arising on loans to customers. The redemption profile of loans to customers is
uncertain; many of these loans have contractual maturities of 25 years or more from the date of advance, but experience has been that most
loans to customers redeem earlier than their contractual maturity dates. Consequently the timing of the repayment of the Statutory Debt is
uncertain.

25. Debt securities in issue
At 31 December Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Bonds and medium term notes 13,364.0 12,668.8 13,364.0 13,175.3
Other debt securities in issue 7,302.3 9,639.3 - 1,233.8

20,666.3 22,308.1 13,364.0 14,409.1
The Group and Company issue debt securities to securitise loans and advances to customers through SPVs as described in note 12. These debt securities are included in the
amounts above. Certain debt securities in issue including those issued through SPVs are subject to fair value hedge designation, and the carrying values of these instruments
are adjusted to reflect the fair value of the risks being hedged.
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26. Other liabilities
At 31 December Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Income tax - 56.0 - 54.6
Surplus conversion shares 14.9 25.7 14.9 25.7
Other creditors 65.8 59.5 51.3 47.8

80.7 141.2 66.2 128.1
The income tax liability comprises taxes deducted at source from interest paid to investors.

27. Accruals and deferred income
At 31 December Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Accrued interest on subordinated liabilities 31.7 32.1 37.4 37.7
Accrued interest on other capital instruments 5.7 5.6 - -
Deferred income 1.7 2.1 1.7 2.1
Other 44.5 44.3 45.7 45.6

83.6 84.1 84.8 85.4

28. Post-retirement benefit obligations
(a) Pension schemes
The Group operates a closed defined benefit staff pension scheme, the Bradford & Bingley Staff Pension Scheme (‘the principal scheme’), which is
administered by trustees. The funds are independent from those of the Group. The normal pension age of employees in the scheme is 65.

The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme, the Bradford & Bingley Group Pension Plan. The funds of this scheme are independent
from those of the Group. The Group and Company had no liabilities or prepayments associated with the defined contribution scheme at 31
December 2008 (2007: £nil). The cost in the year to the Group of the defined contribution scheme was £1.7m (2007: £1.4m) and the cost to the
Company was £1.4m (2007: £1.0m).

(b) Other post-retirement benefits
The Group provides healthcare benefits to some of its pensioners. The healthcare benefits are provided through a post-retirement medical
scheme into which the Company contributes 100% towards the cost of providing medical expense benefits for members who retired before 1
January 1996 and 50% for members who retired after this date. The total number of members of the scheme as at 31 December 2008 was 411
(2007: 515). Private medical costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary.

(c) Accounting treatment
The Group accounts for post-retirement benefit costs in accordance with IAS 19 and IFRIC 14. The full net actuarial deficit is carried on the Group
and Company Balance Sheets, and actuarial gains and losses are taken to Group and Company retained earnings rather than being charged or
credited in the Income Statement. Any net defined benefit asset is recognised to the extent to which the economic benefits are available to the
Group without any conditions outside the direct control of the Group having to be satisfied. The actuarial loss recognised in the Group and
Company retained earnings during the year was £17.8m (2007: £53.3m gain).

More than one employing Group entity contributes to the post-retirement benefit schemes. As there is no contractual agreement or stated policy
for charging the net defined benefit cost to individual Group entities, the net defined benefit cost is recognised in the Financial Statements of the
Company (being the sponsoring entity). Other individual Group entities, in their individual financial statements, recognise a cost equal to their
contributions payable for the period.

(d) Employee benefit obligations
The amounts carried in the Group and Company Balance Sheets are as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
pension plans medical benefits Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Present value of funded obligations 480.5 586.8 9.2 11.0 489.7 597.8
Fair value of plan assets (485.3) (575.8) - - (485.3) (575.8)
IFRIC 14 restriction 4.8 - - - 4.8 -
Net liability - 11.0 9.2 11.0 9.2 22.0
Amounts carried in the Balance Sheet:

- Liabilities - 11.0 9.2 11.0 9.2 22.0
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28. Post-retirement benefit obligations continued
(d) Employee benefit obligations continued
The amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement are as follows:

Defined benefit Post-retirement
pension plans medical benefits Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Current service cost 4.8 7.5 0.1 0.1 4.9 7.6
Interest on plan obligations 34.5 29.9 0.6 0.5 35.1 30.4
Expected return on plan assets (37.6) (34.4) - - (37.6) (34.4)

1.7 3.0 0.7 0.6 2.4 3.6
Gain on curtailment (i) (22.3) - (0.8) - (23.1) -

(20.6) 3.0 (0.1) 0.6 (20.7) 3.6
Actual return on plan assets (78.1) 27.5 - - (78.1) 27.5
All amounts above have also been recognised in the Company Income Statement with the exception of £1.2m (2007: £1.4m) of the current service cost which has been
recognised within other Group companies.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:
Defined benefit Post-retirement

pension plans medical benefits Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Opening defined benefit obligations 586.8 621.9 11.0 10.6 597.8 632.5
Current service cost 4.8 7.5 0.1 0.1 4.9 7.6
Contributions by employees 0.8 0.9 - - 0.8 0.9
Interest on plan obligations 34.5 29.9 0.6 0.5 35.1 30.4
Actuarial (gain)/loss (101.5) (60.4) (1.3) 0.2 (102.8) (60.2)
Gain on curtailment (i) (22.3) - (0.8) - (23.1) -
Obligation transfer (ii) (3.9) - - - (3.9) -
Benefits paid (18.7) (13.0) (0.4) (0.4) (19.1) (13.4)
Closing defined benefit obligations 480.5 586.8 9.2 11.0 489.7 597.8

Changes in the fair value of plan assets were as follows:
Defined benefit Post-retirement

pension plans medical benefits Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Opening fair value of plan assets 575.8 549.3 - - 575.8 549.3
Expected return on plan assets 37.6 34.4 - - 37.6 34.4
Contributions by employing entities 9.3 11.0 0.4 0.4 9.7 11.4
Contributions by employees 0.8 0.9 - - 0.8 0.9
Actuarial (loss)/gain (115.7) (6.9) - - (115.7) (6.9)
Asset transfer (ii) (4.0) - - (4.0) -
Benefits paid (18.5) (12.9) (0.4) (0.4) (18.9) (13.3)
Closing fair value of plan assets 485.3 575.8 - - 485.3 575.8
(i) Gain on curtailment

Employees who transferred to Abbey as a consequence of the sale of the savings business on 29 September 2008 and who were members of the defined benefit scheme
became deferred members as of the date of transfer. The curtailment gain of £23.1m arising on this event has been calculated in accordance with IAS 19 and is included in the
Group Income Statement within ‘Gain/(loss) on sale of assets and liabilities’ described in note 2. 
(ii) Transfer of obligations and assets
Bradford & Bingley International Ltd was sold to Abbey on 29 September 2008. Employees of Bradford & Bingley International Ltd who were members of the defined benefit
scheme remain members of the scheme but the pension obligations and assets relating to those employees has been transferred to Abbey with effect from 29 September 2008. 
The Group expects to contribute £6.9m to its defined benefit pension plans in 2009.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets at 31 December as follows:
2008 2007

Equities 34% 44%
Property 10% 15%
Bonds 25% 27%
Gilts 13% 6%
Cash and other 18% 8%

100% 100%
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28. Post-retirement benefit obligations continued
(d) Employee benefit obligations continued
The principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages) were as follows:

2008 2007

To determine benefit obligations
Discount rate at 31 December 6.3% 5.8%
Future pension increases 3.0% 3.4%
Rate of salary increase 5.0% 5.4%
To determine the net pension cost
Expected return on plan assets 6.8% 6.3%
Discount rate 6.3% 5.1%
Rate of salary increase 5.4% 5.1%
For post-retirement medical plan
Discount rate 6.3% 5.8%
Inflation 3.0% 3.4%
Medical cost trend for next financial year 6.0% 6.5%
Medical cost trend falling linearly for subsequent 2 years 6.0% 6.5% to 5.5%
Medical cost trend thereafter 6.0% 5.5%
In determining the expected long-term return on plan assets, the Company considered the current level of expected returns on risk-free investments (primarily government
bonds), the historical level of risk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio is invested and the expectations for future returns on each asset class.
The expected return for each asset class was then weighted based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term return for the portfolio.

The principal assumption made on life expectancy for active and retired members was to use PA92 (YOB) base rated up by 2 years. As an illustration
of the mortality rates used, the future life expectancies from age 60 are shown below:

Males Females

Non-retired members’ life expectancy* 25.9 28.7
Retired members’ life expectancy** 23.8 26.8
* based on 1965 year of birth
** based on 1935 year of birth

Sensitivity
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the pension scheme defined benefit obligation to four key assumptions: the discount rate, the rate
of inflation, the rate of salary growth and the mortality assumption.
Assumption Change in assumption Impact on benefit obligation

Discount rate Decrease by 0.5% Increase by 11.9%
Inflation Increase by 0.5% Increase by 10.4%
Salary growth above inflation Increase by 0.5% Increase by 1.8%
Mortality Decrease by 1 year Increase by 2.3%
If the assumptions were to change by the same amount in the opposite direction to those illustrated, the benefit obligation would decrease or increase by a similar percentage to
those shown in the table in each case.

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts recognised in staff costs. A one percentage point change in assumed
healthcare cost trend rates would have the following effects:

2008 2007
£m £m

Effect on the aggregate of service cost and interest cost 0.1 0.1
Effect on defined benefit obligations 1.5 1.9

72Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

B21448 R&A 2008 BACK  20/3/09  17:37  Page 78



73Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

29. Provisions
Group and Company Empty

leasehold Compensation Restructuring
premises claims costs Total

£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 0.9 50.7 8.1 59.7
Charged in the year 5.5 - 69.1 74.6
Released in the year - (20.0) - (20.0)
Utilised in the year (0.3) (5.2) (25.2) (30.7)
At 31 December 2008 6.1 25.5 52.0 83.6

Empty leasehold premises
The empty leasehold premises provision relates to properties which, as at the Balance Sheet date, were no longer used for trading but were
subject to a lease agreement. The provision is based on either known or forecast future rental expenditure; the rental payments are due to be
made during the period 2009 to 2017. 

Compensation claims
Compensation claims relate to potential payments to customers relating to endowment and other products sold in the past by the Group's
independent advisory business. This business was sold in December 2004 following a strategic review. The provision is calculated on the basis of
a reasonable estimate of the size and expected timing of claims. It is not possible to give a precise indication of the timing or amount of future
payments as external factors such as the performance of the stock market and market agitation could have a significant impact.

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs were incurred as a consequence of certain strategic changes made during the year and include redundancy, employee
contract termination and property related closure costs. In 2008 it includes a £46.6m provision (£57.4m charged in the year) for costs expected to
be incurred as a result of the Transfer on 29 September 2008 included in the amounts in note 2. The provision represents amounts expected to be
paid in 2009. 
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30. Subordinated liabilities
Initial First Transfer Group Company

interest due or Order 2008 2007 2008 2007
rate callable classification £m £m £m £m

Dated securities
- Subordinated notes 7.625% 2010 Dated 131.1 128.1 131.1 128.1
- Fixed rate step-up subordinated notes 5.500% 2018 Dated 269.0 249.2 269.0 249.2
- Fixed rate step-up subordinated notes 5.750% 2022 Dated 224.4 198.9 224.4 198.9
- Subordinated notes 6.625% 2023 Dated 130.2 126.5 130.2 126.5
- Subordinated notes LIBOR + 1.300% 2054 Dated - - 149.7 150.0

754.7 702.7 904.4 852.7
Callable perpetual securities

- Perpetual subordinated notes 5.625% 2013 Undated 266.1 243.6 266.1 243.6
- Perpetual subordinated notes 6.000% 2019 Undated 222.9 202.4 222.9 202.4
- Perpetual subordinated notes 6.462% 2032 Undated - - 193.2 161.6

489.0 446.0 682.2 607.6
Undated perpetual securities

- Perpetual subordinated bonds 13.000% Perpetual Undated 55.0 55.0 55.0 55.0
- Perpetual subordinated bonds 11.625% Perpetual Undated 50.0 50.0 50.0 50.0

105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0
Total subordinated liabilities 1,348.7 1,253.7 1,691.6 1,565.3
The subordinated liabilities are all denominated in sterling.
The carrying values of the liabilities are on an EIR basis which takes into account issue costs.  The carrying value of individually hedged items also includes hedge accounting
adjustments to reflect changes in the fair value of hedged risks.  Accrued interest is carried within accruals and deferred income.
The sterling subordinated notes due 2010 pay interest at a rate of 7.625% per annum until their maturity.
The sterling fixed rate step-up subordinated notes due 2018 pay interest at a rate of 5.5% per annum until 15 January 2013 when the Company may either redeem them (on
that date or any subsequent interest payment date) or pay interest at a rate of 0.83% above the 3 month GBP LIBOR until redemption.
The sterling fixed rate step-up subordinated notes due 2022 pay interest at a rate of 5.75% per annum until 12 December 2017 when the Company may either redeem them or
pay interest at a rate of 2% above the relevant 5 year benchmark gilt rate until redemption.
The sterling subordinated notes due 2023 pay interest at a rate of 6.625% per annum until their maturity.
The sterling subordinated notes due 2054 pay interest quarterly at a rate of 1.3% above the 3 month GBP LIBOR, and can be redeemed at the option of the Company on the
March 2015 interest payment date or any subsequent interest payment date until maturity.
The sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2013 pay interest at a rate of 5.625% per annum until 20 December 2013 and thereafter at 2.23% above the relevant 5 year
benchmark gilt rate, and are redeemable by the issuer at its option on 20 December 2013 and on each fifth anniversary thereafter.
The sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2019 pay interest at a rate of 6% per annum until 10 December 2019 and thereafter at 1.93% above the relevant 5 year
benchmark gilt rate, and are redeemable by the issuer at its option on 10 December 2019 and on each fifth anniversary thereafter. 
The sterling perpetual subordinated notes due 2032 pay interest at a rate of 6.462% until 2 June 2032 when the Company may either redeem them, or pay a rate of interest
2.3% above the relevant 5 year benchmark gilt rate.  
The interest on both issues of perpetual subordinated bonds, which have no maturity date, is payable half-yearly in arrears.  Interest incurred by the Group in 2008 with respect
to subordinated liabilities was £82.1m (2007: £82.0m) and by the Company was £102.4m (2007: £91.7m). 
None of the subordinated liabilities can be repaid at the borrower’s option, except as stated above.  The rights of repayment of the holders of subordinated debt, including
perpetual subordinated bonds, are subordinated to the claims of all depositors and creditors as regards the principal and interest thereon.
The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008 modified the rights of the holders of the Company's dated subordinated notes such that a non
payment  of any principal due in respect of a dated subordinated note shall not constitute an event of default under the note.  Under the terms of the Bradford & Bingley plc
Transfer of Securities and Property etc. (Amendment) Order 2009, which came into force on 20 February 2009, the Directors have the power to defer payment of the principal
and interest on dated subordinated notes.

31. Other capital instruments
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Perpetual preferred securities 193.4 161.6
Limited Partnership Share 75.0 -

268.4 161.6
The carrying values of these liabilities are on an EIR basis which takes into account issue costs. The carrying value of individually hedged items also includes hedge accounting
adjustments to reflect changes in the fair value of hedged risks. Accrued interest is carried within accruals and deferred income.
On 29 May 2002, £150.0m (£148.5m net of expenses) of 6.462% guaranteed, non-voting, non-cumulative, perpetual preferred securities, Series A, were issued through
Bradford & Bingley Capital Funding L.P., a Jersey based limited partnership. These securities are not subject to any mandatory redemption provisions; they are redeemable by the
issuer at its option on 2 June 2032 and on each fifth anniversary thereafter. They have a fixed coupon and, if not redeemed in 2032, the coupon will be reset at a rate equal to
the sum of the relevant 5 year benchmark gilt rate plus a margin of 2.3% per annum. The Group is not obliged to, and will not, make any payments to the holders of the preferred
securities other than those to which the holders of these securities are entitled under the terms of the preferred securities. Interest incurred in 2008 in respect of these securities
was £9.7m (2007: £9.7m). 
The Limited Partnership Share represents £75.0m which was invested by Bradford & Bingley International Ltd in Bradford & Bingley Capital Funding II LP in March 2005. Bradford
& Bingley International Ltd was sold to Abbey on 29 September 2008, as discussed in note 2. Interest is payable at GBP 3 month LIBOR plus 1.3%. This balance is redeemable at
the option of the Company on 31 March 2015, or on occurrence of certain regulatory or tax events. 
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32. Share capital
Group and Company ordinary shares of 25p each:

2008 2007 2008 2007
Number of shares (m) £m £m

Ordinary shares authorised as at 1 January 882.0 882.0 220.5 220.5
Increase in authorised capital 963.3 - 240.8 -
Ordinary shares authorised as at 31 December 1,845.3 882.0 461.3 220.5

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid as at 1 January 617.7 634.4 154.4 158.6
Ordinary shares issued during the year 827.6 - 206.9 -
Ordinary shares repurchased and cancelled during the year - (16.7) - (4.2)
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid as at 31 December 1,445.3 617.7 361.3 154.4
At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 17 July 2008 the shareholders approved a rights issue under which shareholders had the right to purchase 67 new ordinary shares
for every 50 held, at a price of 55 pence per share. The new shares were admitted to trading, nil paid, on 18 July. 827,670,240 shares were issued, raising £400.9m net of
expenses. During 2007 16,750,000 shares were purchased for cancellation at a cost of £58.6m including commissions and Stamp Duty. 
The Company has one class of shares: ordinary shares of 25p each, ranking equally in respect of rights attaching to voting, dividends and in the event of a winding-up. As a
result of the Transfer described in note 2 all share options were extinguished on 29 September 2008. As at 31 December 2008 6,032,243 of the Company's shares (2007:
6,630,132) which had been held by trusts for the purpose of satisfying the obligations of incentive plans had been taken into ownership by HM Treasury as part of the Transfer.
The cost to the Group of these shares is accounted for as a deduction from retained earnings of £20.4m (2007: £23.9m). 

Bradford & Bingley Employees’ Share Trust
On 3 October 2000 the Company established an offshore employee share trust, the Bradford & Bingley Employees’ Share Trust, for the purpose of
receiving monies and acquiring shares to be used in conjunction with any employee share schemes established by the Company. Prior to the
nationalisation, the trustee of this trust, Halifax EES Trustees International Limited, held 6,032,243 (2007: 6,630,132) shares to satisfy share awards
and options which had been made or were to be made in accordance with the rules of the employee share schemes established by the Company.
The trust has waived, in full, its rights to receive dividends on the shares held except in respect of the Executive Incentive Plan where dividends are
received in full by the trust and distributed to the underlying beneficial holders of the shares. During 2007 the Company provided £18.7m in funds to
enable the trust to purchase 4,500,000 shares.

Executive Share Option Scheme
Grants of approved and unapproved share options were made under the rules of the Bradford & Bingley 2000 Share Option Scheme as detailed
in note 34. The shares are exercisable subject to the achievement of a performance target linked to an increase in the Company’s earnings per
share. The options over shares are exercisable over the period of three to ten years after the date of the grant. At 31 December 2007 there were
options outstanding over 635,620 shares. These options were extinguished as a result of the Transfer.

Sharesave Scheme
The Company operates the Bradford & Bingley 2000 Sharesave Scheme, an Inland Revenue approved all-employee Save As You Earn share
option scheme. Grants of share options under this scheme were made as detailed in note 34. The option prices represent a 20% discount to the
market price on the date of the grant. At 31 December 2007 there were 1,431 three year and 492 five year savings contracts in place
represented by a total of 2,010,331 shares under option. These options were extinguished as a result of the Transfer.

On 8 December 2000 the Bradford & Bingley Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust was established to acquire shares for employees,
including Directors, to satisfy options exercised under the Sharesave Scheme. Once the total shares held by the trust had been used the trust was
terminated and at 31 December 2007 the trust held no shares to satisfy options. In respect of dividends arising on the shares held, the trust
waived its rights to all but 0.0001 pence per share. The duty to provide shares to satisfy Sharesave Scheme exercises was assumed by the
Bradford & Bingley Employees’ Share Trust.

Employees’ Restricted Share Bonus Plan
In April 2002 the Employees’ Restricted Share Bonus Plan was established to allocate shares to employees following the achievement of specified
performance measures. The shares were to be released to the individuals in tranches annually in the three years following the allocation or on the
third anniversary of the award, depending on the conditions under which they were awarded, and subject to them remaining employed by the
Company on the anniversary dates. At 31 December 2007 there were 4,620 share allocations outstanding; these were extinguished as a result of
the Transfer.

Performance Share Plan
Shares were awarded under the rules of the Bradford & Bingley 2000 Performance Share Plan as detailed in note 34. The shares awarded under this
plan have been released and no further awards have been made. There were no outstanding share awards at the time of Transfer at which point any
remaining would have been extinguished (2007: none).

Executive Incentive Plan
The Executive Incentive Plan was established to provide a replacement to the short and long term incentive plans for senior executives. The short
term element consisted of a cash payment based on the achievement of pre-determined short term performance measures and an equivalent
amount of deferred shares to be held in trust for three years. Dividends receivable on the deferred shares were paid to the underlying beneficial
owners of the shares. After three years the long term element of the scheme could be applied in the form of an additional award of matching
shares subject to earnings per share growth. Matching share awards would be made when compound earnings per share growth achieved
between RPI plus 3% and RPI plus 8%. The maximum number of matching shares was three matching shares for each deferred share. Prior to the
Transfer there were 2,616,084 deferred shares held in trust (2007: 965,410).

Executive Incentive Scheme
Shares were awarded under the rules of the Executive Incentive Scheme 2007 as detailed in note 34. The shares under this plan have been
extinguished at Transfer on 29 September 2008. As such, there were no outstanding share awards at 31 December 2008 (2007: 988,510).
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33. Reconciliation of changes in equity
Group Share Capital Available- Cash flow Total capital

Share premium redemption for-sale hedge Retained and
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 154.4 4.9 29.2 (61.9) (60.4) 1,144.6 1,210.8
Net change in available-for-sale instruments - - - (286.2) - - (286.2)
Net change in cash flow hedges - - - - (88.1) - (88.1)
Actuarial losses on post-retirement benefit obligations - - - - - (12.8) (12.8)
Net losses not recognised in the Income Statement - - - (286.2) (88.1) (12.8) (387.1) 
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 18.2 18.2
Total recognised (expense)/income - - - (286.2) (88.1) 5.4 (368.9)
Dividends - - - - - (87.9) (87.9) 
Issue of new shares 206.9 194.0 - - - - 400.9
Use of own shares on exercise of employee options
and for other employee share plans - - - - - 3.3 3.3
Fair value of share options taken to share option reserve - - - - - 3.4 3.4 
Deficit on share option exercises - - - - - (3.5) (3.5) 
At 31 December 2008 361.3 198.9 29.2 (348.1) (148.5) 1,065.3 1,158.1

Group Share Capital Available- Cash flow Total capital
Share premium redemption for-sale hedge Retained and

capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2007 158.6 4.9 25.0 (1.5) 20.6 1,212.3 1,419.9
Net change in available-for-sale instruments - - - (60.4) - - (60.4) 
Net change in cash flow hedges - - - - (81.0) - (81.0)
Actuarial gains on post-retirement benefit obligations - - - - - 37.9 37.9
Net (losses)/gains not recognised in the Income Statement - - - (60.4) (81.0) 37.9 (103.5) 
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 93.2 93.2
Total recognised (expense)/income - - - (60.4) (81.0) 131.1 (10.3)
Dividends - - - - - (126.5) (126.5) 
Use of own shares on exercise of employee options
and for other employee share plans - - - - - 5.2 5.2
Fair value of share options taken to share option reserve - - - - - 4.6 4.6 
Deficit on share option exercises - - - - - (4.8) (4.8) 
Purchase of own shares held to satisfy employee share plans - - - - - (18.7) (18.7)
Purchase and cancellation of own shares (4.2) - 4.2 - - (58.6) (58.6)
At 31 December 2007 154.4 4.9 29.2 (61.9) (60.4) 1,144.6 1,210.8

Company Share Capital Available- Cash flow Total capital
Share premium redemption for-sale hedge Retained and

capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 154.4 4.9 29.2 (61.9) (60.4) 858.7 924.9
Net change in available-for-sale instruments - - - (1,026.0) - - (1,026.0)
Net change in cash flow hedges - - - - (88.1) - (88.1)
Actuarial losses on post-retirement benefit obligations - - - - - (12.8) (12.8)
Net losses not recognised in the Income Statement - - - (1,026.0) (88.1) (12.8) (1,126.9) 
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 232.9 232.9
Total recognised (expense)/income - - - (1,026.0) (88.1) 220.1 (894.0)
Dividends - - - - - (87.9) (87.9) 
Issue of new shares 206.9 194.0 - - - - 400.9
Use of own shares on exercise of employee options
and for other employee share plans - - - - - 3.4 3.4
Fair value of share options taken to share option reserve - - - - - 3.4 3.4
Deficit on share option exercises - - - - - (3.5) (3.5) 
At 31 December 2008 361.3 198.9 29.2 (1,087.9) (148.5) 994.2 347.2
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33. Reconciliation of changes in equity continued
Company Share Capital Available- Cash flow Total capital

Share premium redemption for-sale hedge Retained and
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings reserves

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2007 158.6 4.9 25.0 (1.4) 20.6 981.4 1,189.1
Net change in available-for-sale instruments - - - (60.5) - - (60.5) 
Net change in cash flow hedges - - - - (81.0) - (81.0)
Actuarial gains on post-retirement benefit obligations - - - - - 37.9 37.9
Net (losses)/gains not recognised in the Income Statement - - - (60.5) (81.0) 37.9 (103.6) 
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 38.2 38.2
Total recognised (expense)/income - - - (60.5) (81.0) 76.1 (65.4)
Dividends - - - - - (126.5) (126.5) 
Use of own shares on exercise of employee options
and for other employee share plans - - - - - 5.2 5.2
Fair value of share options taken to share option reserve - - - - - 4.6 4.6
Deficit on share option exercises - - - - - (4.8) (4.8) 
Purchase of own shares held to satisfy employee share plans - - - - - (18.7) (18.7)
Purchase and cancellation of own shares (4.2) - 4.2 - - (58.6) (58.6)
At 31 December 2007 154.4 4.9 29.2 (61.9) (60.4) 858.7 924.9
The share premium reserve represents the excess of the consideration received for issued shares over the nominal value of those shares, net of transaction costs.
The capital redemption reserve was created on the sale of surplus conversion shares and to maintain the total amount of capital when shares were repurchased by the Company.
The available-for-sale reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on assets which are still held at the Balance Sheet date and are classified as available-for-sale.
The cash flow hedge reserve represents cumulative fair value movements on financial instruments which are still held at the Balance Sheet date and are effective cash flow hedges.

34. Share-based payments
During the year, the Group had six share-based payment schemes with employees. These are all accounted for by the Group and Company as
set out below.
As a result of the Transfer on 29 September 2008, as described in note 2 ‘Gain/(loss) on sale of assets & liabilities’, all share schemes were
extinguished as of that date. As required by IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment’, the Income Statement includes an accelerated charge of £4.1m (2007:
£nil), representing all previously unexpensed costs in respect of share schemes at the point of extinguishment.
Arrangement Sharesave Scheme

‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As ‘Save As
Nature of the You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’ You Earn’
arrangement Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme

Date of grant 20/3/03 18/3/04 18/3/04 24/3/05 24/3/05 17/3/06 17/3/06 15/3/07 15/3/07 14/3/08 14/3/08
Number of instruments granted 789,338 1,832,649 427,490 510,251 155,307 419,466 300,192 645,928 201,219 4,139,146 2,185,737
Exercise price £2.24 £2.45 £2.45 £2.58 £2.58 £3.72 £3.72 £3.73 £3.73 £1.45 £1.45
Quoted share price at grant date £2.98 £3.05 £3.05 £3.06 £3.06 £5.22 £5.22 £4.38 £4.38 £2.01 £2.01
Contractual life (years) 5.5 3.5 5.5 3.5 5.5 3.5 5.5 3.5 5.5 3.5 5.5

Settlement Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
Expected volatility 32% 29% 29% 27% 27% 22% 26% 24% 27% 39% 34%
Expected life at grant date (years) 5.1 3.1 5.1 3.1 5.1 3.1 5.1 3.1 5.1 3.1 5.1
Risk-free interest rate 4.2% 4.5% 4.5% 4.6% 4.6% 4.4% 4.4% 5.2% 5.0% 4.3% 4.4%
Expected dividend (dividend yield) 4.6% 5.0% 5.0% 5.6% 5.6% 3.3% 3.3% 4.3% 4.3% 10.0% 10.0%
Expected annual departures 10% 15% 10% 10% 5% 10% 5% 10% 5% 10% 5%
Fair value per granted 
instrument determined 
at grant date £0.91 £0.76 £0.79 £0.64 £0.67 £1.60 £1.75 £0.97 £1.11 £0.48 £0.38

Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology
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savings
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Three-year
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savings
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Five-year
service
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savings

requirement

Three-year
service

period and
savings

requirement

Five-year
service
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savings
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Three-year
service

period and
savings

requirement

Five-year
service

period and
savings

requirement

Three-year
service

period and
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Five-year
service

period and
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Three-year
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Vesting conditions

Five-year
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savings

requirement
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34. Share-based payments continued
Arrangement Employees' Restricted Share Bonus Plan
Nature of the Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of
arrangement shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares

Date of grant 1/1/03 1/1/04 1/1/04 12/3/04 1/1/05 1/1/05 1/1/05 1/1/06 1/1/06 1/1/06 19/2/08
Number of instruments granted 56,966 2,101 2,101 93,192 1,299 1,299 1,304 1,299 1,299 1,304 202,901
Exercise price n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Quoted share price at grant date £2.90 £3.05 £3.05 £3.04 £3.36 £3.36 £3.36 £4.11 £4.11 £4.11 £1.81
Contractual life (years) 4.2 3.2 4.2 3.0 2.2 3.2 4.2 2.2 3.2 4.2 4.2

Settlement Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
Expected volatility n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Expected life at grant date (years) 4.2 3.2 4.2 3.0 2.2 3.2 4.2 2.2 3.2 4.2 4.2
Risk-free interest rate 4.1% 4.5% 4.6% 4.4% 4.3% 4.3% 4.3% 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 11.1%
Expected dividend (dividend yield) 4.7% 5.0% 5.0% 5.1% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 4.2% 4.2% 4.2% 0.0%
Expected annual departures 15% 10% 10% 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Fair value per granted 
instrument determined 
at grant date £2.41 £2.63 £2.50 £2.61 £3.04 £2.90 £2.76 £3.75 £3.59 £3.44 £1.27

Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes
methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology methodology
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grant
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Total
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34. Share-based payments continued
Arrangement Performance Executive Executive Executive

Share Incentive Incentive Share Option

Plan Plan Scheme Scheme

Nature of the Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of Grant of
arrangement shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares share options   share options

Date of grant 23/2/04 23/2/04 28/2/05 28/2/05 28/2/06 28/2/06 22/2/07 22/2/07 19/2/08 19/2/08 19/2/08 25/2/03 14/8/03
Number of instruments granted 871,577 506,666 341,990 341,990 339,111 339,111 490,469 490,469 1,016,503 1,016,503 988,510 1,368,230 59,608
Exercise price n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a £2.82 £3.07
Quoted share price at grant date £3.10 £3.10 £3.23 £3.23 £4.71 £4.71 £4.60 £4.60 £1.81 £1.81 £1.81 £2.77 £3.09
Contractual life (years) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 10.0 10.0

Settlement Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares Shares
Expected volatility 30% 30% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 32% 31%
Expected life at grant date (years) 3 3 n/a 3 n/a 3 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 5.0 5.0
Risk-free interest rate 4.5% 4.5% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 3.8% 4.4%
Expected dividend (dividend yield) 5.0% 5.0% 5.3% 5.3% 3.7% 3.7% 4.1% 4.1% 11.1% 11.1% 11.1% 4.9% 4.8%
Expected annual departures 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 5% 5%

Fair value per granted instrument £1.40 £1.15 £3.23 £2.77 £4.71 £4.20 £4.60 £4.06 £1.81 £1.27 £1.27 £0.55 £0.65
determined at grant date

A Monte Carlo simulation model is used to determine the Performance Share Plan fair value as the arrangements include market-based performance conditions and to assist in
assessing an appropriate expected vesting period for the Executive Share Option Scheme. For other share schemes a Black-Scholes methodology is used to value options.
The expected volatility of share price applied in the option pricing models is based on historic Bradford & Bingley plc share price data over a period equivalent to the expected life
of the scheme or since the date of flotation (4 December 2000) if shorter.
Awards granted under the Executive Incentive Plan are granted based on performance in the preceding financial year. The performance criteria include qualitative elements
which are not determined until the award date i.e. after the end of the relevant financial year. The grant date therefore occurs after the employees to whom the award is made
have begun providing services. In accordance with IFRS 2 the grant date fair value is initially estimated for the purposes of recognising the services received during the period
between service commencement date and grant date. The fair value is then revised once the actual grant date has been established.

Valuation model Monte Carlo
simulation

model

Monte Carlo
simulation

model

Share price at
the date the

shares are
allocated

Share price at
the date the

shares are
allocated

Black-Scholes
methodology

Black-Scholes
methodology

Share price at
the date the

shares are
allocated

Black-Scholes
methodology

Share price at
the date the

shares are
allocated

Black-Scholes
methodology

Black-Scholes
methodology

Black-Scholes
methodology

Black-Scholes
methodology

Vesting conditions
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34. Share-based payments continued
The following information applies to options which were outstanding at 31 December 2007:

At 31 December 2007 
Weighted average

Range of Weighted average Number of exercisable remaining life (years)
exercise price exercise price options (000s)         Expected Contractual

£2.00 - £3.00 £2.8526 326,230 0.11 4.69

The movements in the number of share options (Executive Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Scheme) can be summarised as follows:
2008 2007

Weighted average Weighted average
Number of options exercise price Number of options exercise price

Total number of options outstanding at 1 January 2,309,209 £3.2006 2,583,487 £2.8456
Granted 6,324,883 £1.4490 847,654 £3.7273
Exercised (3,626) £2.3579 (759,614) £2.4917
Forfeited (31,195) £3.6119 (187,477) £3.3056
Effect of modifications and cancellations (8,599,271) £1.9109 (26,626) £2.8170
Expired - - (148,215) £3.5938
Total number of options outstanding - - 2,309,209 £3.2006
at 31 December
Exercisable at 31 December - - 326,230 £2.8526
In addition to the above option schemes, as at 31 December 2007 the Group had two pre-2003 schemes which were still to mature, namely Executive Share Option Scheme
2001 and 2002 schemes. There were 336,742 options outstanding at 31 December 2007, and these were all extinguished as a result of the Transfer. The Sharesave 2003 (5
year), Sharesave 2005 (3 year), Employee Restricted Share Bonus Plan 2005 (‘ERSBP’) (3 year) and ERSBP 2006 (2 year) schemes all fully matured during 2008. The Sharesave
2002 (5 year) and the ERSBP 2004 (3 year) schemes fully matured during 2007.

The amount recognised in staff costs for share-based payment transactions with employees may be summarised as follows:
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Sharesave Scheme 0.1 0.6
Employees' Restricted Share Bonus Plan 0.1 0.1
Performance Share Plan - -
Executive Incentive Plan (2.6) 3.9

(2.4) 4.6
Accelerated charge due to extinguishment 4.1 -

1.7 4.6
The fair value of the shares for the arrangements in which shares are granted was based on the quoted share price. 
The accelerated charge of £4.1m (2007: £nil) represents all previously unexpensed costs in respect of share schemes at the point of extinguishment and has been charged to
restructuring costs in respect of the ‘Gain/(loss) on sale of assets and liabilities’ (see note 2).
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35. Operating lease commitments
At 31 December Group and Company

2008 2007
£m £m

The amounts of rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Payable in less than one year 1.0 8.1
Payable in between one and five years 5.5 27.3
Payable after more than five years 6.9 35.9
Total payable 13.4 71.3
These operating leases relate to land and buildings and equipment.

36. Other commitments
At 31 December Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 1,750.4 1,900.7 37.5 75.7
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided for 0.3 6.6 0.3 6.6
The Group’s irrevocable undrawn loan facilities include lifetime mortgages of £1,632.0m (2007: £1,588.4m) for which the commitment reflects an estimate of the interest
expected to roll up on the loans until redemption. The lifetime mortgage product involves the advance of a lump sum, on which interest then accrues but is not payable until the
loan is redeemed. There is no commitment to advance further cash in respect of these loans. The loan advance is accounted for in the same way as other loans to customers.
The interest is accrued for as it arises.
As described in note 11, the Group entered commitments to purchase portfolios of residential mortgages. At 31 December 2008, the Group’s remaining purchase commitments
were no more than £250.0m from GMAC and £60.0m from Kensington. On 30 January 2009 the Group purchased £39.5m of mortgages from Kensington. On 27 February
2009 the Group purchased £248.7m of mortgages from GMAC, extinguishing any commitment to buy any further mortgages from GMAC.
The Company has provided a number of financial guarantees to other Group companies. The Directors do not expect any claims to be made against the Company under these
guarantees and hence no provision has been made.

37. Related party disclosures
The key management personnel of the Group and Company are the Company’s Executive and Non-Executive Directors and senior managers. The
Group and Company have related party relationships with the key management personnel and with the Group’s pension schemes. In addition,
the Company has related party relationships with its subsidiary undertakings; the Company’s principal subsidiaries are listed in note 16, and
transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries are on ‘arms’ length’ terms.

A summary of the remuneration of the key management personnel is set out in the table below. These amounts include the remuneration of the
Directors which is set out in more detail in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 23 to 29. The Directors’ Remuneration Report gives details
of the Company’s Directors’ salaries, fees, pension entitlements, share options, share plans, other incentives and other benefits. Further details of
the accounting treatment of pensions are given in note 28, and further details of the accounting treatment of share-based payments in note 34.
The Directors’ interests in the Company’s shares are shown on page 32, and the Directors were paid the declared dividends in respect of those
shares. The key management personnel contributed £74,000 (2007: £98,000) to Group pension schemes during the year.

Details of the Group’s and Company’s transactions and balances with the Group’s pension schemes are given in note 28. There were no amounts
due to or from the schemes at 31 December 2008 (2007: £nil).

Group and Company 2008 2007
£000 £000

Salaries and other short-term benefits 4,607 4,144
Share-based payment 615 1,731
Total 5,222 5,875

The balances due from related parties and value of transactions were as follows:
Group Key personnel

2008 2007
£000 £000

Debtors outstanding at 1 January 73 232
Net movement over the year (71) (159)
Debtors outstanding at 31 December 2 73
Interest earned 2 12

Company Subsidiaries Key personnel
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £000 £000

Debtors outstanding at 1 January 25,989.6 19,648.7 - -
Net movement over the year 211.6 6,340.9 - -
Debtors outstanding at 31 December 26,201.2 25,989.6 - -
Interest earned 958.8 1,110.0 - -
The balances with key personnel are mortgages issued on the Group’s usual commercial terms, included within ‘loans and advances to customers’. The debtors due from
subsidiary undertakings are generally repayable on demand, pay interest at a commercial LIBOR-related rate, and are included within ‘loans and advances to customers’. No
impairment has been recognised on any of these balances.
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37. Related party disclosures continued
The balances due to related parties and value of transactions were as follows:
Group Key personnel

2008 2007
£000 £000

Creditors outstanding at 1 January 1,047 341
Net movement over the year (1,047) 706
Creditors outstanding at 31 December - 1,047
Interest expense 39 23

Company Subsidiaries Key personnel
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £000 £000

Creditors outstanding at 1 January 22,420.9 15,334.9 1,047 341
Net movement over the year 7,088.7 7,086.0 (1,047) 706
Creditors outstanding at 31 December 29,509.6 22,420.9 - 1,047
Interest expense 693.3 479.4 39 23
The balances with key personnel are savings products issued on the Group’s usual commercial terms, included within ‘other deposits’. All savings balances transferred to Abbey
on 29 September 2008 as described in note 2.
The creditors due to subsidiary undertakings are generally repayable on demand, bear interest at a commercial LIBOR-related rate, and are included within ‘other deposits’.

In addition to the interest income and expense shown above, the Company had other transactions with its subsidiaries as follows:
2008 2007

£m £m

Dividend income 1.6 1.0
Management charges 3.7 2.0
Other 6.1 3.2

11.4 6.2

The Company had the following balances and transactions with securitisation vehicles and Bradford & Bingley Covered Bonds LLP:
Company 2008 2007

£m £m

Debtors 11,502.4 11,577.3
Creditors (28,544.5) (19,348.8)
Derivative liabilities (39.3) (44.2)

Net interest expense 664.8 441.6
Management and servicing fee income 8.9 3.2
At 31 December 2008 the Company held £8,324.7m (2007: £737.5m) of loan notes issued by the Group’s securitisation vehicles on which it earned interest of £262.6m during 2008
(2007: £14.1m). At 31 December 2008 the Company held £2,943.0m (2007: £nil) of loan notes issued under the Covered Bond programme, on which it earned interest of £93.8m during
2008 (2007: £nil). At 31 December 2007 another Group entity held £500.0m of loan notes issued under the Covered Bond programme on which it earned interest of £8.5m. Loans and
advances to customers of £12,705.4m (2007: £9,221.4m) were securitised during the year. Further information regarding the securitisations is provided in note 12.
As described in note 2, as a result of the Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008, all shares in the Company were transferred to the Treasury Solicitor as
nominee for HM Treasury on 29 September 2008. The Company therefore considers HM Treasury to be a related party from that date. Details of the Working Capital Facility provided to the
Company by HM Treasury are provided in note 23. The Company and Group have numerous arm’s length transactions with government bodies; these are not disclosed due to the volume
of transactions and balances, and their nature as arm’s length normal business transactions. 
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38. Critical accounting judgements and estimates
Judgements:
Financial instrument designation
Upon initial designation, a certain amount of judgement is required in ascertaining within which category, as prescribed in IAS 39, a financial
instrument should be designated. The IAS 39 categories are detailed in the accounting policies set out in note 1 and the designation is based on
the criteria specified in IAS 39. We note that where financial instruments contain an embedded derivative we have not opted to designate the
whole instrument as at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ which is permissible under the standard.

Qualifying hedge relationships
In designating a financial instrument as part of a qualifying hedge relationship the Group and Company have determined that the hedge is
expected to be highly effective over the life of the hedging instrument. In accounting for a derivative as a cash flow hedge the Group and
Company have determined that the hedged cash flow exposure relates to highly probable future cash flows.

Impairment of debt securities
Critical judgement is applied in determining whether a debt security is impaired. The factors considered in determining whether an asset is
impaired are detailed in note 13.

Securitisations
In applying the Group’s policies on securitised financial assets, the Group and Company have considered both the degree of transfer of risks and
rewards on assets transferred to another entity and the degree of control exercised by the Group over the other entity:
- When the Group, in substance, controls the entity to which financial assets have been transferred, the entity is included in these consolidated

Financial Statements and the transferred assets continue to be recognised in the Group’s Balance Sheet.
- When the Company or another Group entity has transferred financial assets to another entity, but has not transferred substantially all of the

risks and rewards relating to the transferred assets, the assets continue to be recognised in the transferring entity’s Balance Sheet.

Details of the Group’s securitisation activities are given in note 12.

Deferred tax asset
The tax charge in the Income Statement and the provision for tax on the Balance Sheet are dependent upon whether or not the Transfer
constituted a major change in the nature or conduct of trade for tax purposes. If there was a major change in the nature or conduct of trade, then
there would be an end of accounting period for tax purposes on 28 September 2008 and an inability to carry forward any tax losses accrued as
at that date. This issue is under discussion with HM Treasury and HM Revenue & Customs. Given this uncertainty, deferred tax has not been
recognised in relation to those tax losses accumulated as at 28 September 2008.

Consideration has been given to whether tax losses pertaining to the period post Transfer are likely to be capable of being offset against future
profits and therefore whether deferred tax should be recognised in relation to them. Based upon the information that has been provided in
relation to the business plan, the expectation is that there will be sufficient profitability in future years in order to utilise tax losses in the Company
and certain subsidiaries and therefore deferred tax has been recognised accordingly in relation to these post Transfer tax losses. 

Estimates:
Effective interest rate
Loans and advances to customers are accounted for on an effective interest rate basis, under which the income is spread over the loan’s
expected life. On a quarterly basis, models are reviewed to re-assess expected life by portfolio of products based upon actual redemptions by
product and anticipated market conditions. During the year, the average expected life of a loan increased from 3 years to 6 years. The cumulative
impact of these changes was an increase in the Balance Sheet amount of loans and advances to customers of £196.0m. As the average
expected life increases the impact of a further one month increase is reduced since one month becomes a smaller proportion of the total
average expected life. At 31 December 2008, if the expected average life of a loan were increased or reduced by one month, the Balance Sheet
amount of loans and advances to customers would be increased or reduced by £2.8m respectively.

Loan impairment
The Group reviews its loan impairment on a monthly basis. Impairment models use actual loss experience to provide both probabilities of defaults
and property forced sale discounts across a portfolio of products. In addition, management applies a risk weighted view on additional factors,
such as specific fraud cases. If average house prices were 10% lower than the values at 31 December 2008 or if arrears were 50 basis points
higher than as at 31 December 2008 the reported impairment charge for 2008 would have been around £56.0m or £29.0m higher respectively.
As at 31 December 2008, the reported impairment amount factors in an experienced decrease in average house prices of 16% during 2008, and
an assumption that average house prices will fall by 16% in 2009 and a further 6% in 2010. These actual and anticipated house price decreases
represented £136.0m of the loan impairment loss reflected in the Group’s 2008 Financial Statements. 

Post-retirement benefit obligations
The net deficit in respect of post-retirement benefit obligations is carried on the Balance Sheet. The value of these obligations is calculated by the Group’s
actuaries using the assumptions set out in note 28. Note 28 also discloses the impact on the benefit obligations of changes in certain key assumptions.

Provisions
Provisions are carried in respect of certain known or forecast future expenditure, as described in note 29.
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39. Capital structure
At 31 December Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Tier 1
Share capital and reserves 1,158.1 1,210.8
Available-for-sale reserve adjustments 348.1 61.9
Cash flow hedge reserve adjustments 148.5 60.4
Intangible assets adjustments - (41.0)
Net pension deficit (10.0) (4.0)
Innovative tier 1 149.0 148.8
Total tier 1 capital 1,793.7 1,436.9
Upper tier 2 capital 584.6 580.1
Lower tier 2 capital 676.0 647.0
Total tier 2 capital 1,260.6 1,227.1
Deductions (55.7) (146.7)
Total capital 2,998.6 2,517.3

The values of tier 1 and tier 2 capital above exclude any accounting adjustments arising from the hedging of these instruments. 

The primary objectives of the bank’s capital management are to ensure that the bank complies with externally imposed capital requirements, and
maintains capital ratios to support the objectives of the business and to cover risks inherent in its activities. The Group defines Equity, Subordinated
Liabilities and Other Capital Instruments as capital. The Group’s capital is assessed under a Basel II standardised regime.

The bank manages its capital structure in response to changes in the nature of the bank’s activities and economic conditions.  

The bank’s capital position is shown above. Tier 1 capital excludes accounting reserves for available-for-sale assets and cash flow hedges but
includes a regulatory deduction for intangible assets. Tier 2 capital reflects amortisation of subordinated debt where appropriate. The Group’s
capital adequacy and capital resources are managed and monitored in accordance with the regulatory capital rules of the FSA, the UK regulator.
The bank must at all times monitor and demonstrate compliance with the relevant regulatory capital requirements of the FSA. The bank has put in
place processes and controls to monitor and manage the bank’s capital, and capital was adequate throughout the year.

The Company's capital is represented by the capital and reserves attributable to equity holders and is sufficient to meet the needs of the Company
in its operations.

40. Financial instruments
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value
Group Assets at Assets at 
At 31 December 2008 fair value fair value If fair
Financial assets through profit through profit Total values

Available- or loss - on initial or loss - held Loans and Hedging carrying Fair increased
for-sale recognition for trading receivables adjustments value value by 1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks - - - 100.4 - 100.4 100.4 1.0
Loans and advances to banks - - - 3,349.2 - 3,349.2 3,349.2 33.5
Loans and advances to customers - - - 41,826.0 - 41,826.0 41,296.1 413.0
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - - - - 561.3 561.3 - -
Debt securities 3,968.7 - - - 56.0 4,024.7 4,024.7 40.2
Derivative financial instruments - 6,022.9 - - - 6,022.9 6,022.9 60.2
Other financial assets - - - 6.1 - 6.1 6.1 0.1
Total financial assets 3,968.7 6,022.9 - 45,281.7 617.3 55,890.6 54,799.4 548.0

84Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

B21448 R&A 2008 BACK  20/3/09  17:37  Page 90



85Bradford & Bingley Annual Report & Accounts 2008

40. Financial instruments continued
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value continued
Financial liabilities Liabilities at Liabilities at 

fair value fair value If fair
through profit through profit Liabilities at Total values

or loss - on initial or loss - held amortised Hedging carrying Fair increased
recognition for trading cost adjustments value value by 1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks - - 9,318.5 - 9,318.5 9,318.5 93.2
Other deposits - - 828.1 - 828.1 828.1 8.3
Statutory Debt - - 18,413.9 - 18,413.9 18,413.9 184.1
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility - - 2,275.7 - 2,275.7 2,275.7 22.8
Derivative financial instruments 1,230.2 - - - 1,230.2 1,230.2 12.3
Debt securities in issue - - 20,492.7 173.6 20,666.3 15,600.6 156.0
Subordinated liabilities - - 1,250.5 98.2 1,348.7 250.1 2.5
Other capital instruments - - 223.6 44.8 268.4 78.0 0.8
Other financial liabilities - - 147.8 - 147.8 147.8 1.5
Total financial liabilities 1,230.2 - 52,950.8 316.6 54,497.6 48,142.9 481.5

Group Assets at Assets at 
At 31 December 2007 fair value fair value If fair
Financial assets through profit through profit Total values

Available- or loss - on initial or loss - held Loans and Hedging carrying Fair increased
for-sale recognition for trading receivables adjustments value value by 1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks - - - 209.2 - 209.2 209.2 2.1
Treasury bills 185.0 - - - - 185.0 185.0 1.9
Loans and advances to banks - - - 2,392.1 - 2,392.1 2,392.1 23.9
Loans and advances to customers - - - 40,444.5 - 40,444.5 40,407.2 404.1
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - - - - (53.8) (53.8) - -
Debt securities 6,778.7 - - - - 6,778.7 6,778.7 67.8
Derivative financial instruments - 1,175.4 - - - 1,175.4 1,175.4 11.8
Other financial assets 2.1 - - 658.9 - 661.0 661.0 6.6
Total financial assets 6,965.8 1,175.4 - 43,704.7 (53.8) 51,792.1 51,808.6 518.2

Financial liabilities Liabilities at Liabilities at 
fair value fair value If fair

through profit through profit Liabilities at Total values
or loss - on initial or loss - held amortised Hedging carrying Fair increased

recognition for trading cost adjustments value value by 1%
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks - - 2,074.3 0.1 2,074.4 2,074.4 20.7
Other deposits - - 24,152.6 - 24,152.6 24,155.1 241.6
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - - - (5.9) (5.9) - -
Derivative financial instruments 498.6 - - - 498.6 498.6 5.0
Debt securities in issue - - 21,652.6 655.5 22,308.1 21,914.6 219.1
Subordinated liabilities - - 1,249.2 4.5 1,253.7 1,168.9 11.7
Other capital instruments - - 148.9 12.7 161.6 117.5 1.2
Other financial liabilities - - 141.4 - 141.4 141.4 1.4
Total financial liabilities 498.6 - 49,419.0 666.9 50,584.5 50,070.5 500.7
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40. Financial instruments continued
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value continued
Company Assets at Assets at 
At 31 December 2008 fair value fair value If fair
Financial assets through profit through profit Total values

Available- or loss - on initial or loss - held Loans and Hedging carrying Fair increased
for-sale recognition for trading receivables adjustments value value by 1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks - - - 100.4 - 100.4 100.4 1.0
Loans and advances to banks - - - 1,380.8 - 1,380.8 1,380.8 13.8
Loans and advances to customers - - - 58,622.1 - 58,622.1 58,608.9 586.1
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - - - - 561.3 561.3 - -
Debt securities 12,217.4 - - - 56.0 12,273.4 12,273.4 122.7
Derivative financial instruments - 1,734.9 - - - 1,734.9 1,734.9 17.3
Other financial assets - - - 5.0 - 5.0 5.0 0.1
Total financial assets 12,217.4 1,734.9 - 60,108.3 617.3 74,677.9 74,103.4 741.0

Financial liabilities Liabilities at Liabilities at 
fair value fair value If fair

through profit through profit Liabilities at Total values
or loss - on initial or loss - held amortised Hedging carrying Fair increased

recognition for trading cost adjustments value value by 1%
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks - - 8,143.9 - 8,143.9 8,143.9 81.4
Other deposits - - 30,285.4 - 30,285.4 30,285.4 302.9
Statutory Debt - - 18,413.9 - 18,413.9 18,413.9 184.1
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility - - 2,275.7 - 2,275.7 2,275.7 22.8
Derivative financial instruments 1,309.4 - - - 1,309.4 1,309.4 13.1
Debt securities in issue - - 13,169.8 194.2 13,364.0 10,459.0 104.6
Subordinated liabilities - - 1,548.6 143.0 1,691.6 403.3 4.0
Other financial liabilities - - 134.3 - 134.3 134.3 1.3
Total financial liabilities 1,309.4 - 73,971.6 337.2 75,618.2 71,424.9 714.2

Company Assets at Assets at 
At 31 December 2007 fair value fair value If fair
Financial assets through profit through profit Total values

Available- or loss - on initial or loss - held Loans and Hedging carrying Fair increased
for-sale recognition for trading receivables adjustments value value by 1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks - - - 209.2 - 209.2 209.2 2.1
Treasury bills 185.0 - - - - 185.0 185.0 1.9
Loans and advances to banks - - - 1,901.9 - 1,901.9 1,901.9 19.0
Loans and advances to customers - - - 51,435.4 - 51,435.4 51,417.7 514.2
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - - - - (53.8) (53.8) - -
Debt securities 7,398.2 - - - - 7,398.2 7,398.2 74.0
Derivative financial instruments - 468.6 - - - 468.6 468.6 4.7
Other financial assets 2.1 - - 657.5 - 659.6 659.6 6.6
Total financial assets 7,585.3 468.6 - 54,204.0 (53.8) 62,204.1 62,240.2 622.5
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40. Financial instruments continued
(a) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities: carrying value compared to fair value continued
Financial liabilities Liabilities at Liabilities at 

fair value fair value If fair
through profit through profit Liabilities at Total values

or loss - on initial or loss - held amortised Hedging carrying Fair increased
recognition for trading cost adjustments value value by 1%

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks - - 1,658.5 - 1,658.5 1,658.5 16.6
Other deposits 19,279.0 - 24,322.8 - 43,601.8 43,604.3 436.0
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging - - - (5.9) (5.9) - -
Derivative financial instruments 483.2 - - - 483.2 483.2 4.8
Debt securities in issue - - 13,897.9 511.2 14,409.1 14,205.4 142.1
Subordinated liabilities - - 1,548.1 17.2 1,565.3 1,437.1 14.4
Other financial liabilities - - 131.0 - 131.0 131.0 1.3
Total financial liabilities 19,762.2 - 41,558.3 522.5 61,843.0 61,519.5 615.2
Cash and balances at central banks and loans and advances to banks: the fair value is considered to be their carrying amount, credit risk being considered as part of
impairment review. 
Loans and advances to customers: where floating rate loans and advances to customers have been issued at market rates we have assumed fair value approximates to book
value, credit risk being considered as part of impairment review. Fixed rate mortgage balances, within loans and advances to customers, are fair valued using discounted cash
flow models, using prevailing market rates, with underlying assumptions based on current market conditions. At 31 December 2008, their fair value in respect of interest rate risk
is considered to be marginally higher than their carrying value (the fair value adjustment on portfolio hedging being an asset balance of £561.3m). Given current market
conditions, it is not known whether these fair values are reflective of prices that could be achieved on the open market; however, there is no intent to sell these loans.
Debt securities and treasury bills: fair value has been estimated through reference to market price or specific restructuring proposals. Where no market price exists an
assessment has been made as to the value of the security. This assessment is based on modelling the present value of future expected cash flows, using a discount curve
adjusted for credit spread and liquidity, utilising information from a number of sources, including fund manager expectations and the performance of other similar securities.
Derivative financial instruments, other financial assets and deposits by banks: the fair value is their carrying amount.
Other deposits: the fair value is estimated from expected future cash flows, discounted at current market rates.
Statutory Debt and HM Treasury Working Capital Facility: the fair value is assumed to be their carrying amount.
Debt securities in issue, subordinated liabilities and other capital instruments: the fair value is based upon quoted market prices in active markets or discounted expected cash
flows using market rates applicable to the credit quality and maturity of the instrument. 
Other financial liabilities: the fair value is their carrying amount.
No financial assets were reclassified during 2008 or 2007 by the Group or Company between amortised cost and fair value categories. 

(b) Trading book
During 2007 the Group commenced trading activities in derivatives. In 2008 this activity ceased. The net trading result for the year, which is all
included in the Income Statement within ‘realised gains less losses on financial instruments’, was a loss of £1.0m (2007: profit £1.0m).
The fair value of these held for trading derivatives was nil at 31 December 2008 and not material at 31 December 2007 and therefore does not
appear in note 40.

(c) Interest income and expense on financial instruments that are not at fair value through profit or loss
Total interest income and expense (calculated using the effective interest rate method) on financial instruments that are not at fair value through
profit or loss were as follows:

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Interest income 3,121.8 2,967.5
Interest expense (2,384.4) (2,419.8)
Net interest income 737.4 547.7
The above includes interest on derivatives which are effective hedging instruments.

(d) Impaired financial assets
Allowance accounts for credit losses in respect of impairment of loans and advances to customers are detailed in note 10, and in respect of debt
securities in note 14.
No impairment loss has been recognised in respect of any other class of financial asset, and no other class of financial asset includes assets that
are past due.

B21448 R&A 2008 BACK  20/3/09  17:37  Page 93



Notes to the Financial Statements 

40. Financial instruments continued
(e) Derecognition of financial assets
The following financial assets have been sold but continue to be carried on Balance Sheet because the sale does not qualify for derecognition;
the Group remains exposed to the economic risk on the assets because of the sale terms.

Group 2008 2008 2007 2007
Carrying amount of Carrying amount of Carrying amount of Carrying amount of

assets associated liabilities assets associated liabilities
£m £m £m £m

Repurchase agreements (see also note 40f) 9,848.4 5,128.3 794.0 744.4
Other arrangements - - 168.9 170.8

9,848.4 5,128.3 962.9 915.2

Company 2008 2008 2007 2007
Carrying amount of Carrying amount of Carrying amount of Carrying amount of

assets associated liabilities assets associated liabilities
£m £m £m £m

Repurchase agreements (see also note 40f) 10,068.2 5,235.3 1,721.4 1,645.9
Other arrangements - - 168.9 170.8

10,068.2 5,235.3 1,890.3 1,816.7
In addition, loans to customers which have been securitised are not derecognised from the Balance Sheet as the originator of the loans retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the securitised loans (see note 12).

(f) Collateral
All loans and advances to customers made by the Group are secured on property. The secured property can be repossessed in the event of
borrower default, in which case the carrying value of the loan is reduced if the estimated recoverable amount is lower than the outstanding
balance owed, in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1. The repossessed property is carried on the Balance Sheet within
loans and advances to customers.

A credit exposure could arise in respect of derivative contracts entered into by the Group if the counterparty were unable to fulfil its contractual
obligations. The Group addresses the risks associated with these activities by monitoring counterparty credit exposure and requiring additional
collateral to be posted or returned as necessary. The only forms of collateral accepted by the Group are cash and government securities. Derivatives
are transacted under ISDA with CSA annexes and as such may require collateral to be posted from time to time.

Fair value of collateral which we hold which we can sell or repledge in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral:
Group Group Company Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Assets under reverse repurchase agreements - 253.4 - 253.4
Cash collateral which we have received in respect of derivatives contracts 392.2 45.2 392.8 67.3

392.2 298.6 392.8 320.7
None of the above collateral has been sold or repledged.

Carrying amount of financial assets which we have pledged as collateral:
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Assets under repurchase agreements (see also note 40e) 9,848.4 794.0 10,068.2 1,721.4
Cash Ratio Deposit with the Bank of England 32.1 38.2 32.1 38.2
Cash collateral which we have provided in respect of derivative contracts 1,467.8 90.9 849.7 90.9

11,348.3 923.1 10,950.0 1,850.5
In addition, certain loans to customers have been securitised, as detailed in note 12. These loans, and also the other financial assets shown above which we have pledged, are
carried on the Group’s and Company’s Balance Sheets.
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40. Financial instruments continued
(g) Hedge accounting
The Group had the following types of hedges:
Group 2008

Fair value Cash flow Non- Nominal
hedges hedges hedging Total amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts 5,347.5 - 6.4 5,353.9 18,446.9
Interest rate contracts 188.7 120.3 360.0 669.0 37,046.3
Total asset balances 5,536.2 120.3 366.4 6,022.9 55,493.2
Exchange rate contracts 161.9 - 6.3 168.2 1,617.6
Interest rate contracts 646.2 325.3 90.5 1,062.0 43,217.4
Total liability balances 808.1 325.3 96.8 1,230.2 44,835.0
Fair value of hedging instruments 4,728.1 (205.0) 269.6 4,792.7 10,658.2

The Company had the following types of hedges:
Company 2008

Fair value Cash flow Non- Nominal
hedges hedges hedging Total amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts 846.1 - 6.3 852.4 2,895.3
Interest rate contracts 322.0 120.3 440.2 882.5 29,688.5
Total asset balances 1,168.1 120.3 446.5 1,734.9 32,583.8
Exchange rate contracts 161.3 - 6.3 167.6 1,617.6
Interest rate contracts 677.3 325.3 139.2 1,141.8 48,989.6
Total liability balances 838.6 325.3 145.5 1,309.4 50,607.2
Fair value of hedging instruments 329.5 (205.0) 301.0 425.5 (18,023.4)

The Group had the following types of hedges:
Group 2007

Fair value Cash flow Non- Nominal
hedges hedges hedging Total amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts 903.5 - - 903.5 12,119.7
Interest rate contracts 225.4 40.4 - 265.8 24,359.5
Other derivatives 6.1 - - 6.1 16.8
Total asset balances 1,135.0 40.4 - 1,175.4 36,496.0
Exchange rate contracts 135.9 - - 135.9 3,432.8
Interest rate contracts 165.7 141.5 - 307.2 20,782.8
Other derivatives 5.8 - 49.7 55.5 222.6
Total liability balances 307.4 141.5 49.7 498.6 24,438.2
Fair value of hedging instruments 827.6 (101.1) - 676.8 12,057.8

The Company had the following types of hedges:
Company 2007

Fair value Cash flow Non- Nominal
hedges hedges hedging Total amounts

£m £m £m £m £m

Exchange rate contracts 196.4 - - 196.4 2,957.5
Interest rate contracts 225.7 40.4 - 266.1 23,130.3
Other derivatives 6.1 - - 6.1 16.8
Total asset balances 428.2 40.4 - 468.6 26,104.6
Exchange rate contracts 80.0 - - 80.0 935.0
Interest rate contracts 205.6 141.5 - 347.1 36,185.0
Other derivatives 6.4 - 49.7 56.1 222.6
Total liability balances 292.0 141.5 49.7 483.2 37,342.6
Fair value of hedging instruments 136.2 (101.1) - (14.6) (11,238.0)
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40. Financial instruments continued
(g) Hedge accounting continued
The Group and Company undertake derivative transactions to hedge risk exposures, and manage risk by use of fair value hedges and cash flow
hedges. For those transactions which qualify and are designated as fair value or cash flow hedges, hedge accounting treatment is applied. 

Fair value hedges are primarily used to hedge against changes in fair value of fixed rate products due to movements in market interest rates. For
the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recognised fair value gains of £18.5m (2007: loss £23.5m), representing the ineffective portion of
the fair value hedges. 

Cash flow hedges are used to hedge the risk of exposure to variability of cash flows attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised
asset or liability, or a forecast transaction. 

Any gains or losses on cash flow hedges are recorded in equity until the hedged cash flow occurs, whereupon they are transferred to profit or loss
for the period. As at 31 December 2008, net losses accumulated in equity were £148.5m (2007: loss £60.4m).

Hedge effectiveness is measured and assessed on an ongoing basis and was determined to be actually effective throughout the year. Changes
in fair values and cash flows of the hedged items were almost fully offset by changes in fair values and cash flows of the hedging instruments,
and actual effectiveness was within a range of 80% to 125%.

The Group has recognised embedded derivatives within certain products and has classified them with derivatives in accordance with IAS 39,
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. 

Prior to the Transfer, forward starting swaps were entered into, in anticipation of the take up of fixed rate mortgages. These were treated as cash
flow hedges. Cash flow ineffectiveness testing incorporates testing for forecast transactions which are no longer expected to occur.

Fair value movements on financial instruments recognised in the Income Statement comprised the following:
Group

2008 2007
£m £m

Net gains/(losses) on fair value hedging instruments 2,879.5 (372.6)
Net (losses)/gains on fair value hedged items (2,861.0) 349.2
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges - (0.1)
Net hedge ineffectiveness gains/(losses) 18.5 (23.5)
Net gain/(loss) in fair value:

- embedded derivatives (64.1) (49.7)
- other 247.1 -

Total fair value gains/(losses) 183.0 (49.7)
Total fair value gains/(losses) recognised in the Income Statement 201.5 (73.2)
Other fair value movements arose on swaps which are not part of designated accounting hedge relationships.

Realised gains less losses on financial instruments recognised in the Income Statement comprised the following:

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

Realised (losses)/gains on available-for-sale instruments (119.6) 4.5
Realised gains on instruments at amortised cost 0.3 1.0
Realised (losses)/gains on instruments at fair value due through profit or loss (1.0) 1.0
Total realised (losses)/gains on financial instruments recognised in the Income Statement (120.3) 6.5
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41. Risk management
A description of the principal risks to which the Group and Company are exposed is provided on pages 19 to 22 which form part of the audited
Financial Statements. 

(a) Financial and market risk
The following table describes the significant activities undertaken by the Group which gives rise to financial or market risk, and the risks
associated with such activities.

Activity Risk Type of derivative instrument used

Funding activities in sterling involving either fixed Sensitivity to changes in interest rates Interest rate swaps and interest rate futures
rate instruments or instruments with embedded
options

Fixed and capped rate mortgage lending and Sensitivity to changes in interest rates Interest rate swaps and options
investment activities involving either fixed rate 
instruments or instruments with embedded 
options

Investment and funding in foreign currencies Sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates Cross-currency interest rate swaps and
foreign exchange contracts

Variable rate products Sensitivity to changes in interest rates Interest rate swaps
The accounting policy for derivatives and hedge accounting is described in note 1.

(b) Credit risk
Before taking account of any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December was:

Group Group Company Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Cash and balances at central banks 100.4 209.2 100.4 209.2
Treasury bills - 185.0 - 185.0
Loans and advances to banks 3,349.2 2,392.1 1,380.8 1,901.9
Loans and advances to customers 41,826.0 40,444.5 58,622.1 51,435.4
Debt securities 4,024.7 6,778.7 12,273.4 7,398.2
Derivative financial instruments 6,022.9 1,175.4 1,734.9 468.6
Other financial assets 6.1 661.0 5.0 659.6
Total on - Balance Sheet 55,329.3 51,845.9 74,116.6 62,257.9
Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities (off-Balance Sheet) (see note 36) 1,750.4 1,900.7 37.5 75.7
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 57,079.7 53,746.6 74,154.1 62,333.6
In respect of loans and advances to banks and customers and derivative financial instruments, the Group and Company may hold reverse repurchase agreements and may also
hold cash as security (see notes 40e and 40f). Loans and advances to customers are secured on property.
In respect of lifetime mortgages, the irrevocable undrawn loan facility is calculated using actuarial assumptions. There is no commitment to advance further cash; the
commitment reflects interest expected to roll up on the loans until redemption.
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41. Risk management continued
(c) Liquidity risk
It should be noted that many financial instruments are settled earlier than their contractual maturity dates; in particular, many mortgage loans are
repaid early in full or in part.
The Group closely monitors its liquidity position against the Board's liquidity policy. This policy sets out elements of available and required liquidity
through reference to and modelling of net lending commitments, short and medium term wholesale commitments, liquidity reserves, retail
deposit growth and the requirement for other payments (e.g. dividends and tax). From this, minimum and target liquidity levels are established.
Furthermore, liquidity is also measured in proportion to the total Balance Sheet and is subject to trigger levels; these determine the appropriate
levels of escalation in order to address any actual or forecast shortfalls. The liquidity policy also requires stress testing through modelling and
assessment of any emerging and potentially extreme funding conditions.

The contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities were as follows:
Group In not In more than In more than
At 31 December 2008 more than three months one year but

three but not more not more than In more than
On demand months than one year five years five years Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 17.3 - - - 83.1 100.4
Loans and advances to banks 3,311.0 38.2 - - - 3,349.2
Loans and advances to customers - 64.2 284.0 1,452.6 40,025.2 41,826.0
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 561.3 - - - - 561.3
Debt securities - 859.6 355.8 767.3 2,042.0 4,024.7
Derivative financial instruments - 180.8 1,327.1 2,801.4 1,713.6 6,022.9
Other financial assets - 6.1 - - - 6.1
Total financial assets 3,889.6 1,148.9 1,966.9 5,021.3 43,863.9 55,890.6
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 2,304.8 4,444.4 1,123.2 1,446.1 - 9,318.5
Other deposits 9.1 96.0 67.7 655.3 - 828.1
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - - - - 18,413.9
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - - - - 2,275.7
Derivative financial instruments - 126.1 205.7 573.3 325.1 1,230.2
Debt securities in issue - 156.1 2,916.7 12,771.8 4,821.7 20,666.3
Subordinated liabilities - - - 397.2 951.5 1,348.7
Other capital instruments - - - - 268.4 268.4
Other financial liabilities - 147.8 - - - 147.8
Total financial liabilities 23,003.5 4,970.4 4,313.3 15,843.7 6,366.7 54,497.6
Group net liquidity gap (19,113.9) (3,821.5) (2,346.4) (10,822.4) 37,497.2 1,393.0
Group financial assets at 31 December 2007 730.6 4,371.6 784.5 3,372.3 42,533.1 51,792.1
Group financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 15,681.3 2,503.8 11,009.9 16,723.9 4,665.6 50,584.5
Group net liquidity gap at 31 December 2007 (14,950.7) 1,867.8 (10,225.4) (13,351.6) 37,867.5 1,207.6

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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41. Risk management continued
(c) Liquidity risk continued
Company In not In more than In more than
At 31 December 2008 more than three months one year but

three but not more not more than In more than
On demand months than one year five years five years Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 17.3 - - - 83.1 100.4
Loans and advances to banks 1,342.6 38.2 - - - 1,380.8
Loans and advances to customers 26,202.1 55.8 196.0 1,307.4 30,860.8 58,622.1
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 561.3 - - - - 561.3
Debt securities - 859.6 355.8 1,061.6 9,996.4 12,273.4
Derivative financial instruments - 180.8 364.2 929.2 260.7 1,734.9
Other financial assets - 5.0 - - - 5.0
Total financial assets 28,123.3 1,139.4 916.0 3,298.2 41,201.0 74,677.9
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 2,303.5 4,444.4 1,123.2 272.8 - 8,143.9
Other deposits 29,519.2 96.0 67.7 602.5 - 30,285.4
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - - - - 18,413.9
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - - - - 2,275.7
Derivative financial instruments - 125.5 212.0 621.0 350.9 1,309.4
Debt securities in issue - 86.0 2,732.9 5,723.4 4,821.7 13,364.0
Subordinated liabilities - - - 397.2 1,294.4 1,691.6
Other financial liabilities - 134.3 - - - 134.3
Total financial liabilities 52,512.3 4,886.2 4,135.8 7,616.9 6,467.0 75,618.2
Company net liquidity gap (24,389.0) (3,746.8) (3,219.8) (4,318.7) 34,734.0 (940.3)
Company financial assets at 31 December 2007 26,476.7 4,334.0 572.8 3,207.5 27,613.1 62.204.1
Company financial liabilities at 31 December 2007 35,801.2 1,753.7 9,438.9 10,010.6 4,838.6 61,843.0
Company net liquidity gap at 31 December 2007 (9,324.5) 2,580.3 (8,866.1) (6,803.1) 22,774.5 361.1
HM Treasury has indicated that it expects the WCF provided to the Company by HM Treasury and the Statutory Debt due to the Financial Services Compensation Scheme to be
repaid out of the cash flows generated by the Company and the Group during their wind-down. As explained in notes 23 and 24 it is not possible to specify the contractual
maturity dates of the loans to the Company from HM Treasury and from the Financial Services Compensation Scheme, and they have been included in the table above as
though repayable on demand.

The contractual undiscounted cash flows associated with financial liabilities were as follows:
Group In not In more than In more than
Financial liabilities more than three months one year but
At 31 December 2008 three but not more not more than In more than

On demand months than one year five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks 2,304.8 4,497.0 1,181.0 1,532.9 - 9,515.7
Other deposits 9.1 102.0 83.4 669.8 - 864.3
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - - - - 18,413.9
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - - - - 2,275.7
Derivative financial instruments - 42.5 (20.5) 387.7 (425.0) (15.3)
Debt securities in issue - 310.4 3,366.6 14,130.0 6,765.4 24,572.4
Subordinated liabilities - 20.5 61.6 904.2 1,077.1 2,063.4
Other capital instruments - 3.2 9.6 51.0 408.1 471.9
Other financial liabilities - 147.8 - - - 147.8
Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 118.4 - - - - 118.4
Acquisition of mortgage portfolios - 310.0 - - - 310.0
Total 23,121.9 5,433.4 4,681.7 17,675.6 7,825.6 58,738.2

Included in the above are the following expected cash flows arising on cash flow hedges (positive = outflow); no impact is anticipated on the
Income Statement due to hedging arrangements.

Cash flow hedges - 18.9 (7.5) 52.9 7.9 72.2
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41. Risk management continued
(c) Liquidity risk continued
Group In not In more than In more than
Financial liabilities more than three months one year but
At 31 December 2007 three but not more not more than In more than

On demand months than one year five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks 361.5 690.7 374.9 792.5 - 2,219.6
Other deposits 15,325.7 1,361.1 5,642.3 2,506.3 - 24,835.4
Derivative financial instruments - 41.7 118.7 90.3 (317.4) (66.7)
Debt securities in issue - 753.8 6,185.7 15,516.1 5,647.4 28,103.0
Subordinated liabilities - 17.2 51.7 389.8 1,632.9 2,091.6
Other capital instruments - 2.2 6.7 35.6 365.2 409.7
Other financial liabilities - 141.4 - - - 141.4
Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 312.3 - - - - 312.3
Acquisition of mortgage portfolios* - 750.0 1,850.0 1,800.0 - 4,400.0
Total 15,999.5 3,758.1 14,230.0 21,130.6 7,328.1 62,446.3
*The total undiscounted contractual financial liabilities have been amended to include the £4.4bn mortgage commitments that were in place last year.

Included in the above are the following expected cash flows arising on cash flow hedges (positive = outflow); no impact is anticipated on the
Income Statement due to hedging arrangements.

Cash flow hedges - 0.2 (15.1) (51.0) (8.3) (74.2)

Company In not In more than In more than
Financial liabilities more than three months one year but
At 31 December 2008 three but not more not more than In more than

On demand months than one year five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks 2,303.5 4,488.2 1,154.6 289.2 - 8,235.5
Other deposits 29,519.2 101.7 82.8 638.7 - 30,342.4
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - - - - 18,413.9
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - - - - 2,275.7
Derivative financial instruments - 47.1 (20.5) 165.4 (425.0) (233.0)
Debt securities in issue - 186.2 3,019.9 6,658.1 6,765.4 16,629.6
Subordinated liabilities - 24.5 73.4 967.4 1,564.1 2,629.4
Other financial liabilities - 134.3 - - - 134.3
Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 37.5 - - - - 37.5
Total 52,549.8 4,982.0 4,310.2 8,718.8 7,904.5 78,465.3

Included in the above are the following expected cash flows arising on cash flow hedges (positive = outflow); no impact is anticipated on the
Income Statement due to hedging arrangements.

Cash flow hedges - 18.9 (7.5) 52.9 7.9 72.2

Company In not In more than In more than
Financial liabilities more than three months one year but
At 31 December 2007 three but not more not more than In more than

On demand months than one year five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Deposits by banks 115.8 575.4 822.1 230.0 - 1,743.3
Other deposits 35,691.3 1,147.3 5,504.3 1,832.8 - 44,175.7
Derivative financial instruments - 60.0 180.7 154.3 (333.8) 61.2
Debt securities in issue - 198.1 3,965.8 9,340.0 5,700.9 19,204.8
Subordinated liabilities - 21.5 64.6 458.4 2,171.1 2,715.6
Other financial liabilities - 131.0 - - - 131.0
Irrevocable undrawn loan facilities 75.7 - - - - 75.7
Total 35,882.8 2,133.3 10,537.5 12,015.5 7,538.2 68,107.3

Included in the above are the following expected cash flows arising on cash flow hedges (positive = outflow); no impact is anticipated on the
Income Statement due to hedging arrangements.

Cash flow hedges - 0.2 (15.1) (51.0) (8.3) (74.2)
The above amounts differ from the Balance Sheet carrying values because the Balance Sheet amounts are based on discounted cash flows, and also because the above amounts
include associated cash flows including interest; future interest rates have been estimated based on the Bank of England base rate at the Balance Sheet date of 2.00% (2007: 5.50%). 
Subordinated liabilities include perpetual instruments as detailed in note 30. The amounts above assume these instruments will be redeemed on 31 December 2032.
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41. Risk management continued
(d) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk typically arises from mismatches between the re-pricing dates of the interest-bearing assets and liabilities on the Group’s
Balance Sheet, and from the investment profile of the Group’s capital and reserves. The Group's Treasury is responsible for managing this
exposure within the risk exposure limits set out in the Balance Sheet Management policy, as approved by ALCO and the Board. This policy sets out
the nature of the market risks that may be taken along with aggregate risk limits, and stipulates the procedures, instruments and controls to be
used in managing market risk. Market risk is the potential adverse change in Group income or Group net worth arising from movements in
interest rates, exchange rates or other market prices. Effective identification and management of market risk is essential for maintaining stable
net interest income.   

It is ALCO’s responsibility to recommend to EXCO strategies for managing market risk exposures and to ensure that the Group's Treasury
implements the strategies so that the exposures are managed within the Group’s approved policy limits. 

The Group assesses its exposure to interest rate movements using a number of techniques. However there are two principal methods: 
a) a static framework that considers the impact on the current Balance Sheet of an immediate movement of interest rates; and 
b) a dynamic modelling framework that considers the projected change to both the Balance Sheet and mortgage rates over the following year
under various interest rate scenarios. 
The results of these analyses are presented to senior management in order to identify, measure and manage the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk. 

Limits are placed on the sensitivity of the Group Balance Sheet to movements in interest rates. Exposures are reviewed as appropriate by senior
management and the Board with a frequency between daily and monthly, related to the granularity of the position. For example, the overall
Group Balance Sheet interest rate risk exposure position is monitored monthly whilst several specific portfolios within the Balance Sheet are
reviewed more frequently on a daily or weekly basis. This reflects the dynamics and materiality of the various portfolios.     

Interest rate risk exposure is predominantly managed through the use of interest rate derivatives, principally interest rate swaps. Interest rate
swaps are over-the-counter arrangements with highly rated banking counterparties. The Group also uses asset and liability positions to offset
exposures naturally wherever possible to minimise the costs and risks of arranging transactions external to the Group. 

In general, swaps which have been taken out to manage Group interest rate risk are held by the Company even where the related financial
instruments are held by other Group entities. In these cases, the Company's interest rate risk is managed by either creating swaps between the
Company and the entities which hold the instruments or by setting the interest rate terms on loan balances between the Company and those
entities, in each case in order to reduce the Company's interest rate risk to an acceptable level.

Interest rate sensitivities are reported to ALCO monthly and are calculated using a range of interest rate scenarios, including non parallel shifts in
the yield curve.

The main metric used by management to control interest rate risk is the sensitivity of interest margin over 12 months to a notional 2% parallel
move in market and base rates. As at 31 December this sensitivity was:

Group
2008 2007

£m £m

2% increase 184.8 9.7
2% decrease (182.8) (28.1)
The Company ceased its trading book during 2008.
The above sensitivities are greater than in previous years as post Transfer there are higher structured balance sheet interest rate exposures.
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41. Risk management continued
(e) Foreign currency risk
The Group’s policy is to hedge all material foreign currency exposures by use of naturally offsetting foreign currency assets and liabilities or by the
use of derivatives. Consequently, at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 the Group and Company had no net material exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations or changes in foreign currency interest rates. The impact on the Group’s profit and equity of reasonably possible changes in
exchange rates compared to actual rates would not have been material at 31 December 2008 or 31 December 2007.

The sterling equivalent amounts of the Group’s and Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December
2008 and 31 December 2007 are set out in the tables below, excluding the nominal value of cross-currency interest rate swaps. The net financial
assets/(liabilities) in non-sterling currencies largely represents the nominal value of hedging cross-currency swaps excluded from the table.

Group Sterling Euro US$ Other Total
At 31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 100.4 - - - 100.4
Loans and advances to banks 3,259.4 43.9 45.9 - 3,349.2
Loans and advances to customers 41,826.0 - - - 41,826.0
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 561.3 - - - 561.3
Debt securities 1,194.2 2,427.2 403.3 - 4,024.7
Derivative financial instruments 668.7 4,073.0 792.7 488.5 6,022.9
Other financial assets 6.1 - - - 6.1
Total financial assets 47,616.1 6,544.1 1,241.9 488.5 55,890.6
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 8,256.6 1,061.7 0.2 - 9,318.5
Other deposits 719.0 86.0 23.1 - 828.1
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - - - 18,413.9
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - - - 2,275.7
Derivative financial instruments 1,027.9 184.2 18.1 - 1,230.2
Debt securities in issue 1,009.8 15,147.1 3,108.1 1,401.3 20,666.3
Subordinated liabilities 1,348.7 - - - 1,348.7
Other capital instruments 268.4 - - - 268.4
Other financial liabilities 147.8 - - - 147.8
Total financial liabilities 33,467.8 16,479.0 3,149.5 1,401.3 54,497.6
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 14,148.3 (9,934.9) (1,907.6) (912.8) 1,393.0

Group Sterling Euro US$ Other Total
At 31 December 2007 £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 209.2 - - - 209.2
Treasury bills 185.0 - - - 185.0
Loans and advances to banks 2,203.5 123.6 65.0 - 2,392.1
Loans and advances to customers 40,444.5 - - - 40,444.5
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging (53.8) - - - (53.8)
Debt securities 4,308.5 1,867.9 602.3 - 6,778.7
Derivative financial instruments 1,129.4 42.4 1.6 2.0 1,175.4
Other financial assets 657.1 3.3 0.6 - 661.0
Total financial assets 49,083.4 2,037.2 669.5 2.0 51,792.1
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,118.9 759.0 196.5 - 2,074.4
Other deposits 23,936.2 127.2 89.2 - 24,152.6
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging (5.9) - - - (5.9)
Derivative financial instruments 448.5 37.5 9.1 3.5 498.6
Debt securities in issue 5,830.6 12,779.9 2,541.9 1,155.7 22,308.1
Subordinated liabilities 1,253.7 - - - 1,253.7
Other capital instruments 161.6 - - - 161.6
Other financial liabilities 119.1 18.6 - 3.7 141.4
Total financial liabilities 32,862.7 13,722.2 2,836.7 1,162.9 50,584.5
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 16,220.7 (11,685.0) (2,167.2) (1,160.9) 1,207.6

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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41. Risk management continued
(e) Foreign currency risk continued
Company Sterling Euro US$ Other Total
At 31 December 2008 £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 100.4 - - - 100.4
Loans and advances to banks 1,292.1 42.8 45.9 - 1,380.8
Loans and advances to customers 58,622.1 - - - 58,622.1
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging 561.3 - - - 561.3
Debt securities 9,442.9 2,427.2 403.3 - 12,273.4
Derivative financial instruments 881.1 712.0 17.4 124.4 1,734.9
Other financial assets 5.0 - - - 5.0
Total financial assets 70,904.9 3,182.0 466.6 124.4 74,677.9
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 7,082.0 1,061.7 0.2 - 8,143.9
Other deposits 30,176.3 86.0 23.1 - 30,285.4
Statutory Debt 18,413.9 - - - 18,413.9
HM Treasury Working Capital Facility 2,275.7 - - - 2,275.7
Derivative financial instruments 1,107.1 184.2 18.1 - 1,309.4
Debt securities in issue 1,323.4 10,549.1 90.2 1,401.3 13,364.0
Subordinated liabilities 1,691.6 - - - 1,691.6
Other financial liabilities 134.3 - - - 134.3
Total financial liabilities 62,204.3 11,881.0 131.6 1,401.3 75,618.2
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 8,700.6 (8,699.0) 335.0 (1,276.9) (940.3)

Company Sterling Euro US$ Other Total
At 31 December 2007 £m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 209.2 - - - 209.2
Treasury bills 185.0 - - - 185.0
Loans and advances to banks 1,713.3 123.6 65.0 - 1,901.9
Loans and advances to customers 46,314.4 4,304.7 - 816.3 51,435.4
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging (53.8) - - - (53.8)
Debt securities 4,928.0 1,867.9 602.3 - 7,398.2
Derivative financial instruments 422.6 42.4 1.6 2.0 468.6
Other financial assets 655.7 3.3 0.6 - 659.6
Total financial assets 54,374.4 6,341.9 669.5 818.3 62,204.1
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 737.0 746.5 175.0 - 1,658.5
Other deposits 43,474.1 97.1 30.6 - 43,601.8
Fair value adjustments on portfolio hedging (5.9) - - - (5.9)
Derivative financial instruments 433.1 37.5 9.1 3.5 483.2
Debt securities in issue 2,825.3 10,082.1 346.0 1,155.7 14,409.1
Subordinated liabilities 1,565.3 - - - 1,565.3
Other financial liabilities 108.7 18.6 - 3.7 131.0
Total financial liabilities 49,137.6 10,981.8 560.7 1,162.9 61,843.0
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 5,236.8 (4,639.9) 108.8 (344.6) 361.1

(f) Concentrations of risk
The Group has investments in a range of debt securities issued by government bodies, banks and building societies, and in asset-backed
securities, in both the UK and overseas. UK government securities, bank and supranational securities and bank certificates of deposit comprise
59% (2007: 61%) of debt securities held. 63% (2007: 68%) of the asset-backed securities are backed by UK assets. 

The Group operated primarily in the UK, and adverse changes to the UK economy could impact all areas of the Group’s business. Residential
loans and advances to customers are all secured on property in the UK. 61% (2007: 59%) of residential loans and advances to customers are
concentrated in the buy-to-let market; the remaining balances are mainly secured on residential owner-occupied properties.
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42. Controlling party
As a result of The Bradford & Bingley plc Transfer of Securities and Property etc. Order 2008, which transferred all shares in Bradford & Bingley plc
to the Treasury Solicitor as nominee for HM Treasury on 29 September 2008, the Company considers Her Majesty's Government to be the
ultimate controlling party from that date.

43. Contingent liabilities
On 20 January 2009 a solicitor's letter was received notifying the Company and certain present and former Directors of a potential claim by
approximately 1,600 former individual shareholders who subscribed for additional shares in the £401m rights issue approved on 17 July 2008.
These former shareholders claim to have suffered loss through having been induced to subscribe for shares in the rights issue by allegedly
materially misleading and/or incomplete statements made in the associated prospectus dated 24 June 2008 as revised and supplemented by
the supplementary prospectus dated 11 July 2008. 

Should such a claim result in proceedings which are pursued through the courts and which succeed, the defendant Directors and/or the
Company could be liable in damages to certain former shareholders in the Company who subscribed for shares in the rights issue. 

The Company together with its legal advisers are considering the allegations. It is not possible at this early stage to assess the outcome or timing
of any conclusion to this matter.
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